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2 (Start Tape C-3612) 

3 THE COURT: Thank you, you may be seated. 

4 We will resume the testimony of Mr. Cousins. You 

5 are still under oath, sir. 

6 Whereupon, 

7 GREGORY COUSINS 

8 called as a witness by counsel for the State of Alaska, and 

9 having been previously duly sworn by the Clerk, was examined 

10 and testified as follows: 

11 

13 Q 

DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed) 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Mr. Cousins, we started with the Exhibits 

I am showing you what has been marked for 

15 identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 69. Do you 

16 11 recognize that Exhibit? 

A It looks like the Master's Office. 

1 ~ ' Q An accurate representation of that Master's Office 

19 on the Exxon Valdez? 

20 A Yes. 

21 MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what 

22 has been previously identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 

23 69 0 

24 

25 

MR. MADSON: No objection. 

THE COURT: Admitted. 

4 



(State's Exhibit Number 69 

2 was admitted in evidence.) 

3 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

4 Q I am showing you what has been marked for 

5 identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 71. Do you 

6 recognize that? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 li 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I believe that's the Captain's stateroom. 

Okay. 

I haven't been in there that often, I wouldn't -­

Okay, why don't we just go on. 

I am showing you what has been marked for 

12 identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 53. Do you 

13 recognize that? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q What's that a picture of? 

16 A The bridge. 

17 Q Of the Exxon Valdez? 

1 E A Yeah, the navigation area. 

19 Q A fair an accurate representation? 

20 A Yes. 

21 MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of 

5 

22 Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 53. I am not sure that it has been 

23 admitted or not. 

24 MR. MADSON: I think it already has been. That's 

25 okay. No objection. 
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L THE COURT: Admitted. 

2 THE CLERK: It's already in. 

3 THE COURT: It's already in. 

4 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

5 A I show you what has been marked for identification 

6 as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 62. Do you recognize that 

7 photograph? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q What's that a photograph of? 

10 A The chart table. 

11 I Q And is that a fair and accurate representation of 
I 

12 I that? 

13 II A Yes, sir. 

14 Q Can you show the jury by --

15 MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of of what 

16 has previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 

17 62. 

I 
i c I' I MR. MADSON: No objection. 

19 THE COURT: It's admitted. 

20 (State's Exhibit Number 62 

21 was admitted in evidence.) 

22 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

23 Q Can you show the jury where this picture is, where 

24 you are looking from that picture? 

25 A This is -- this is the chart table over here. 
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Q I am showing you what has been marked for 

2 identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 51. Do you 

3 recognize that? 

4 A Yes. That's the starboard bridge room. 

5 Q And Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 58, do you recognize 

6 that? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q And what is that a photograph of? 

9 A A single sideband Weller-Fox. That's this equipment 

10 right here. 

11 Q A fair and accurate representation of those two 

12 pictures? 

13 A Yes. 

MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what 

15 has been previously identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 

10 I 51 and 58. 

17 MR. MADSON: No objection. 

, ~ ,: I THE COURT: Both admitted. 

19 (State's Exhibits Numbers 

20 51 and 58 were admitted in 

21 evidence.) 

22 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

23 Q Now, in Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 51, this one 

24 right here, is this where someone would stand if they were out 

25 on the starboard wing on watch? 
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A Yes, sir. 

2 Q Can you point to the jury where that would be? 

3 A Well, anywhere on this bridge wing between here and 

4 the end of the bridge wing. 

5 Q What's that on the end there? 

6 A This is the repeater. There is a Doppler log out 

7 here and this is part of the radio antenna system here. 

8 Q What's a repeater? 

9 A A gyrorepeater. It mimics what the master gyro is 

,,., 
<U reading. 

11 Q Is it a digital one? 

I ,, , .. A No. 

13 Q Okay. 

14 And from that can you get the heading --

15 A Yes. 

10 1 Q -- of the vessel? 

17 A Yes. 

12 Q And the Doppler. What's a Doppler? 

19 A It indicates speed. 

20 Q And the Exhibit that was previously admitted, can 

21 you tell the jury what radios are there. You may have to hold 

22 it up as you are talking. 

23 A I am trying to recall myself. I believe there are 

24 just two single sideband units, one here, and this is one that 

25 had been recently installed. This is the older unit. There 



is a sextant case, a weather fax, and that's about it for 

2 electronics. 

3 Q What are all these? 

4 A Flags. 

5 Q Why do you use those? Why are those there? 

9 

6 A Well, we have the signal flags for various purposes. 

7 Q Okay. Well, tell the jury what kind of purposes 

8 those are for. 

9 A Supposing we had a pilot on board. There is a 

10 certain flag that we hoist to signify that we have a pilot on 

11 board. If we're along side the dock, there's another flag we 

12 use to indicate that we are loading hazardous cargo. 

14 

Q 

A 

And what are these here in the corner right here? 

What are you referring to? These? They are hand 

15 held radios. 

16 Q 

17 the ship? 

12 

19 

A 

Q 

And are those what the crew members carry throughout 

Yes. 

I am showing you what has been marked for 

20 identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 57. Do you 

21 recognize that photograph? 

22 

23 

A 

Q 

That again is the chart room. 

A fair and accurate representation of the chart room 

24 on the Exxon Valdez? 

?5 A Yes, sir. 
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MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what 

2 previously has been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 

3 57. 

4 MR. MADSON: No objection. 

5 THE COURT: 57 is admitted. 

6 (State's Exhibit Number 57 

7 was admitted in evidence.) 

8 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q Can you show the jury where that photograph was 

10 taken from? 

11 I' A You're looking into the chart room from over on the II 
II 

12 II starboard side from here. 

13 

I 
Q And can you point out to the jury where the course 

1 ~ recorder is on that? 

15 A That's right here. 

161! 
Q And where is the chronometer? 

A The chronometer is right here. 17 

I 
18 

I Q Can you see it in that picture? 

19 A Yeah -- well, the jury probably couldn't. It's 

20 directly underneath the course recorder. 

21 Q What is a chronometer? 

22 A It's a timepiece. 

23 Q Is it accurate? 

24 A Very accurate timepiece. 

"'!5 Q I am showing you what has been marked for 
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identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 61. Do you 

2 recognize that? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q What's that a photograph of? 

5 A Our electronic navigation units, LORAN c and the 

6 SATNAV on the bottom. 

7 MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what 

8 has previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 

9 61. 

10 MR. MADSON: No objection. 

11 THE COURT: It's admitted. 

12 (State's Exhibit Number 61 

13 was admitted in evidence.) 

1 ~ BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

15 Q Now, do you use the LORAN in Prince William Sound? 

1 t A Not in the Sound. 

17 Q Why not? 

1 Q A 'u 

I 
Although it is accurate, it is really not accurate 

19 j enough for the type of navigation work that we are doing in 

20 the Sound. 

21 Q And how does the NAVSAT instrument work? 

22 A It picks up a satellite, and then if the satellite 

23 is in a proper aspect and we get a good signal from it, it 

24 calculates our position. 

25 Q I am showing you what has been marked for 



identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 60. Do you 

2 recognize that photograph? 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

What's that a photograph of? 

That's the radio direction finder. 

Okay. 

And that was on the Exxon Valdez? 

That's correct. 

MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what 

10 has previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 

11 
I 

12 

13 

60. 

MR. MADSON: No objection. 

THE COURT: It is admitted. 

12 

14 

1.5 

(State's Exhibit Number 60 

was admitted in evidence.) 

H BY MR. COLE: {Resuming) 

17 Q How do you work the radio direction finder on the 

13 Exxon Valdez? 

19 A Well, it's energized from the bridge, but the radio 

20 operator has to flip a switch down on his panel, but basically 

21 what it does is picks up a transmitted signal on a certain 

22 frequency, and it will show up as a lobe and you manually 

23 shift this compass and you get a bearing off the transmitted 

24 signal. 

?5 Q Okay. 
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Do you use things like radio stations? Can you use 

2 a radio station for your --

3 A No, there are specific RDF transmitting stations. 

4 Q Okay. 

5 I am showing you what has been marked for 

6 identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 59. Do you 

7 recognize that photograph? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q And what's that a photograph of again? 

1 c ,I 
A That's the starboard side of the bridge, inside, :I 

li 
11 with the single sidebands, the weather fax and --

12 MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what 

13 has previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 

~~ 59. 

15 MR. MADSON: No objection. 

THE COURT: It's admitted. 

17 (State's Exhibit Number 59 

was ad~itted i~ evidEn~~.: 

19 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

20 Q I don't think that -- in the last time we talked 

21 about this area, can you tell the jury what this phone is 

22 right here? 

23 A That's part of this system here, the single 

24 sideband. 

25 Q Okay. 

r -, 
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A It's also part of the emergency calling that we 

2 could use. 

3 Q Would you explain that to the jury? 

4 A That was -- what is it I forget the frequencies 

5 now, I think it was 2182, that you could call out on that for 

6 emergency distress. 

7 Q I am showing you what has been marked for 

8 identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 55. Do you 

9 recognize that photograph? 

10 A Yes, sir. 

11 Q What's that a photograph of? 

12 A Same side of the bridge, just looking further aft. 

1: II 
I Q A fair and accurate representation? 

i ~ A Yes, sir. 

15 MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what 

1 ( has previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Numb~r 

17 55. 

' ' 
'~ MR. MADSON: No objection. 

19 THE COURT: It is admitted. 

20 (State's Exhibit Number 55 

21 was admitted in evidence.) 

22 {Pause.) 

23 BY MR. COLE: {Resuming) 

24 Q I am showing you a copy of what has previously been 

?.5 admitted as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 10. Do you recognize 

I 

I 
i 

II 
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that? 

2 A Well, this is the night order book. 

3 Q What's the night order book? Would you explain that 

4 to the jury? 

5 A Well, before the Captain retires for the evening and 

6 leaves the bridge, he'll write instructions for the night 

7 watches. 

8 Q And is that done every night? 

9 A 
I 

Every night. With the exception of in-port cargo 

1 c 11 handling. 

11 Q I am showing you what has previously been admitted 

12 as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 6. Do you recognize that? 

1 J A Yes. That's our rough log. 

14 Q Okay. 

15 
I 

And rough long and deck log --

~ ~ li A Same; same. 

17 Q -- are both the same thing. They are synonymous 

1 s te.rr..s? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q Why-- what's the purpose of having the rough log? 

21 A Everything that we do on watch is recorded on here 

22 to keep an accurate account of what happened on each watch, 

23 such things as fixes and courses steered and whatnot. 

24 MR. COLE: Judge, may the witness be allowed to step 

?5 down and identify this last exhibit here? 
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THE COURT: Yes, sir. Just be careful and keep it 

2 attached. 

3 THE WITNESS: I don't think it's going to reach. 

4 (Pause.) 

5 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

6 Q Now, I am showing you what has previously been 

7 marked for identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 80. 

8 Do you recognize that? 

9 A It appears to be a scale model of the bridge of the 

Exxon Valdez. 

Q And have you had a chance to take this apart and 

12 take a look at it? 

13 A Just briefly. 

14 Q The part that you saw, is it a fair and accurate 

15 representation of the bridge of the Exxon Valdez? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q And below. The decks below. Were you able to take 

12 a lool: at the decks belo"t-~ and --

19 A yes. 

20 Q -- the particular rooms that were identified? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q And is that a fair and accurate representation of 

23 the decks below the bridge on the Exxon Valdez? 

24 A Yes; yes, sir. 

-~ MR. COLE: Judge, I would move for the admission of 



what has previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit 

2 Number 80. 

3 MR. MADSON: May I just examine it for a second, 

4 your Honor? 

5 THE COURT: Yes, sir. 

6 (Pause.) 

7 MR. MADSON: I have no objection, your Honor. 

8 THE COURT: 80 is admitted. 

9 MR. COLE: Do you want to look at the rest of it? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

THE COURT: 80 is admitted. 

17 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

(State's Exhibit Numb~r 80 

was admitted in evidence.) 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q Mr. Cousins, can you -- we talked about a number of 

16 things, but can you tell the jury identify the particular 

17 areas on the upper deck of the Exxon Valdez, the bridge area, 

18 so that the jury can understand that. Maybe if ycu begin oL 

19 this end. 

20 A The repeater I was referring to is located right 

21 here. That is where we take visual bearings from. Moving 

22 inside, the lookout would typically be in this area somewhere. 

23 If you notice from the photographs, there is a windbreak most 

24 of the 

25 Q 

across most of the bridge wing. 

And the windbreak would be? 
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A Oh, it's just a curved piece of metal, steel. It 

2 runs nearly the length of the bridge wing. 

3 Q Okay. 

4 A To cut the wind. 

5 Q Are there any instruments on the outsides of the 

6 doors there? 

7 A Yes. Just above the door there is a rudder angle 

8 indicator, an RPM indicator, and I can't remember if there is 

9 anything else. I believe that's all. 

10 Q Okay. 

11 

12 off 

And then moving into this area -- let me take that 

and maybe you could explain to the jury, there, what 

13 
I
I the different rooms are that are up on the bridge. 

14 A This is our console area. Ten centimeter radar on 

15 this end of the console. ~here's another radar, it's a thre~ 

16 centimeter -- a three centimeter radar on the port side. This 

17 is the steering station. The rest of this is engine control 

1 E p a r. c l s . 

19 Q Now, the chart room, would it normally have been 

20 open up as this is? 

21 A No, there would have been a blackout curtain drawn 

22 here. There's another blackout curtain here and a blackout 

23 curtain on the other side. 

24 Q What's the purpose for that? 

:25 A To keep the -- any backscatter or light off from the 



19 
r 

,_ away around the chart table, from entering into the --

2 Q You need some lights when you are working with the 

3 charts. 

4 A Oh, yes. 

5 Q And that is -- the curtains are to prevent that 

6 light from getting out and hurting·the eyes of the helmsman? 

7 A Yes. Correct. 

8 Q Can you tell the jury what is in the electrical 

9 equipment room that is at the bottom there? 

10 A Master gyros. We have two gyros sit just right 

11 inside the door here. There are -- there's some equipment for 

12 the radar, both radars. There's a single sideband uuit sits 

13 back in this corner. And there's various file cabinets and -

14 

15 Q Is there a restroom right up on the bridge? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q And that is where? 

12 '\ That's right here. 

19 Q And how do you get to that? Do you remember where 

20 the door was? 

21 A Yes, it's just inside the blackout curtains on the 

22 port side. 

23 Q And this out here on this end would have been called 

24 the port bridge wing? 

25 A That's correct. 



Q Now, to get down the steps, is there a way to go 

2 down to the next level below the bridge? 

3 A Yes, right -- right through here. 

4 Through those steps? 

Yes. 

20 

5 

6 

Q 

A 

Q Now on the next level, can you show the jury where a 

7 person would come out if they walked down those steps? 

8 A This is the ladder down to D-deck. 

9 Q Okay. And would you identify the particular rooms 

10 that were on D-deck? 

11 A Okay. 

12 Actually I believe that we used this as the pilot's 

13 stateroom. This is -- they call it a file room. It had a 

14 desk and a bunch of file cabinets in there. Typically locked. 

15 Captain's stateroom, his office. Chief engineer's office. 

16 Chief engineer's stateroom. I'm not sure what this is. It 

17 might have been a cleaning gear locker or something. There is 

18 another spare roo~ and a radio room and the radio operator's 

19 stateroom. 

20 Q For Captain Hazelwood to get from his office up to 

21 the bridge, what would he have to do? 

22 A Just exit this door, enter this door, and up the 

23 ladder. 

24 Q And if he had wanted to do it in a hurry, how fast 

25 I could he be there? 
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A Probably 10 seconds, 10 or 15 seconds. It's -- it's 

2 not far. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Now, can you do downstairs then from there? 

Yes. 

To the next level? 

And that would be C-deck? 

Yes. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

A 

Q Now, would you give the jury an idea of what then is 

9 located on C-deck? 

1 G A This is the ladder down from D-deck. Third mate's 

11 room. Chief mate's office. There's a cleaning gear locker 

12 and a Chief mate's stateroom. The second 

1: mate's stateroom. The second assistant's stateroom. 

14 

15 

Q 

A 

Assistant engineer; you didn't say that. 

Yeah, assistant -- and I believe this is the first 

,, assistant's office, first assistants stateroom. The officer's 

17 lounge. Laundry. Third assistant engineer's stateroom. We 

~2 call tbis the library. It is used by the er:..giilL:.c:rs to b.:.L:r; ... , 

19 lot of their manuals and whatnot. 

20 Q Now, you would have been staying here? 

21 A That's correct. 

22 Q And this was Mr. Kunkel at the time? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q And Mr. McCain was the second mate? 

?5 A Right. 
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Q And the officer's lounges are separated from -- all 

2 the officers stay on the deck below the captain and the chief 

3 engineer? 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 c 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

there? 

Yes. 

Now, from that deck can you go further down? 

Yes. 

To the next deck below? 

Yes. 

And that is using the same ladder syste~? 

Yes, that would be right here. 

And basically can you outline what is on that deck 

11 A All the AB's, the oilers, and generally the 

14 unlicensEd --

15 

17 

Q 

A 

Do not get too much in front of the thing there. 

Yeah. 

All of the unlicensed personnel are quartered with 

1: thE e):ce:pticn that tht: pumpmen are quartered on th:.s dec::. 

19 Q And then the deck below that, would you tell the 

20 jury what's in that deck? That deck? 

21 A Cargo control room where we monitor all our cargo 

22 operations. A fan room. It can't be entered from inside; it 

23 is entered from outside. The crew's lounge. 

24 Q You've got make sure you're not getting so people up 

75 there in the corner can't see. 
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Go ahead. 

2 A The purnprnen's stateroom. We had a dayroom here for 

3 the chief mate during cargo operations, if he wanted to stay 

4 there. That would be another officer. The cargo control 

5 console. This is a locker. A laundry room. A locker. And 

6 just spare quarters here. 

7 Q Now, there's one more deck -- one or -- one more 

8 deck below this? 

9 A That's correct. 

10 Q And what was contained in that? 
,, 

11 I' A The mess halls. 
II 
1: 

12 ii MP .. COLE: That's all we have. I am just going to 
!! 

13 put this bac}:. 

1 J 

I\ 

(Pause.) 

15 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

16 Q Now, when we left yesterday, we had talked briefly 

1, about your background. Would you get -- tell the jury whe~ 

12 , you got your third mate's license? 

19 A It in February -- it was either February or March 

20 of 1986. 

21 Q And you sailed for approximately how long before 

22 actually working as a third mate? 

23 A My first third mate assignment was in January of 

24 1987. 

25 Q And when did you get your second mate's license 
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again? 

2 A February of 1989. 

3 Q Did you ever sail as second mate after getting your 

4 second mate's license. 

5 A No. 

6 Q Did you get any special licenses in addition to 

7 that? 

8 A No, I didn't. 

9 (State's Exhibit Number 81 

10 was marked for identificatioL.) 
i 

11 I' 

II 
12 ,, 

Q I am showing you what has been marked for 

identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 81. Do you 

13 

I! 

recognize that? 

14 II h Yes, that is a copy of my second mate's license. 

15 I MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what 

16 I 
I 

has previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Numb~r 

1"7 I 81. 

12 I 
1::~. Hl .. DSOIJ: No objection tc that, you1· Hor-.or. 

19 THE COURT: Admitted. 

20 (State's Exhibit Number 81 

21 was admitted in evidence.) 

22 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

23 Q This thing says, of any gross tons, second mate --

24 A Yes. 

·rs Q -- of ocean steamer or motor vessels of any gross 
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tons. Can you tell the jury what that means? 

2 A Essentially it is an unlimited license that you are 

3 certified to sail as an officer on any vessel. 

4 Q Any vessel? 

5 A Yes, sir. 

6 Q And the gross tons refers to what? What are they 

7 referring to? 

8 A The size of the ship basically. 

9 Q Now it also says, radar observer unlimited. Wh2t 

1 c I dot::s 
I that :r..ean? 

11 
! 

A Before you are issued the license, even though yo~ 

12 have passed the exam, you have to prove proficiency on --

13 through the use of radar, and that is what that is referring 

1.! tc. 

15 Q And is that a special course you take or a special 

16 test? 

17 A Yes. 

1 Q I And ~hen did you get that? 
! 

19 I got that with my third mate's license. 

20 Q Now, did you have any special pilotage endorsements? 

21 A No. 

22 Q Okay. 

23 What did that mean? Pilotage endorsement, what does 

24 that term mean? 

25 A That you're certified to navigate a vessel in a 
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certain area. 

2 Q Could you have gotten that? 

3 A I suppose I may have been able to. 

4 Q Do you know any third mates that have Prince William 

5 Sound pilotage endorsements? 

6 A Not personally, no. 

7 Q We talked briefly about your trips to Valdez. Can 

8 you give the jury an idea of how many trips you made to 

9 Valdez, in an out, as an able bodied seaman and as a third 

10 mate? 

11 A As an AB, I would estimate perhaps 20 times. As a 

12 third mate, maybe sixteen -- between sixteen and eighteen 

13 times. 

Q And would you have been on the bridge during the 

passage through Prince William Sound on all of those? 

A Not always as an AB. Usually as an offic~r, I would 

17 get some part of a transit. 

1 s Is it comr..cn in your industry t:::: !"le:l;; tr.c. fi::..-=t m<:t~ 

19 if his watch was coming up, through the Prince William Sound 

20 area? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q Would you explain to the jury why that would be? 

23 Why you would do that? 

24 A The chief mate's workload increases significantly 

?5 with the cargo operations. He spends sometimes an inordinate 
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amount of time up, and to relieve him a little bit, spare him 

2 additional fatigue, so he is somewhat rested for cargo 

3 operations. 

4 Q In Valdez the cargo operations takes a fair amount 

s of time? 

6 A 

7 is about. 

8 Q 

9 hours? 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

I think we can turn around, I believe, in 24 hours, 

Is the chief mate up for a good part of that 24 

Yes, he is. 

So you give him a little break if his shift comes in 

12 just to allow him to get a few extra hours of sleep. 

A Yes. If -- for example, if his watch was coming up, 

14 we probably wouldn't call him until sometime just before 

15 docking. 

Q You indicated yesterday that you had served 

17 approximately three -- on three -- I can't remember thE ter~ 

,2 that you used, but thre<::: t:;.rnEs you had sc.iled on the Ex.:r:.:.•. 

19 Valdez prior to this? 

20 A Two times prior to the grounding. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

?5 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Okay, two times prior, but this was the third one? 

Yes, sir. 

What do you call that? 

Assignments. 

Assignments, okay. 



Would you have been at the helm for any of those 
$ 

2 what was the Exxon Valdez running at that time? Was it 

3 running between -- where was it going between on those? 

4 A We had went I believe the first trip -- are you 

5 talking about on each assignment? 

6 Q Yeah, the first two assignments generally and then 

7 the last assignment. 

8 A Alaska-Panama on the first two assignments. We'~ 

9 start trading through Panama, they'd shifted us tc San 

'r il Francisco ,, 
'I 
!' 

or Long Beach. 

28 

Q And that's what you were on on tb.t:. thir:l as::i:;nn.cr-.t:: 
il 
I' A ' . ti Yes. 

1 ~ ,: Q Can you give the jury an idea of how lcng it takes 

1~ to go from Valdez to San Francisco? 

15 A A good trip, five days and some hours. 

Q And if you -- was it common to go to Long Beact 

1 ~ 

II 
also? 

'c 
I! 

]'.. Well, I don't know what the 

19 because that was kind of a new run to me on that vessel. I 

20 suppose they would split the load, wherever they needed the. 

21 oil. It was going to be one or the other. 

22 Q What do you mean by split the load? 

23 A Well, if -- we would take a portion of the load tc a 

24 Long Beach discharge, take the remainder to San Francisco. 

75 Q And then return up to Valdez? 
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A That's correct. 

2 Q Can you -- can you give the jury an idea of what 

3 your responsibilities were on the Exxon Valdez as a third 

4 mate? And let's begin while the ship is out at sea and you 

5 come on to do your four hour shift? 

6 A As a watch standing officer, of course maintaining 

7 accurate vessel position, plotting, that's your primary 

8 function. Collision avoidance. There were other things, 

9 compass checks. There's a little bit of celestial navigation 

~~ involved from -- depending upon the weather. 

Q Nc~, the vessel position, would that include ffial;ing 

12 .I steering, navigating -- giving navigation orders? 

A Yes. 

Q And would that require you -- would you~ 

15 responsibilities require you to oversee the helmsffian to mat£ 
I 

, \sure that he is following the orders that you give? 

17 Yes. 

12 Q Let's ~c~~ to an arcG cf 

19 William Sound. Let's say you were on shift during the time 

20 that you entered Prince William Sound. What would your 

21 responsibilities then be on the bridge? 

22 A Navigation, collision avoidance. Typically that may 

23 also include communications with VTS. 

24 Q How about when you were involved in the docking and 

25 undocking process? What would your responsibilities as third 
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mate have been then? 

2 A I have the aft docking station and I just direct the 

3 AB's what to do with the winches. 

4 Q When you say aft, some people may not be familiar 

5 with that. Where is that? 

6 A The back end of the ship. From midships aft. 

7 Q Now, directing your attention to March 22nd of last 

B year, the Exxon Valdez came -- was coming to Valdez that day, 

9 is that correct? 

1 G 

11 
I I, 

1 = I! ,, 

1:: 

'' 

15 

'- li 
,, 
li 

•C I' ,I 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

15 

A Yes. 

Q Where had it come fro~? 

A San Francisco. 

Q Do you remember how long that trip had taken? 

A N~. I don't; no. 

(State's Exhibit Nunber 82 

was marked for identification.) 

BY MP.. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q If you took a look at the deck log, would that 

you to recall that? 

A It might take a minute. 

We had been on -- March 18th. 

>-. ,. 1 ~ 
.LJ.I.:.;.J..,t-· 

Q So it would have been about four days out at sea? 

A Yes. No -- yeah, approximately. 

Q Did you -- were you on the bridge that evening? 

A Yes, I was. 
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Q And when were you on the bridge on the evening of 

2 the 22nd? 

3 A Well, I had-- the third officer has supper relief, 

4 that being relieving the chief mate so he can go down and eat. 

5 So I was on the bridge for approxi -- twenty or thirty 

6 minutes. That would have been around 5:00 o'clock, 5:00 ~.rr;., 

7 1700. Then again I would relieve him for my regular watch. 

B Q And that would have been about 8:00 o'clock? 

9 I A Yes, a little bit before 8:00. 

You worked the 8:00 to 10:00 shift -- S:CO t~ 
"'; - . (' . .... _. \........,. 10 Q 

'1 

'I I' 

I. 
8:00 to 12:00. 

1.: II Q And who work~d th~ 12:00 to 4:00 shift? 

1' A Lloyd LeCain. 

1.1 Q Who were the people, the AB's that worked underneath 

15 you? 
\ 

16 \i A Paul Radtke and Harry Claar. 

17 I Q And do you remember who the AB's were that workc~ 

under Hr. 

19 I 

12 

Maureen Jones and Robert Kagan. A 

20 Q Prior to March 23rd, 1989, had you worked with 

21 either Maureen Jones or Mr. Kagan? 

22 A With Maureen Jones, yes. 

23 Q In what capacity had she worked? 

24 A She was an AB on my watch. 

25 Q Had you ever had Mr. Kagan as an AB on your watch 
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prior to that? 

2 A Not on my watch. He had been on the Exxon New 

3 Orleans, and that was a prior assignment. But I believe he 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 ~ 
IV 

I 

12 

1:' 

1 ~ 

~ ' '~ 

'c 

]7 

1 c 

19 

20 

" 

II 
I 

was sailing in a different capacity at the time. 

Q When had -- when was that? Do you remember? 

A That was the assignment prior to my coming on the 

Valdez the last before the grounding. I don't remember the 

specific date. It might have been in October of I 88 o 

Q When you came into Prince William Sound, where c.i:: 

you pick up the pilot that day? 

A At Rocky Point. 

Q And do you remember what time you arrived in Valdez: 

A No, I don't. Not without --

Q Go ahead. Would it help to refer to that? 

A Yes, it would. 

(Pause.) 

Yeah, we were off the dock at 2230, 10:30. 

10:30 that evening? 

1, Uh-huh. 

Q Now, your shift would have continued until midnight. 

21 What did you do after that? 

22 A After the docking? 

23 Q Uh-huh. 

24 A I remained on deck for a short period of time until 

25 Lloyd showed up to relieve me. I went into the cargo control 
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room, had a short conversation with the chief mate. They wer~ 

2 separating personal mail. I picked up my mail and went to the 

3 stateroom. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

r; 

1 r ,, 

Q Would you have gone to sleep at that point? 

A I was up for a short period of time, reading the 

mail. 

Q What time were you scheduled to be on duty the next 

morning? 

A We relieve at ten minutes prior to -- if I had the 

8:00 to 12:00, I would relieve him at 7:50. 

Q What did you do then? Did you go and relieve tLc 

first mate at that time? 

A Yes. 

Q The next morning. 

What were your assignments or your responsibilities 

during that sh~ft? 

A That's monitoring the cargo. 

Lid ycu eud up -- did ycu go int.o towr. 

19 to that assignment? 

20 A No. 

21 Q Tell the jury what you physically do while you are 

22 monitoring the cargo. 

23 A Basically you are stuck in the cargo control rooili 

24 watching a board with gauges, monitoring what tanks are doing 

?5 what, keeping list and trim where they arc supposed to be. 



Q Do you get any instructions from the first mate as 

2 to how to proceed with the loading and unloading? 

3 A He writes cargo orders that we have to read, sign. 

4 There's anything that we don't understand, we have a 

5 discussion and get it understood. 

6 Q Where was Mr. Kunkel during the time you were 

7 working on that shift? 

8 A 

9 staterco:::-.. 

IV 

:I A 

12 Q 

1. 

Q 

15 ].. 

I 

,t !i salinity. 

1' I 

1: 
I! 

Q 

I don't remember. I believe he was in his 

An~ after -- you were replaced around noon 

yes. 

And who would you have been replaced 

Lloyd LeCain. 

'\.-. .... - ...... 
W.J. • 

VJhat did you de after you got off wor}~ thcL 

I had lunch and after lunch I went and took 

Hould you explain to the jury what you ::-.ear_ ;;~-

34 

In determining how much cargo we can load, the chief 

20 mate needs to know how buoyant or how salty the water is, and 

21 that's basically all it is. It's -- I went down to the engine 

22 room, got salt water got water from the deepest part of the 

23 ship that we could, put the hydrometer in there and --

24 Q 

25 have been? 

II 
II 

Okay. Do you remember about what time that would 
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A That's after I had lunch. 

2 Q Did you go into town at all after you had lunch? 

3 A No, I didn't. 

4 Q How come? 

5 A Didn't want to. 

6 Q Did you do any more work that afternoon or did you 

7 go to your stateroom? 

8 A I did some paper work, but that was in my stateroom. 

Perhaps half an hour of reading and then I tee!: a na1=-. 

1G Q What time did you get called back up to go to work 

1: that evening? 

12 A Again I had supper relief, so I was up at 4:30, 

1~ relieved the chief mate five minutes before the hour. 

14 Remained in the cargo control room for approxi~~tcly twc~:; 

15 minutes, not much longer than that. Had my dinner, and the~ 

16 I returned to my stateroorr.. Actually I believe I went bac}:, 
I 

I' 

1' stopped by the cargo control room fer just a few minutes tc 

lE check ~ith the chi~f mate about who is going to be dcin; ~• 

19 topping off. That conversation may have taken place befor( 

20 that, but it seems that I stopped back in the control reo~. 

21 Q And what was the conclusion that he reached? Did he 

22 tell you you were going to be involved? 

23 A Yeah, he said that I would help with the toppin~ 

24 off. 

25 Q So after speaking with him, did you go back to your 
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stateroom? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q When were you called back up then to help Mr. 

4 Kunkel? 

5 A Actually I don't -- I don't know that Jim give ~~ a 

6 call he may have -- but I just went down to the cargo 

7 control room at the approximate time that we had talked about 

8 earlier. 

9 Q Would you explain to the jury what you meaL ty 

10 topping off the tanks and how that is accomplished? 

11 " Ht:=ll, at the end of the cargo, the tanks c..re prct.~:i .t"1 

12 full, and as we near the end of the load we slow tbc lcadir .. ;; 

13 rate down. The chief mate was out on the dock i~ this 

14 particular case watching the draft marks, putting as much 

15 , getting as much of the load on as we could. We were n~-"" '-''- fully 

16 li laden en this vcyage. So he wanted to get down to the marks, 

17 and I was in the cargo control room, slowing down the c~~;c 

lC 
1 
rr .. t·~ c..-- r.i.ec.sssa!..-y. 

19 Q Now when you talk -- you talked about a number of 

20 things. The marks and the draft rates. Can you use this 

21 diagram to kind of tell -- show the jury what you mean by 

22 that? 

23 A These are draft marks right here. 

24 Q And there are numbers that are made in alongside the 

· 1!i tanker? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q They are written in? 

3 A Yes, painted in. 

4 Q And from those can you tell how deep in the water 

5 the ship is sitting? 

6 A Yes. He calculates or is given a draft that -- say 

7 whatever the governing draft would be in Long Beach, that is 

8 what he is looking at. It is probably more accurate than 
I 

9 I drying to figure out on a computer how much oil you're going 
I! 

1: II t:: be able to load and try t::; work by ullage. 

Q Sc these draft marks are both in the aft and 1n the 

;~ ! I:".i.dsection and --

A J..nd forward. 

14 -- at the forward deck. 

15 Okay. 

16 \
1 

And this line right here, does that have c.. .... 

1: Ill, signi 1f.ican:·e·--~', 1 8 • _ _ _ t h::. t ' s t h "- - - that ' s our de c;: d 2· a: : , I 
i 

19 believe. Yeah. 

20 Q And when you say deep draft, what do you mean? 

21 A For the fully laden tanker. 

22 Q So at fully laden, this line should be sitting ...... 
23 the water then? 

24 A Yeah. 

25 Q And that's why this is not a full -- this is an 
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unladen tanker right here? 

2 A Yeah, that's light. 

3 Q Did you why is it important to have two people 

4 - two mates there to help with the topping off process? 

5 A Well, you couldn't hardly have one guy standing on 

6 the dock and trying to control the rate of flow of cargo. I 

7 mean, it's important. You don't know what may go wrong. You 

need someone inside communicating with the dock and just 

watchi~; the tanks. 

1G !1 Q What are the dangers that are involved in that? 

:1 1 mear., arc thE:rE: an:1 problerr.s inherent in lcadin;; a tanl:c:::: 
I 
I• 

121 oil'? 

l': li A A numbt:r, yes. 

I 

T.'!~ - .... ...... ~ ......... 

Q Just briefly tell the ju:::y what ycu have tc be --

15 what kind of things you would be concerned wit~. 

' .. 
Q 

l-. 

Mecha~i=~l failure. 

Which wo~ld cause what? 

WLicL c-:; ..... ld ca~.s..:: ar. cil spill. :\.uptun;;d lin'-. •. 

19 valve that doesn't close when you expect it to close and ycu 

20 overflow a tank. 

21 Q Did you have AB's working with you on the topping 

22 off process? 

23 A Yes, we have two AB's on deck. When we check the --

24 Q What were their responsibilities? 

:?5 Well, we check ullagcs. It wasn't quite as critical 
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as a full load, but when the chief mate does his load plan, h~ 

2 has ullages for each tank, and we have the AB's that as a 

3 double check from our gauges inside, we double check that with 

4 a sonic tape that the AB's use out on deck. 

5 Q Now when you say ullages, explain to the jury what 

6 you mean by ullage. 

7 A An ullage. Tell you how -- at what level the carg~ 

8 is in the tank. 

Q And you spoke about something that the ~B's hav~ ~~ 

10 check the ullag~. 

A It's a sonic tape. It's got a probe on it, lower it 

12 do~n Q tube, sounding tube into the tank. And you just read 

1~ the ullage out from the tape. 

Q After you were done with the topping off ~rocess, 

15 what did you do then? 

16 

1' \ period of 

1s ' th"' g<.oc.:::. 

19 Q 

20 A 

I reffiained in the c~rgo control rooffi for a short 

tir..c.. Afte~ that I went to the bridge and tes~c.~ 

What do you mean when you say you tested the gear? 

We are required to test our steering gear, radar, 

21 navigation equipment, lights, sound, signalling apparatus. 

22 Q Well, let's start with the steering gear. Maybe you 

23 could take that pointer again and maybe walk the jury through 

24 what you did that evening as far as testing the gear up on the 

?5 bridge. 
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A On this ship it's a very simple procedure. 

2 Basically you're just standing right here. There's an 

3 engineer that will go back to the steering gear flap and 

4 observe the equipment down there as I am going through a test 

5 and 

6 Q Wait a minute. Where is this engineer going? 

7 A To the steering gear room. 

8 Q Where is that? 

9 A That is in the aftermost part of the ship, abo~t o~: 

lC deck bt::lcw thE: mair. decl:. Back in here. 

ll And is that in there area where there is housed the 

12 mechanisms, the hydraulic pumps that turn the rudder? 

1:: A yeah. 

Q He's down right there looking at the~~? 

'J.. Yes. 

l 6 I~ Q Ol:ay. 

1' And you're talking with him up the~~~ 

1 s Tb.cr.~. call and ~ ... :: ,_ __ ~--c-.:~ 
... _ ..................... :,..._ --

19 he'll stand there and watch that everything is functioni~~ 

20 properly as a test. Each pump and also the emergency 

21 steering. 

22 Q What do you mean by each pump? 

23 A Well, there's two different systems. There's a port 

24 pump and a starboard pump. 

25 Q And one of them acts as a back up, is that correct? 
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A One's a backup for the other. We usually rotate 

2 them. Might use the starboard pump on the southbound vc~~gc 

3 and the port pump on the northbound. 

4 (Pause.) 

5 Q Now when you say the pump, can you look at what has 

6 previously been admitted as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 52 ~r.d 

7 point out to the jury where that 

8 I, A This is the controller switch that we have on t~c 

9 li 
I 
steeri~g unit. It's in the off position now. This is ~::~ 

I 
1(; starboard pump, port pump. 

11 li 
12 II 

And it's just basically the system that ru~= Q - ' 
'-"' .. -

steering console, is that correct? 

13 A Not the steering console. 

14 Q The what? 

15 II A Steering gear. 

16 Q Steering gear. 

1' ~ 

X. So ycu arG sitting in front of that an~ 

IC ;~!~~-:; Yc'J. r .• a}:(. sol:.L turns? 

19 A Take it from hard right to hard left and time the 

20 movement. it is supposed to be within a certain range, ~ 

21 number of seconds. 25 seconds or something like that. 

22 Q What's supposed to be within a certain range? 

23 A The movement of the rudder. 

24 Q What is supposed to be timed, from the minute that 

25 you make the turn until the rudder gets there? 
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A I would take it from-- it's typically left at 

2 midship. I'd take it to hard right, from hard right and ther. 

3 swing it all the way to hard left and time it. 

4 Q Is there a on the console in front of you is 

5 there something that you can watch that will show you not cr.l~ 

6 the wheel turn but also the rudder angle? 

7 A Yes, there is a rudder angle indicator. For the 

B gear test I don't normally look at the screen. I watch the 

9 one thut is u; for~~rd of me. 

10 Q Well, ~aybe you could 

:t's somewhere up here. I think it might be this. 

12 Yeah, it's that. 

Q This c~c right here? 

lJ A Yes. 

1s 1 Q Okay. 

Okay, after -- i2 there an alar~ that goes cff at 

17 c.ll? Is there any alar~s en this in case the rudder 

18 command:· 

19 I think that if -- I believe there is a -- I can't -

20 - it's been a while since I've worked with this. I know therE 

21 are alarms over on the lefthand part of this unit for pump 

22 failure and circuit failures. I don't know if that non-follo~ 

23 up alarm is included in this or not. 

24 Q After testing the hard right, hard left, what do you 

. '!5 What did you do? 
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A That would be -- for each pump I would do that. And 

2 also on each pump the emergency steering. 

3 Q What do you mean by that? 

4 A The emergency steering? 

5 Q Yes. 

6 A There's a little rocker switch here that moves --

7 actually i don't know, that is probably a separate system, 

B separate pump. 

9 Q Okay. You've --

:t's ~ight h~rG. 

:1 b~~ that's the instrument directly above the 

12 I starbo~rd and por~ pu~p systc~. 

1: 
i: 
I 

1.! 

'c 1.) 

16 

17 

1 E 

19 

20 

A Yes. 

Q And it's a little push--

A It's kind of a rocker switch. 

C And that ~= in case the other two brc~k do~~: 

. 
r-. That's correct. 

Ol:&:-i. 

What did you do then after that? 

A That might not have been the first thing that I did. 

21 I would typically go up and turn the radars on -- they're on -

22 - we leave them on stand-by. Power them up, let them warm u~. 

23 Call the engineer, takes him a few minutes to get back. I'd 

24 start some other checks. Check the navigation lights, the 

25 whistles, and --



Q Whistles? What whistles? 

2 A Well, our sound signalling whistles. 

3 Q Would you explain that to the jury? 

4 A They're just whistles. If we're making maneuvers 

5 and certain maneuvers require certain signals, sound sig~~:5, 

6 that is what that's for. 

7 Q What else would you check up on the bridge in t~is 

8 gear test? 

9 A Just about everything is checked. The electrc~~: 

10 navigation is checked. The course recorder. 
I 

11 I 

I Q The electronic navigation. Now what do you m~&n LJ 

12 II t~e electronic navigation? 

13 1 A Well, the SATUAV and the LORAN, you know, they' 1·e 

14 turned on. You're not -- probably haven't gotten a fix up 

15 there anyway since we've been there, at least on the SATilJ.V. 

16 And the LORJ..H doesn't corr.c ir. real strong ir. that area. for us. 

17 But you at least set it up on the right -- on the right c~=:~. 

1 s : 1~ u. l: c s u 1: .o: t h o. t t r. c :: r. a r t s - - t h c I; r opE. r c h a r t :::; a r c c u :. , 

19 type of thing. 

20 Q What about the gyros, do you check those? 

21 A You check the gyros. 

22 Q What do you do when you're checking that? 

23 A You go back and take a look at the master gyro. We 

24 know what the dock heading is and you go back and take a look 

?5 at the master gyros and two small gyros sitting right back in 
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this corner. 

2 Q And they actually have a digital number readout 

3 there? 

4 A Well, it's not a digital -- not, it's analog I guess 

5 is what you would call it. Then you would check all the 

6 repeaters and you have repeaters up here, you have repeaters 

7 on both bridge wings. Also the course recorder is set to make 

8 sure that the heading on the course recorder is correct. 

9 Q And the course recorder is located where agai~? 

10 A Right here. 

11 Q Ho~ about the chronometer. 

12 watches? 

13 A Yes. I don't --we do -- we check the chronometers 

14 every day and chronometers typically will have some type of 

15 continual gain or loss and they are important instruments b~t 

16 they ty~ically ~s~ the SATNAV informaticn that dis~lays time 

17 that is highly accurate. And I coordinate, :rou k:::.c:~.·, r:•::r· ti~(;S 

f~c~ that n~! there's net ....... -., -... 
............... J: tLe course recorder, thcr~':.. 18 

19 another digital clock here, my personal clock. 

20 Q How about the communications systems on board. De 

21 you check those? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q What do you do to do that? 

24 A You use -- especially communicating with the engine 

25 room, you use not· only our regular telephone system, but you 
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use the sound powered telephones which are located over her~ 

2 on this console. 

3 Q Would you explain to the jury how those work? He~ 

4 you call somebody up on those. 

5 A Well, we have a regular telephone system on board 

6 that is much like what you would find in your home. The scu~= 

7 powered are different in that you don't dial anything, you 

a pick it up and crank. And sound powered is just what it is. 

9 You speak loudly through it. 

10 Ki~~ cf a last resort type thing? 

11 A Well, it's not necessarily a last ~esort. 

12 usu~lly what ycu used to find on most ships. But they arc 

13 more than adequate for communicating. Also we have a c~cct 

15 Q How about the fathometer? What is that? 

16 A What is that'? 

17 Q Yeah, what i~ it? 

18 ~hat graph~c~lly disrlays the depth ~f w~tc~ 

19 underneath your keel. There's a transducer up in, I believe 

20 it was in the bow -- I am not sure if our's are on the bow or 

21 back aft, I don't recall right now but it transmits pulses 

22 and the pulses bounce off the bottom and it calculates th2 

23 time and therefore gives you the --

24 Q Where would that have been on the bridge? 

25 A Well, this is a digital readout right here. That is 
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actually a part of this back -- it is actually mounted on th~s 

2 bulkhead is the fathograph and what that does is just give y~~ 

3 a visual display of the depth. 

4 Q Does it have an alarm? 

5 A Yes, it does. 

6 Q What is the alarm for? 

7 A You preset the alarm usually at the master's 

8 discretion, at some depth that would give you a warning th~t 

9 1 you are: getting into wats:::.-s that ycu ought to 1::..: alarmed 
II 

1D j! about. 

11 

12 

13 

15 

17 

19 at. 

20 

Q 

Q 

.. 
.n 

Q 

.., 
r. 

Q 

Dij you set that that evening? 

I didn't set it, but I tested it, yes. 

You tested it and it was working? 

Yes, as I recall . 

Did you set the alarm at a depth, a certain depth~ 

I;::, ::: de~.' t recall that I set a d:;:~J:-.. T:.r;.,~c~lly, 

yc~ kno~:, i~ Prince Willi~~ Sound there is sc ~~ct 

About what time would then have -- is this all t~c 

21 tasks that you are doing up here on the gear test? 

22 A Well, the radars are turned on, tuned. I said the 

23 lights, the whistle, synchronizing all our clocks. That's --

24 yeah, that's --

15 Q Would you do any special tests to see whethc~ the 

I 
I 

I 
" 
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radars were working properly? 

2 A yeah, that's what we were doing when we turn them on 

3 and tune them. 

4 Q Do you lock onto a point or something like that? 

5 How would you tune it? 

6 A Oh, okay. Well, I'll try not to use technical terffis 

7 because I get confused by them myself at times, but 

8 essentially you have a gain a gain in a tune, and yo~ ~ct 

9 thE rad~r en a, as I recall these things, tun~d on a t~clv~ 

10 mile scale. And you have land mass all around yo~. Yo~ h~v= 

11 very dEfinite points of land that you can identify on tt~ 

12 chart. You should get the same representation lootin~ at 

13 radar. 

14 Q What would it look like when you looked i~tc ttcsc 

15 radars? What would the land show up as? De you re~e~~:r the 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

.. 
n 

Q 

:t's a pale, yellowish green. 

r: it's tuned properly, yes . 

So you were talking about you identified the land 

21 masses on the radar and compare them to the charts? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q So what time -- I may have asked this, but I can't 

24 remember your answer. What time would you have been done then 

25 that evening with these gear tests? 



A Again, I'll have to refer to this. I remember 

2 something like 2248, that was the actual time that I finishc~ 

3 the gear test. 

4 Q Okay. 

5 A But I would imagine that I had a few other thing~ ~~ 

6 do. So it was shortly after that. 

7 (Pause.) 

8 1948, excuse me. 

9 Q 1948? 

10 1. 1943 was 

11 Q Who was up on the bridge when you got that ~inishc~? j 

12 1. No one. 

13 Q So you were just up there by yo~rself? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q And what did you do after you got done? 

16 A Once we get the gear tested an~ the pu~ps -- ttL 

17 steering gear pu~ps are on, we remain up there, waitin; 

18 the pilot to arrive. Basically once you'v~ gc~ -- c~:c 

19 have things going up there, you just can't leave it 

20 unattended. Also we had a containment boom strung around the 

21 ship and the engineers couldn't turn their engines over for 

22 fear of getting this caught up in the screw, so --

23 Q Excuse me. What's a containment boom? 

24 A Well, I don't know exactly what it's made of, but it 

25 a boom that they just string around the ship in case w~ have a 
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spill. 

2 Q Basically it just floats on top of the water? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q And a little bit below? 

5 Yes. 

6 Q And the reason that you have it so that if oil le~ts 

7 out, the oil rises to the surface and it keeps it in a certain 

a area? 

9 A That's ccrrect. 

l G :: t~is evenin~ you're standing up on tt~ ~rid~~. 

11 Wher. ::..:: thE: first tintE; somebody came up and jcinE:C. yc;.;. c::-. t.l-.~.. 

13 A I believe that was the pilot. l.r.d I dor.' t b:::::r,~ what 

14 tirrc th~t was. 20~0, pilot aboard. So it was shortly aftE:~ 

15 that that he would have gotten up to thG brid;~. 

16 

17 

'" ·: 

19 

.. -

1. 

And :020 ccnvE:rted to twelve ho~r ti~e is: 

!.bout 8:20. 

I just remained on the bridge. I was listening tc 

20 weather reports for the Sound and the Gulf of Alaska. 

21 Q Who was the next person that came up on the bridge? 

22 A I don't know if it was the agent or the Captain. 

23 Q Who was the agent? Do you remember who that would -

24 

A I can't remember. All I remember is her nickname, 
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but I don't know her. 

2 Q She was a woman? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Did you speak with her at all that evening? 

5 A I may have said hello or something. 

6 Q Were you replaced at some time up on the bridge? 

7 A Yes. Just prior to starting our un docking, the 

B chief mate relieved me so I could go down to my station. 

9 And whc~ you say your station, wh~t arc yc~ 

10 

11 Our undocr:ing. Do:::Y..ing, undoc}:i:u.g sta:::;..:.:-., be.::;: 

12 

Q And so you go to the back aft. Was t~erc an~thc~ 

14 ~&te thnt was cut c~ the deck? 

15 '!\ ., Yes. The second mate would do the forward c-~ 

16 c ALd wh3t were your responsibilities during tt~: 

17 process? 

18 , 
.n 

19 winch ccntrcls and bringing the wires back on board. 

20 Q Who was working with you in the aft area, de 

21 remember? 

22 A Maureen Jones, Robert Kagan, and I believe it mar 

23 have been Paul Radtke. 

24 Q When in the undocking process do you return back up 

?5 did you retur~ back up tc the bridge? Maybe I rnis -- said 



that wrong. When did you return up to the bridge? 

2 A Again I would have to refer to the -- act~ally I 

3 would probably need the bell book to tell you exactly, ycu 

4 know, with a -- within reason. 

5 (Pause.) 

6 Q Is that what you're looking for? 

7 A Yes. 

8 (Pause.) 

9 At 2151. 

10 Q Ol:ay. So t~~t wc~ld be about 9:51 th~t e7c~~~g yc~ 

12 Yes. 

13 Q And where w~s the ship when you returned to the 

14 bridge? Where w~s it heading? Well, it was heading tcwar~= 

15 Valde;: NarroHs. 

16 Q Now, when you cane on the bridge -- bacl: u~ ~~ th~ 

17 bridge, who was ther~? 

1 r 
' ~ 

19 mate. 

20 

21 

22 

l ... 

Q 

A 

Q 

The r:::rt::i:~, the 

Who was the helmsman? 

I believe it was Paul Radtke. 

And when you came on board, what was the reason for 

23 you coming up on the bridge? 

24 A Well, that was my regular watch. 

25 Q Now, while the pilot was on board, what were your 
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responsibilities during that time? 

2 A I Hould be taking the engine orders, also monitori~; 

3 the progress of the vessel, observing the helmsman, making 

4 sure the commands are followed. 

5 Q When you take engine orders, do you write that do~~ 

6 in the bell log? 

7 A Well, not the -- the bell book, yeah. 

8 Q Bell book. 

9 A Yes. 

) 0 ,.... T arr. going to )e. .... ask ::iO'-' to -- there arc cert.::i:~ ~:"'ec}: 

~1 I mar}~s -chat yc~ make i;:-.. -chis bell bock, are.-.'t there? 

12 Yes. It is kind of a shorthand fer Hhat the c~d~~s 

13 a~e. 

14 Q Ol:ay. 

15 Wo~ld yo~ explain, maybe write these doHn, the check 

16 rr.arks, and what tr.ey me<:n, sc that if somebody wast:: ::!..:-:::1: ;::;t 

17 that they co~ld undcrs t and. 

18 

19 

. ·-
Q 

VL-h"c:r .. 

Maybe you could start Hith slow ahead. 

20 mark for slow ahead? 

21 A You want me to --

22 (Pause.) 

What's 

23 Q And are those -- those notations are then kept i~ 

24 the bell book there that you have in order to keep track of 

25 what orders were given at what time? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q Now is there an instrument on the vessel its~lf ... \.. - ..... 

3 keep track of this also? 

4 A Yeah, the bell logger in the engine room. Thes~ a~c 

5 only ahead commands. Astern commands are reversed. 

6 Q Okay. 

7 So in other words, maybe you could just give the 

B jury an idea of what a reverse sign looks like up there. 

9 

10 

I 11 ,I 
I, 

12 II 

A 

Just a check the opposite way? 

Just -- that's it. 

(Pause.) 

When the Captain arrived on the -- do you rc~crbcr 

13 when he ar~ived on ths bridge that evening, before yo~ 

14 undo eked? 

15 A No, I don't know what time it was. 

16 Q Do you remember him a~ri ving at so:r:.c: p::int? 

1:' ? 

'r 
IC 

19 
? 
.n I re~e~bcr he had a long navy blue coat o~, and a 

20 cap. 

21 Q Would you describe for the jury 

22 A Thanks. 

23 Q -- what kind of cap he had? 

24 A Navy blue wool cap. 

7.5 Q Was it a baseball hat or was it a s to::J:in;; cap or --
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2 Oh, I don't know. I guess it was a Long Isl&~= 

3 sailor's cap. I wouldn't know exactly how to describe it. 

4 wasn't a wool ski cap, it was a --

5 Q Flat? High? 

6 A It was kind of flat. 

7 Q Small? Large? 

8 A Small. 

Q Did .; .. h2ve brir.ls? - '-
9 

1 c 'J;. He brims. 

THE COURT: Mr. Cole, this might be a gcod ~:~;-

1~' II us tc tal:·:. our breal~. 
,, 

I 

MR. COLE: Yeah, that's fine. 

TH[. C:'JVRT: We'll take our first 
,_-'l: ____ _, 

.... c.. ....... _·..;..;_ ~··-

T._ ..... '-

15 I gentlemen. Please dor.' t discuss this case amcr.g yc:.:.::::::.l·;e:: :l­
d 

16 witt any otter persc~. Don't form or express any opinic~~-

17 r:::-:rr: CI.,Ef~~:: Please rise. This court ::::t::.nd:: i:. 

1s I :.::.c=-== 

19 (;,. recess was taken fran 10:23 c 'clccl: a.::: .. 

20 10:51 o'clock a.m.) 

21 THE COURT: Thank you, you may be seated. 

22 DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed) 

23 BY HR. COLE: (Resuming} 

24 Q Mr. Cousins, when we left off we were discussing the 

25 voyage out through the port of Valdez. 
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A Yes. 

2 Q You were at the throttle at that time? 

3 A Yeah, I was the watch officer. 

4 Q Would you have been -- what were -- would the ~~lot 

5 have been talking directly to the helmsman during this ti~0, 

6 or would he have been going through you? 

7 

8 

9 th~ 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

? 
.t1 

Q 

He would give the commands to the helmsman. 

Did the vessel go on autonatic pilot when it w~c --

at 

Whut happened -- was -- d~d anyt~~~g of ~~; 

12 significance ha~~~~ while the tanker was passing c~t c: 

13 port cf Valdez and beginning to enter the Na~rows? 

1. 

·~ 

15 transit. 

Q 

17 Nc:.rrows? 

' - ' Is I 

19 Q 

It was fer ~:: intents and purposes a fai~ly rc~~~~: 

you rc~0mbcr when the tanker arrivcj 

We were at Entrance Island at 2220. Twelve ~inutc: 

20 later at Middle Rock in the Harrows. That's -- Entrance 

21 Island is pretty much the beginning of the Narrows. 

22 Q Maybe you could point out where Entrance Island or 

23 Entrance Point is? 

24 Okay. 

· ~ And Middle Rock? 
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A Right here. 

2 Q And that would have been at 2220 which would 

3 what time, twenty-four hour time? 

4 A 10:20. 

5 Q Was Captain Hazelwood on the bridge when you w~~t 

6 through there? 

7 A Not at that time, no. 

8 Q When did the left the bridge? 

9 ]. Oh, perhaps ten minutes earlier, fiftee~ ~i~~tes 

10 earlic:.:-. I -- I don't recall specifically. That's a pr~tty 

11 :Ciir c::t:..:-:-.::.tc, I'd say. 

12 Q Ten to twenty minutes before the thing tha~ yc~ have 

13 down fer 2220 at Entrance Island? 

14 > .n. Ton ~in~tes, fifteen minutes, yeG. 

15 i Q Now, ho•: about the passage through the Narro1:.:.. 

16 1 Anythin~ occur at that of any significance? 

17 

13 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

.. .. 

' .r-. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

l:c. Rc:1tine. 

I believe Paul Radtke was. 

And what time did the vessel reach Potato Point~ 

Potato Point at 2253, 10:53. 

Can you point to the jury where Potato Point is: 

It's right here. 

At some point around there did the -- did the watc~ 

25 the lookout come in from the bow? 



A Yes. We changed out but I don't recall when it w~s 

2 exactly. It wouldn't have been -- we wouldn't have done ~: ~~ 

3 the narrows. 

4 Q What's the procedure for that to occu~? How did 

5 that happc;r.? 

6 A On this -- on this particular vessel, when we arc 

7 not in the midst of a maneuver or if there is not any traffic 

8 around, we will call the bow lookout back and switch out the 

9 helmsman. The helmsman will then perhaps grab a cup cf cof~c: 

1C il ~nd head up tc th(.; bov;. 

11 I, Does the lockout come 1L aL~ 
!! 

R~l~E~(.;S the helmsm~n. 

13 Q -- take a break? 

1 ~ i 
' 

Yes, fo1· a brc~L. ,, ,, 

15 
1\ 

Q 

1 t 1: b~eaJ.:? 

Who's out on the lookout during the time he is 

1' ~ 
J:>. Thcr~ is no !ockcut. 

E X .f.r .. :! c:..:: F::: ,. __ _ .. ·-

case? 

19 callEd ~L at some point from the bow? 

20 A That's correct. 

21 Q Who called him in. 

22 A I may have. It seems that I had asked the CapLain 

23 about if this is a good time to do that, and I believe I was 

24 the one that communicated with Claar. 

25 Q Where was the Captain when you asked him? 

-=----~ 



!_ A He would have been on the bridge. 

2 Q And what time would this have been? 

3 A My recollection on the time is not that good. It 

4 seems that we changed out after the pilot -- before the pil~t 

5 got off. 

6 Q Well, do you remember the pilot asking you to call 

7 the Captain and to come up from his quarters up to the bridge? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q When would that have occurred? 

10 A That would have been before we reached Potato F',....: ·- .,_ 
- ..._ •• - I 

11 perhaps five cr six minutes before thDt. 

12 I Narrc"V~·s as I recall. 

13 Q When the Captain carne up? 

14 1. Whe~ I gave hirn the call. 

I .'"I 

:: II 
:.:. 

~ r. 

When did he reach the bridge? 

I believe just as we were reaching P~~atc Pc~~:. 
I' 

il 
I 

17 

I 
,.... 
1.::: 

18 

Sc that would have been around --

19 Q ~id -- when the Captain returned tG the br~dgc • -... - ,j.. 

20 evening, did he have a conversation with the pilot? 

21 A He may have. I really wasn't paying attention, s~ -

22 

23 Q What were you doing during that? 

24 A Well, I would have been standing by the telegraph 

25 ~:hich the radar is right there -- it's kind of rr.:r wc:::.-J: statio:-. 
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watching the course being steered. 

2 Q What's the telegraph again? 

3 A That's the engine order telegraph. A change of --

4 Q Can you point to that for the jury? 

5 A That's right here. 

6 Q Were you overseeing the helmsman at that ti~c 

7 A Yes, I would keep an eye on his steering. 

8 Q What about when the tanker was going through the 

9 Narrc'<:s? J.':::. ·...:. overs s E.::.:-.;; the he lrr.sman a:. the.-: t :;.r;.::..: 

10 Y<:Os. 

11 
I Q :.~:::. •:h:::t vwul::i you exactly do? If an ordo·, a 
I 

12 I! steering ord~~ was given, what would you physica:ly d::..? 

13 A I would stand and observe whether t~e crder was 

1-l e}:ecu ted. If the:-::: was ;: command given to come 

15 course tc steer, I wculd watch tc see if in fact he did that. 

16 Q And you say, an order to 

cou~-s ..... , would the jury an ide:: ~:hat you ' r e t a l }: i ::-.; 

13 T - +-· ' ,.... 

19 direction of 180 degrees. What kind of an order would -

20 helmsman expect to hear then, if they wanted to turn t= ::c: 

21 A Depending on the pilots preference, what he needed 

22 to do, he could give him a rudder command and then tell him to 

23 steady up on a course of 220. 

24 Q Can you just give the jury an example of what the 

25 pilot would say? 



A For example, 20 right and steady up en :-2-0. 

2 Q What would you look at to make sure that that 

3 occurred? 

4 A The rudder angle indicator. 

5 Q Which rudder angle indicator? 

6 A Well, if I am standing here, there is one right 

7 above where I am standing. I believe that is it right there. 

s I can watch that. You have a pretty good view of this one 

9 also. I tend to usually like to look forwarG. 

10 (S~art Ta~e C-3613) 

11 

12 \ car..e true up en the heading? 

13 A There's a digital repeater up en thi~ b~ard he~c. 

15 Q Which one would it be here? 

Can y~~ tell the jury, what is a repeater? Digit~: 

17 repeater? What d8cs that ~ean? 

1 e . .. ..,...._ . -

19 is not a gyr~. It just tells you what the gyr~ where :~·: 

20 heading. 

21 Q Now, why is it so important for you to watch over 

22 the helmsman to make sure the steering orders are followed? 

23 A Usually the pilot would pick it up anyway, but 

24 something were not being done that he had ordered -- but 

25 usually in the circu~stances that we find ourselves tryi~; ~c 
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maneuver a sti~. seconds can make a great deal of diff~=~~:~. 

2 The pilot is usually standing up forward looking out ttc 

3 window. I would catch it maybe a little bit quicker, cc~rc:: 

4 the error. 

5 Q Is it difficult to steer a vessel, I mean, to 

6 physically turn the rudder, the steering wheel to cause th~ 

7 rudder? 

8 A No, very simple. 

9 Q Why then is there so much concern o~er watching~ 

10 Becaus~ it's critical. It's not diffic~lt b~t 

11 its.::lf not difficu:: but :.o 

12 directi0n that the shi~ is going tc take. 

1? Q Now, as the pilot got ready to leave, wh~: did yo~ 

1 ~ do then 

15 I escort the pilot down to the pilot ladder, give a 

161! quick check of the pilot ladder, ma}~e sure it.'s .sc:~:::~. and 

17 stand by there with -- usually we have an AE stan~~n; 

1. .......... , . 15 ... 1.. - • ............... .._ It;_,_. 

19 That's correct. 

20 Q Does the ship slow down or speed up during that 

21 time? 

22 It would slow down. 

23 Q And did you -- about what time did you go down tc 

24 assist the pilot off the boat? Off the tanker? 

25 A We have, pilot is logged off at 23:4, so take::: 
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maybe three or four minutes to get down there. 

2 Q Did you have any problems disembarking the pilot 

3 that evening? 

4 A No. 

5 Q And after the pilot disembarks, what did you do: 

6 A Paul Radtke and I stow the pilot ladder, cradled the 

7 crane, and I returned to the bridge and Paul went back up t2 

8 the bow. 

9 Q When you get to the bridge then, whc 1f:.:.!: or.. ~'- .. , 

10 bridge? 

11 The ~as~c~ and H~rry Cla~~-

12 What did you do then whe~ you gc~ ~; tc the t~id;c? 

13 I recall going tc the st~rbo~~~ radar. At that tiffic 

14 the Captain tcld me tc gc get a fix right nc-;.;. I went cut cr. 

15 to the starboard bridge wing. As I recall I took two vi=ual 

16 sights, cc.:-:-.c:: bu.cl~ in and get a rangE.. We had just -- en the 
i 

17 i la::t 

1: .. \-1- - .. 
I ·----

si;ht ~c ha~ just startc~ the turn. 

-- ,__ - ~ .: .- .,.. 
-. .;......_...,-~.cw._ _ .. ~ 

------,.. . .,._ 
-· ................ 4,~ '--

19 went into the chart roo~. plotted that fi~. Came back to thE. 

20 radar, the starboard radar, ten centimeter radar. The Capta:~ 

21 

22 Q Let's stop right there because you said a lot right 

23 there. 

24 I'd like you to talk about how you take a fix. 

25 gc out -- in this case you talked about going out on the 



starboard wing. 

2 A That's correct. 

3 Q Okay. What do you do when you get out on the 

4 starboard wing? 

5 A At the repeater we have -- on the repeater we h~vc 

6 something that we mount on there called an azimuth circle. 

7 Q Okay. 

8 A What that is is a graduated circle and it has two 

9 sight v&r.~s en it. And it's --

10 .,.. 
I 

What's a sight vane? 
I 

1 ~ I 
, 

II .r. 

12 Q Scnsthin; you look down? 

13 A Yeah, ycu look through it. It's l:ind of like 

14 loo}:i::; sighting down the barrel of a rifle in a sen~--

15 One of the vanes has a very thin piece of wire. The other's 

16 J:ind of like a peephole that you would look u-.::..·o~gh. 

17 Q Okay. 

13 

19 Yc.~. 

20 Q What do you look at? 

21 A In this instance I --

22 Q You can refer to the map. 

23 A -- ~ took a visual sight of this buoy and as I 

24 recall the Busby Island Light. 

- '!5 Q Now when you say you took a visual sight of thosE, 
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~h~t does that mean? 

... .. Thut means I aligned the azimuth circle up and 

3 sight~d the light through the sight vanes. And that 

4 Q And what does that tell you? 

5 Well, that gives me a bearing from my pcsitioL t: 

6 the light. 

7 Q When you say a bearing, can you explain what yc~ 

8 mean by that to the jury? 

A Fro:-:'. -- I the -- ... 

10 tr . .t:: }:t.;~ring was tc I say I this buoy, but frcr:~ sa~~ it was 

11 2 - 2 - 5 I i r. o t h u· from where I am standing Hordsl .I-~ 

c 0:-:'.C. 
":"'.,. ......... __ , ........... ..,_ ...... _t::: .......... _ .......... _ '--'-'- ~. 12 

13 Q So let's say yo~ were -- let's give a~ cxa~~le th~~ 

.J,..- c .. 
, ..:; +- ..... ., . 
..... ............. -.. ....... bi~ c~sier. 14 

15 \!Feint Light and ycu were heading in the southtcund lane. 

16 •:culd J..-. :register out on the port side whc:-: ::r·cu ::i.ccl:c:": .:.. : 

17 ~ 9C degrees less thu.r. you are he~din;; -'• . 
--

::1":~~s less t..l.ur~ }." cu art.:.. ~ - ' ..... .J . ·. 
~-

- ....... n ....... ._ ... ,...., 
~ "' ............... """" ......... ~ '-IC 

19 becausE whe~ ycu are abeam you are perpendicular 

20 That's correct. 

21 Q Now, once you take these two bearings, what do 

22 do? What did you do? 

23 A I recall ... also took a range. J.. 

24 Q A range? How do you take a range? 

25 l. Frorr. the 

TTl - .._ 
~ \ .. -~ -

y~·· 
~ ~ 
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Q Well, let's start a little bit -- what do yc~ ~can 

2 whe~ you say e range? 

3 A A distance. 

4 Q And how do you take a distance measurement? 

5 A From the radar. It is outfitted with ~ little 

6 device called a variable range marker. What it is is l:in~ c: 

7 like a thumb wheel that expands or contracts a circle or. 

s radar screen. 

9 1, Does it have a -- is there a little dot ~-

10 thE red~r where yc~r ship is located? 
II 

1 i I' 

I 
I 

12 
I 

Q And then are there circles around that that you c~~ 

13 I 
move in and cut? 

1' 
14 those are -- there arc fi~ed ra~;-No. 

IS and the other is the variable range marker. 

16 Mayb~ i~ I got you to draw that, the circl~~ ~ro~~~ 

17 th( thing, that might be a little help. 

I c r-.,.. 
v .......... j'...:ry an idea cf ~;hat it lc:..J::: :~;~ 

19 when ycu look through the radar and you're -- the circle, 

20 range finder that you just talked about. 

21 A That's the center of the screen. You have fixed 

22 range rings that you can dim or brighten as whatever your 

23 preference. But as I recall there's six of them and they 

24 would look something like this. Actually a little bit 

25 anyway, you would have six of these fixed range rings. 

.. '1- ' ._ .... ;... 
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A variable range marker, if you took it de~~ t~ 

2 and started up with it, saying heading for six miles, yc~ 

3 would see a circle or a line originate here and expand cut 

4 ward like this. Of course, as it moves, this disappear~ -~-. _ .... 
....... _- ... 4.. 

5 you finally have a circle. And you can move this circle 

6 whatever range you want. These don't -- the fixed range 

7 are fixed. They don't change. Only the scale will change. 

8 If this is on a six mile range, then each one of these rings 

9 would represent one milE. If it was a twelve mile range, they 

10 would represent increments of two miles between ring~. 

11 

12 

13 Q What you would do then is you would ~ick u~ -

would see the b~cy and then you . ' .... .a.J,\,; 14 or• ::,:· o'..:.r :::a dar 

15 ring -- tht::; variable ring to a point where yow. cou:::..-:: dct;:::;~.~;~~ 

16 

17 I don't think that -- if you'::~ rcfc~=~~; 

19 Q Just generally. 

20 A Yeah. 

21 Q And then with the -- when do you look at your cloct? 

22 At your watch? During this process? 

23 A At the time of the fix. 

24 Q At the time of the fix? 

25 l. Yes. 
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Q When you're putting it down or when you're c~: 

2 the wing? 

3 A When I'm out on the wing. 

4 Q You just hold your hand up something like this wheL 

s you're looking through it? 

6 A Yeah, I'd take the sights real quick and I' 11 locl~ 

7 at my watch. By the time I have gotten into the radar --

s normally you'd set up your range in advance so you don't ha~c 

c tc wast: 2LY ti~c finding the range on whatever you're ... --
10 want a distance to. So you may have lost maybe a sec~Ld v~ 

11 two, but no morE. 

12 Q :-{ou went bacl: to th<:; chart roorr. 

13 your range, and what do you de in the ch~rt reo~? 

1 j 

1 ~ 
I 

I' 
16 :yc~ 

17 

,, 
IC 

19 

20 

A You plc'.: the fi::. 

' .. 

A 

to the jury -- w~at i~st~u~~nts 

The:-; hav:.o triangular protractors 

And de you have anything that draws a curve there~ 

Compasses. Just compasses. These are dividers =~~ 

21 compasses are very similar except one leg has a piece of le~~-

22 Q Now in a compass, how would you find out ho'l' 

23 would you use the cocipass to draw your arc for the range frc~ 

24 a particular point? 

If so~cthing was, say, five miles away, you w~uld go 
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to your scale, find five miles. Pick out the point of la~~ 

2 that you measured the distance, and just draw an arc. 

3 Q And that arc, on a compass it would have a pencil? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q And then you could draw just kind of a partial - .,.- -
a. ... - . 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q And then how do you determine the angle that you 

8 come out from that point? In other words, place yourself on 

9 that ar~. How do you do that? 

10 Well, you hav~ ~o -- if you take a bearing off this 

11 buoy using th~ p~ot~~ctor, wh~tever you have si~tte~ ou: 

12 the repeater, using a meridian in a tria~gul~~ ~rctracto~= 

13 that we have c~ bc~rd, ~easurc the angle. 

14 Sc ycu did all this and you tccl~ a -- you actually 

15 
1 

plotted that. Do you remember what the time you wrote down en 

16 tl:.u.t plc..<;:. v;as '? 

~1~:1, i.t.'.:; r.ct in the -- let'~ s~;;e, in 1 7 ;. .. 

12 \ ,_ - ~, 
I ,A...ol......, .......... • 

the; 

ar.d. 
_, . .. 

\o.o4...t..-•• \.,.. 

19 get logged. 

20 Q Okay. 

21 If I showed you a copy of the original chart, would 

22 that refresh your recollection? 

23 A 2339 comes to mind. I think that is probably pretty 

24 close. 

75 (Pause.) 



Q Does that refresh your recollection 

2 A Yes. 2J39, yes. 

3 Q Now, 2339 would have been the time that you were 

4 doing -- where would you have been physically at 2339? 

5 A That's the time that I had finished th.s two sig~.~-. 

6 Q So you were out on the bridge wing? 

7 A Take the two sights 

8 Q The starboard wing? 

9 A Yes, right. 

Q And th.:n you came ir •. And then what happened - ... --.......... ._..__ 10 

'' I I Aft~~ y~~ 9~~ through plotting thcs~ --

12 I returned to the starboard radar, assessin~ what 

13 lay befcrc us. That's -- I saw the ice on -- I saw ice en 

14 radar prior to getting 

15 said we're g~~ng tc divc~t around the ice. 
I 

16 What ~~s th~ starboard radar set Q - .._ 
Q • I l:E::: . .:: .. 

17 b'"' ,, ? '-'•· 

12 -- - . - \ - -- .- - - .., 

19 Is it com~on to use the radar at a greater distanc~ 

20 than twelve or twenty-four miles? 

21 A Greater than? 

22 Q Yeah. 

23 A Ir. that area? 

24 Q No, more than those. 

-~ 
.. In that area? .n. 
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Q Year •. 

2 A There's no need to. 

3 Q And when you had seen the ice initially, where --

4 what did you see on the radar. You said you had seen the icc 

5 prior? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q When was that? 

8 A In the process of taking this fix, I noticed what 

9 tc 1:<:. iceo in cf us a nu~tc~ of mileos. I 

10 don't remember th~ range exactly. But I -- the C~ptai~ 

.... - -.. -
I.,.Q .... ~ a fL,: . I didn't hav.;; tir .. .;. tc s tar.d th<::.~ ... 

12 anJ study the radar looking at the icc. I waz fcllowing th~ 

13 Ca~tain's orders. 

Hherc v;as th.:; Captain when yoti were doing all th::.::;; 

15 Taking thE fix? 

Ye::;. 

17 H~ was standing in front of the co~s:lc, 

-~- .--., ., 
"'-._._. ............. 18 

19 Q Can yo~ point to that? 

20 A Here. He was, I believe, between here and he~:. 

21 was walking back and forth. 

22 Q Was he in a position to see the rudder angle in-

23 dicator and the heading indicator? 

24 A Yes. 

25 Q Who would have been watching the helmsman duri~; 
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tLis tiffi£ to make sure that ~as following the instruc~ions ••• 

2 the turning? 

3 A The Captain. 

4 Q You weren't able to do it during that time beca~s~ 

5 why? 

6 A 

7 Q 

8 A 

10 ,, C:aptai:-.. 

11 ,, 

Ill da::l: 

, .. 

Taking the fix. 

What -- what happens then after that? 

After the plot? We've turned? 

The:1 you -- you have a convc~saticn 

to visually sight tL~ i~;i... 

I knew there ~as practically no chanc~ cf 

13 ice, but give it a shot. 

1 A He~ di~ ycu de that? 

1 s Well, with binoculars and with thE naked eye. 

l c m-.e:ri:: cid ycu gc tc. do this? 

17 I w~s in~idc and I had also stepped juGt 

1Q \...--~-~~- ~--· 
)~._, .,;-.-.~..A.-:;'-..,; ........ ._ ............ 

_,, .... ,_,.: ...:J­_ .... "'"'_~ ........ ._ 

tt.::. 

19 Q What was the weather like at -- during -- about that 

20 time? 

21 A I recall, misty. It had cleared some. I recall i~ 

22 was almost a light rain, very misty night. As we approache~ 

23 the Narrows, it seemed to clear up for a while, and then i: 

24 got misty again. 

25 Q So it was a little bit tough at the beginning and 



theu cleared u~ and then --

2 A Cleared out and then it misted up again. 

3 Q Were you able to see anything, any of the ice wh(..:. 

4 you tried to attempt a visual? 

5 
. 
n No, I couldn't. 

6 Q How about the seas? Were there any heavy swells 

7 during that time? 

8 A No. Calm seas. 

..,, ,_ 

9 Q While you were gene, was the vessc: -- you i~!ic~tc~ 

10 that it had slowed dowu. Did it get p~t u~ tc :~ll 

11 1 maneuvering sp~c~ ~t sowc point? 

12 A Yes. At 2324 ~G went bact u~ to ahead 

13 manc~vcri:::-.;;. 

14 Q Did you put the throttle ahead at th~: ti::-~(.. :· 

15 ~ No, T was do\-n·. on deck. The Captain did that. .... . 
16 " !: O\; VJOUl~ y~ .. describe what happcri-:...:: ~-l~cr. --=- yo-..:. "' "'~ u ... ~......::..::-

17 have tal:e:r. yo-..:.::.- :fi::>: and the Captain has told y;:u his 

18 ·- , ,. .... l - ... 4 c.... ...... ,;.,Jl_. ....... J. ...... I.. ~, ...... ;.... 

19 discussed at that point? 

20 Not at that point. I was checking to ScG how th~~ 

21 maneuver was going to progress and that entailed checking the 

22 extent of the ice and with those ranges I went back and just 

23 did a quick check -- a check on the chart. When I returLcd to 

24 the forward part of the bridge, the Captain said that he had 

25 contacted -- I think I initiated the conversation. I said you 
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want mE to call traffic, and he said I already talked to the~. 

2 Q Why did you ~ention -- why did you ask him about 

3 that? 

4 A Well, I didn't know if he had called him yet. That 

5 is standard procedure that you do call. I was just checl:ir .. ;; 

6 to see whether, you know, I should call him or if he wanted to 

7 talk to him. 

8 Q Now you indicated just a minute ago you were 

9 ::; .. ecking to -- ~-:::u were tal:ing somE ranges to chc::l: -~ ...:> """"'·- -- ._ 

Is thnt somethi~; that 10 II hoH t:t· .. is r..aneuver would go. 
I! 

11 Captai~ had pcinted out whnt he wanted ...., --. A,.. ,... .... "''T •• -.-- ... ---
\.o .._} \,..4- 1 .._..._., YY ;_,..A."" ..l ,.,,..:....,... 

12 ycur c~~ ~i~d thinl~ing what you wanted the ship to do? 

13 what did ycu ~cnn by ~ancuver? 

14 

15 

16 

13 

? 
r. \\t:;ll, at this time we've -- at the time o: t~ . .:.. ::::..:~ 

we wcrL ~lready here in the separation zo~e. 

'f ... \- - ...... -. 
ltl ...... ....... .... .. ... \-. 

19 But that's what I assumsd. That's when I took the -- an~ 

20 that's right after -- during the time that I was lool:i:::;:: :: :· 

21 ice visually. Returned to the radar, took some ranges, went 

22 back into the 

23 Q The ranges that you took, were they of the ice, 

24 where the ice was, how far away it was? 

25 A Yes. And it was right at that time that th~ Captain 

,, 
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told rr.e whnt he had in mind. 

2 Q So did you -- when you went back after takin~ the 

3 ranges and you went back to the chart room to take -- am I 

4 right, you go back to the chart room to plot out in your mind 

5 basically a rough outline of where you're going to go? 

6 A Yes. Well, I didn't know exactly where we werE 

7 going to go. What I wanted to know, I believe the course that 

8 we were coming to as I was going back was 2-0-0. And I was 

9 ~ar.tir.g t~ know wl:erc 2-0-0, where that was going tc lea~ us, 

11 rcturnin~ ~- th~ rad~~. th~ Cap~air. said ~~·~c gcing :~ cc~.~ 

12 down to Busby and go I believe I went back into th~ 

13 ch~rt rocrr. and using the ranges that I had ha~ before, he:p~~ 

14 ~~ get a better visual picture of how this new cour~2 ~h~: ~~ 

15 was coming to, 18C, would look as far as getting around the 

17 Q So you took it frorr. when he said we're going 

de·.::~ Busb::.r· ar.d gc 18 .,.... . -... - -
i-''"''" 

19 change course to 180 then? 

20 1-. I believe he was already coming to 18C. 

21 Q When you -- when you first took the first check ~n 

22 the chart room to determine whether or not you were going 

23 clear the ice at a heading of 200, what did you find? 

24 A I found that if we were going to use the inbour.G 

25 lane that we were going to be in ice. 

- . ...., 
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Q When you -- when the Captain indicated th~t yo~ 

2 going to go to 130, did that take you -- was th~t going to 

3 take you out of the TSS, the vessel -- the deep sea -- th~ 

4 vessel traffic lane? 

5 A Yes, it would. And I don't-- at that tir;,c::::: a;:;, :..ot 

6 positive that we were out. And it's when we were coming t~ 

7 180 that the Captain informed me of his intentions to co~c 

8 down to Busby and he was aware that that -- I believe that hE 

9 was -- that we were going to be out of lanes. 

something t~ th~ ef!~ct that we will be o~t - +· .... \.. ,. -( .. -
...... ~ \_. ..... W.••-.; -.a-l 0 

l-- ..._ -
~~ .... u.~- ~·-- .~ ....... .J 1 ~ 

12 across, e~tending past the lane. 

13 Hould you. take a -- tab; a rr.arker and shov; th .... 

14 this greer. on<:; here -- where the ice vlas when yo~ lcci:c::: 

15 through the rad~r? 

16 (raus---.: 

1' 
'' A this being kind of the lir..i t.: ~: t!•c 

19 screen, in general. 

20 Q And this is when you are taking the ranges and 

21 looking out and seeing where this is, right? 

22 A Correct. 

23 Q And is Captain Hazelwood looking at the same ra:::~~? 

24 A Captain Hazelwood looked at the ten centimeter, 

~5 typically he will use the three centimeter when he is 
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maneuvering. 

2 Q Was he would he have been able tc be aware of th~ 

3 ice that was out in front of him through the three centimete~? 

4 A Certainly. 

5 Q Now, would you describe for the jury what ice loots 

6 like on the radar? 

7 A Well, that's kind of difficult to describe. It 

8 probably may be very difficult to differentiate betwee~ a 

9 large chunk of ic~ and a fishi~g 7csscl. They ~i;ht ~ppc~~ 

10 the sa~e o~ radar. The en~ thing that would tip you off t~&~ 

11 it is icL is t~ut you're 1~ Prince Willia~ 

12 been there before a~d we know that there's an increasing 

13 amount of ice being calved off the glacier and ending u~ 

14 here in the lanes. And when ycu get the number cf rct~r~s 

15 that you a~~ g~t:in; in the confines cf a silhouett~ si~ilar 

1 t tl-.is, i:':. :.ce-. 

17 0 }: u.~· . 

..;+- --...... 18 T T - . 

'' ;;_.. ~-. I 
- - ~ 

19 is just little dots or is it a mass across c~ th~t one? 

20 A It wasn't no, it wasn't a mass. ~here wc~c 

21 specific individual targets, pieces of ice. Some of the 

22 targets did probably paint together. Does that answer your 

23 question? 

24 Q Are there any problems with picking up ice on & 

?5 radar? 
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There could be. Depends on the aspect cf the ic~. 

2 If it's -- what type of ice it is. If it's small pieces cf 

~ (· 

·~ 

3 ice, you may not pick them up. Ice is a fairly good reflect~~ 

4 of radio waves, and if they are big enough, yo~'d get a go~~ 

5 return. Depending on a number of other factors also. 

6 your radar is tuned properly and whether you're operating ~~ 

7 foul weather. 

8 Q Does it make any difference how far away or what 

9 scale you're using on the radar? 

1G 

11 

. 
r. ~l~s, i.t wuuld . 

12 ~~c on the radar? 

13 ~~ll, ! do::.'t know if it is an adeq~at~ explanation. 

1~ It is j~st tt~~ the size cf the ice, for one tting, wo~l~ ~ak~ 

15 ·~ d~ff~~ult for --probably impossible to--n~, ! wcn't say 

17 twen t:,·- f ;:;u::.· :::-.i 1 s- r angc. It just doesn't -- net ~big cncug~ 

-~ , .!. - ~ ., - ~ • ., 
"--...J---·- ..... ._.,.._ ..... 

19 Q 

20 problem. Is that something that is known throughout the 

21 industry, that the ice has been a big problem in this area? 

22 I would say so. 

23 Q Does ice at all represent a hazard to a tanker? 

24 A yes. If it's 

25 Q Hhy is that? 



A It's a very heavy, dense piece of material floating 

2 around out there and you get a vessel, especially the size a~~ 

3 mass of a loaded tanker impacting a large piece of ice, yo~ 

4 run a good rist of rupturing the hull. 

5 Q And the risk of rupturing the hull, what's the ~is}: 

6 of rupture what happens when you rupture the hull of a 

7 tanker? 

8 A Well, whatever is on the other side of the steel ~~ 

9 going to come out. 

10 

'' I I 

12 Sound: 

1 ~ I 

~~~ there certain warning~ o~ these charts th~t yo~ 

we:l, I dor.' t know if there -- the~e ffiay be a 

14 on -- I affi not as fa~ilia~ with this chart as : ussd tc be, 

15 but -- as fa~ as t:t-.:: notes but in the Coa~t Pilots, which 

16 

17 Q 

i 2 

-, , 
~ ...... 

Ol:ay. 

... -· .1 ..._' 
~ ........ _ 

ti~~. there is the mentic~ cf icc, yes. 

tall:ing 

19 wc~ld be note E, is that right? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q And that says during the calving season, the 

22 Columbia Glacier deposits ice which may drift into the 

23 northern part of the Prince William Sound. Mariners are 

24 advised to exercise extreme caution and report all ice 

25 sigh tings. 
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18 

19 

20 
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A That's correct. 

Q So when you encounter icy conditions -- scriou~ 

conditions, they are something that you need to take intc 

consideration in how the ship is operated? 

A That's correct. 

Q During this time you are talking with the Captai~. 

did he ever tell you what course he wanted you to take tc get 

around this ice? 

A r:c, th~r~ was no =cur~c ~entione~. 

Q Did he ever go to the chart room and point cut c~ u 

chart what hE; v;u.r.ted to do, lay out a tracl: fc::.· :J·ou: 

A We did all of this right at the radar. 

Q !!c:, so what happened then a:=ter you -- th.::. tar.J-.::..;.. 

s~art0d tc mate it~ 180 degree turn? 

I dor.' t 

0}::.~·. 

Wh:.t 

•- r• ,..... .,.... .&.- -- ~ ... "-''--'•·· ... --
:1cu do after -- after 

tanl:c::: sta::.-tt:.d tc turn to a headir.g of 180. 

\--.~j .. .:_ ... __ , __ 

....... ~"-"· .. .~. ....... """ ......... _ 

A I believe this is the second? I believe the -

21 we may have already been on the 180. 

22 Q Okay. 

23 A After the first set of instructions fro~ Capt~i~ 

24 Hazelwood, I did go back to the chart room and look at ab~Q;·., 

:-15 - what abeam Busby is going to leo}: like, about hov; ~- ·- ,. .. - ' .,~ -.... ...;;.. ..... ..,_ ... -
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going to be off, and using what I had as prior knowledge ~s tc 

2 the -- what I deterffiined to be the bottom edge of the icc 

3 floe, whether we are going to be able to make this turn 

4 without any problems. 

5 Q Who was watching the helmsman at this time to 

6 determine whether or not the ship was steering properly? 

7 A The Captain. 

8 Q And who watched the helmsman to make sure that he 

9 followed the c~dc~s tc turn from 20~ to 18C? 

A The Cax:;tair •. 

11 :!aybe I should clarify something, be~aus~ it -- T 

i 

12 I m<:y give~ the iffipression that the watch office~. cne of 

1? 
,_. 
ulS duties sp8cifically is to watch the helrnsffian. 

14 somethi~; th~t you do when you're again out hc~s. 

15 c=~~i~; cffice= ~c~!ly is the officer that is monitoring th~ 

16 \-.-, --- ........ -~ J..r. "~ .......... _ ... "c;. ... _ • 

13 

1 

ir .. :vn;,atior.-:., l..:.r1 ~:::..:: 

19 1-.. ~:; att~L.t~O:l Ci"..l:._t.:._ frequently can be divertc~ ~ro~ 

20 concentrating on the helmsman. So typically, you know, - .-v- - -~ 
~ '=:1 ...... ..__ ,_ 

21 pilot or a good conning officer doesn't necessarily rely on 
; 
22 the watch officer. But as an officer you want to do those 

23 things. It becomes just second nature that if you're standi~; 

24 there and you hear the conning officer give an order, that ycu 

25 obs0~vc the helmsman as well. 



- ---, 

Q Okay. 

2 Let's ta:J: about that just for a rr.inute. m-.::. had 

3 the conn then on that evening while -- after the pilot left 

4 the bridge? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

lG 

I 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

> •• 

The master. 

And that would be Captain Hazelwood? 

Captain Hazelwood, that's correct. 

What do you mean by having the conn. Would you 

th~t t~r~ of art to thE jury? 

vJell, it's short for havinJ cc~trol ,. ~ +-- \.... '. ,..:J .: ... - - ,_ .. ~ ,-. ,.~ 
"'""~"'- .......... \,.- ""' ............. .l 

11 
1 

of the v·essc:. 

12 Q An~ ~~ there ~ proce~urc whereby you -- what ha.ppa~~ 

- ycu want tc turn over the conn to someone else. 

do then? 

m .... -- .! ..._ ,.... ..-- - .. ~ 
..1.. .................. ~ v" -· ' ycu s~r. you've get ~t. 

any information that '\.....-- T"'. •- ,._ \. -
~\,... \...w'l' .;_;.\_. ..... 

.-r.c.; ___ ~-·-
"··'.._.,_ ...t..\,1...:,...., ,_;. 

19 Y-es. 'I'Lcre would be course. He'd say, you l:no't-:, 

20 I'm steering such and such a course. If there were any otter 

21 specific instructions, he'd pass those along. If there was 

22 any -- the course, typically passing that along to somebody 

23 that's been there. So --

24 Q How about whether or not it is on automatic pilot? 

.1'5 > Yes, thc.t wculd be stated. .r. 
I 

I 



C Sc ~hen ycu were en the bridge that evening, betwee:. 

2 the tirae the pilot wa;:; the time we're 

3 you were what is known as a watch officer? 

4 A That's correct. 

5 Q And Captain Hazelwood was the conning officer 

6 that time? 

7 A That's correct. 

8 Q And your responsibilities were to help him through 

9 the things th~~ yc~ talked about, the tc:e;~a~h orders, tte 

10 I n<:.-;:.gat:::.ur:.al poi:.ts, 

11 ir. the future.: 

and charting out the pote~tial proble~s 

12 Corn::ct. 
,I 

13 
I 

Cl:a:1. 

14 

15 a::. idE:a cf when of this -- the looking at ttc chart, the 

1 t I 
1:r , I 

, II 
': 

t c.:-.1: c r 

.. 

~~j talking with the Captain the first t:;_~~ and th~ 

cc:r.ing tc 180? 

-- the neight:~t::d .". ,....._ ") , \. ..... --... -- -~- ... ~-

19 ::;JSC. Thc.t's net very precise., but thc:.t's i::-. tr.c:t tir:;c f~c:.:-.. ·:., 

20 I would say. 

21 Q Now you were supposed to get off at 11:50? 

22 A That's correct. 

23 Q What's the normal procedure for the -- for the nc.::-~ 

24 person to get calls to come up and replace you? 

25 'tie-L:, ::::: would normally call my re:i.:.of at twenty 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1 ~ 

14 

15 I I, 
i 

1C: 

17 I. 

~ft.:.;r 11:00. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

evc;nir.g? 

~ 
n 

~ 1~ '- l- ,_,."\ 
4.&.- .......... . 

"' 
. .... 

,., 

"' 

Did you do that on this evening? 

No, I didn't. 

Why not? 

I was on dec}~. 

That was when you were helping the pilot off? 

That's correct. 

Did you -- when you got back up on the bridge, did 

Nc, :::: didn't. 

Wh~t time did the other people chnn;c ~~ .... \..- ... 

~ ... .n .... their normal relief ti~e, about +- ,- .,..... .,.... .: - ....... ... 
"""-"'"" .lh-..lr..t.\oA .......... ....; 

~nd Khc carne up and replaced Mr. c:~nr7 

Rcbc:.:t r:<:<gz.;:-•• 

l>.B --· ....._ .......... 

18 c~ duty at t~~ 'til? 

19 
. 

l!~~rc~rJ. Jor1es. ... 
20 Q Where did Maureen Jones get assigned to? 

21 A A where did she get assigned to? 

22 Q Yeah, where did she go when she came up? 

23 A There was up -- back to the bridge wing. I guess 

24 she had -- there was some confusion as to where the lookout 

75 was going tc b~ posted. In the ~curse of my doing things, I 



missed the fact that the bow lookout had bee~ pull~~ b~c}: ~o 

2 the starboard bridge wing. And I recall, ther~ wa~ a short 

0 r 
v-

3 phone conversation that I had with Maureen. She'd called ar.d 

4 said where's the lookout, and I said it was up on the bo~. 

5 evidently she had started up towards the bow and we'd ask~~ 

6 Paul Radtke if he could catch her before she got all the w~y 

7 up there, to iet her know that the lookout had been shiftc~. 

8 Q And then she came up to the bridge? 

9 Yes. 

10 Q Wc~c yo~ aware of the tanker goi~~ c~ automatic 

11 Being placed on -- ~h~~ 

12 automatic pilct? 

13 A Nc. 

14 Q Did you tall: to the Captain about that 

15 tanker being en ~~tomatic pilct? 

16 No. 

17 So VJC -- we've talke~ up to abo~t 1:; .;.;::- :..:-. .::: ~:-

18 ~_ .............. .:. ...... -. <f,...,- _,_ ,-\...:.+"- . .-1- ....... ----
~ '- \.. '- ...._ J. .o. ~ ~ "- ._ .i. ... L ..;. "'• ...._ ._ .._. ~ .LJ........, 4 .t. ~ ._ • 

19 course th.:. t h0 wants you to take at the radar. \iha t ha;~~.;;,~c.:! 

20 then? 

21 A I believe we are a little bit further along now. 

22 Q Okay. 

23 A During the -- the -- this is a time when I was t..:;..:L 

24 and forth between the chart room and the radar. By the time -

25 - by the time the lookout and helmsman were being relieve~, 



thE Captain had already told me cf his intentions to cc;:.<.. 

2 abea~ Busby, head bact towards the lane at that point. 

3 Q Head l::;;;;.cl: towards the what? 

4 A The lanes. 

5 Q Th~ lanes? Okay. 

6 And at some point there was a changing -- shortly 

7 thereafter there was a changing of the watch? 

8 A That's correct. 

9 And whee the watch changed, what i~fcrrnation w~~ 

10 ~~changed between the two helmsmEn~ 

11 A The helmsmen would-- I didn't 

12 thei~ convers~tion. The relieved helmsman ~:~:1 pass on th~ 

13 co~rse and -- being steered and the mode c~ st0~rin;. 

or ...,..., 

14 Q HhcL did you learn that the tan}:e:..- '><c:.s or. a~tv:T.atL: 

15 ;:;ilot? 

16 ? 
./:>. 

17 I" 
\.0 Did yo~ h~a~ ~ny -- sorry. 

18 . --........ "''' '- . 

20 A Gyro. 

21 Q How about the magnetic heading? 

22 A No. 

23 Q Would you explain to the jury the difference betwe~n 

24 a gyro heading and a magnetic heading? 

75 A A gyro head -- a gyro is referenced t= true north. 



Magnetic is referenced towards the magnetic poles. And I 

2 think it might help them to see something like this where 

3 shows a magnetic compass and where true north is. Basically 

4 that is the difference between magnetic and gyros, is o~~ ~~ 

5 magnetic and one is true. 

6 Q 

7 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 

11 the wcrld? 

12 A 

1') 
'~ Q 

15 • .. 
16 r'l ·,._ 

17 ·; o~· u.g '-' 
~ 

12 

19 '"' ~ 

Okay. 

Is there a term for this difference? 

Ycu mean the variation? 

Ye:;c.h. 

And does that change; depending on wherE ycu ar2 ,_ 

Yes. 

De you check these +-h.:.,.., ...... ~ ...... .- .... ~....; at cert~::-. 

: a~ showing you what has been i~entified as 

20 Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 82. Did you recognize that? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q What is that a copy of? 

23 A The compass observation book. Typically each ~~~cL 

24 will check -- do a compass check. 

?.5 Q And is this a fair and accurate representation cf 



the compass book that was on the Exxon Valdez on Marc~ 23rd, 

2 1989? 

3 A yes. 

<),... ........ 

4 MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of what's 

5 previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit Nuiliter 82. 

6 MR. MADSON: No objection. 

7 THE COURT: Admitted. 

8 (State's Exhibit Number e: 

9 was admitted in c~id~nc~.: 

10 B'.: HI~. COLE: ( RE= s i .. U:.i.;:.~) 

11 Hov;, Wht;;r. ycu' re testing this, do ::r·cu t.e.s.t. ~··"'" 

12 distinction between magneti::: north and true nortr. ~;;.:_::__ 

13 way? 

14 Yes. 

15 And you'v..:: Q true heading on your gyr~ 

16 g~t a ~agnetic t~ading? 

17 A Yes. 

18 ::;_,s t: cr.c.:::l: cu:;.· gyros' ~---··- ... -- +~· 
J.•\l..oo.~·~'-""'--'-

19 true and co~p~r~ tho tru~ and the gyro headin;. 

20 Q And then there's one final little notation or 

21 variance which is called a deviation. What is that? 

22 A That's due to vessel structure and where the compass 

23 is mounted and 

24 Q Now, after the changing of the crew members, the 

·2'!! helmsman 



I! ,, 

8'J 

A Uh-hu.h. 

2 Q -- was the Exxon Valdez placed on a computer program 

3 to run up its speed? 

4 A Yes. 2352. 

5 Q How did that happen? 

6 A How does it happen? 

7 Q How do you do -- or why do you do it? 

8 A That -- to increase the speed. That -- your -- is 

9 i~ -- at fu.ll ah~~d maneuvering, that is as fast as you. caL ~-

10 without doiLg somethiLg else, and tha~ &omething else is 

11 starting the load program up. And what that is is a conpu~c~ 

12 contrclled seque~ce of slowly, gradually increasing RPM. 

13 And it i~ do.-.c according to a computer progra•~ .. 

14 A Tl:<:t's ccrrcc:. 

15 Q Do you }:no;; hoH long it taJ:es to get frorr. fu:!.l 

16 rnancuvcri~; speed up ~o sc~ speed? 

17 

18 

20 

·- :-\-1----1- -· ............ ':::t ..... ....,...., ........ _. __ 

reu.:::.l:t recall. 

- .:: r- ·~ ..._ -· 
._.- .... --- ""'.J 

It's 

.. l- .: - ~. ................. 
sor.:e~;hcrc - ~ ..... 4- \~ .-

... :! - ...... __ .. ~ ....... - ~, ...... _ .... _ •• t.;...__ """'-' 

Q And why did you go up to sea speed at 11:~~? Wh~ 

21 did you load up the program to go up to sea speed? 

22 A Well, we didn't have any specific instruction or 

23 conversation about that, but this is after the Captain and I 

24 discussed the impending maneuver, and I took it to be that 

75 ~c -- he wanted some -- a little tit more speed to cc~~lct: 



-, r . ..... 

the maneuver. 

2 Q Who made the decision to , ...... -~ 
~vlo.L....,. the prograr.. up? 

3 A The Captain. 

4 Q And again, what time was that? 

5 A I have the lo~ as 2352. 

6 Q That would be 11:52 twenty-four hour time? 

7 A That's correct. 

8 Q How long did the Captain stay on board after he !:fuw-

9 that crdc:::? 

10 m~. }1ADSO:!; E:.:cuse; me; on boar~'? 

11 BY 1:r .. COLr:; (Resu;;.ing) 

1? '"' "" On deck; I'm sorry. 

17 J-. Cr. the bridge. 

1 A J-.bout a rrinut~ and a h~!f, I g~c~~. 

15 minutes. 

16 Q 
_.., .· _, 

17 this tir:.~ :' 

,-, -~ -- .... - _. -· 12 
il --t" """~-··. 

19 

20 instructions. 

... ... ~ ..... ,, ,_, 

-1 · · ~-.., .- r· ................ -~·':? 

21 Q Why did he -- did he indicate to you at that pcir.t 

22 that he was going to leave the bridge? 

23 A He asked if I felt comfortable with what we were 

24 going to do, and I said yes. He said, do you feel good 

25 e;nough that I can go be;lcw and get so~e paperwork cut of the 



wayi A~d I said I f~lt quite cofufortabl~. Matte~ c~ f~~~. ~ 

2 was asked that twice. 

3 Q How long did you believe he was ~oin~ to be dow~ 

4 below? 

5 I or., h~ indicated that he should L~ 

6 minutes. But the full conversation was, I should be just ~ 

7 few minutes, but give me a call when you start the turn if : 

8 am not back up on the bridge. 

9 Q Did he tell you what paperwork was so i~pc~ta~t th~~ 

11 

12 Object. H'C' 
i.'J,i. ... • !1A.DSON: That's 

13 neccssa~~. yo~~ Honor. 

14 Objection overruled. 

15 argurnentativ~. Mr. Col~. 

16 '*T' ,...'"'T r. 
J,,j,,l..,. - "-".-.J~. I'll withdraw that. 

1 ;' TEE COUF'.T: Hr. Cole, we're at o;,;.~ lun:!-. he~~. 

19 1:r •. cc::...r:: Uh-h;,;.h. 

20 THE COURT: We'll take our lunch until 1:15. Aga:~ 

21 ladies and gentlemen, don't discuss this matter among 

22 yourselves or with any other person. Avoid the Eedia pec~l~. 

23 avoid media's information. Don't form or expres~ an opini=~s 

24 concerning the case. 

25 We'll st&~j in rec~ss. 



9: 

THE CLEP.Y.: Please rise. This Cou~t star.js ~r. 

2 recess subject to call. 

3 (Whereupon, at 11:57 o'clock a.m., the Court st~:~ 

4 in recess.) 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

I 
15 I 

I! 
16 

17 

1 c 

II 19 I' 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

?5 



II 
92 

AFTERNOON SESSION 

2 ( 1 : 18 0 ' c 1 0 c}: ;:, • ;:, . : 

3 THE COURT: Okay, counsel, one of the jurors gavE •1.c 

4 a note saying that she is having a -- one of them is havi~; ~ 

5 hard tiffie seeing the evidence with the plastic overlay b~c&~~~ 

6 of the glare. 

7 MR. COLE: Judge, at this time the State would ~ .. :::·.-c. 

8 for th~ admission of what has been identified as Plai~tiff's 

:our,T ~ Any objection? 

KL 11:.r:scz;; No objection, your Ho:r.o:r. 

th~ ~itn~ss ~ight not dat~ and sign it though, j~st so ~~ can 

l:eq: :. t cl.;o~::..-. 

THE co:rr::: Th'" r::xhi:tit as it is :r.c;: i:::; adr:.:.:::.cd, 

(State's E;:~.it:.t ,. ,._ . ....- \- . ~. ('\ ~ 

~•U..Iou ........ ~._ ....,_ 

was mark~d fer idEr•~::..ficc.ticr. 

D:::REC'I' EX;,.t!n:;.TIOI: 

BY llf.. COLE~ (Resurr.ing) 

Q Now, Mr. Cousins, when we left off, we had discuss~d 

22 the events that had occurred up to the point where the 

23 - the Captain left the bridge. Is that about correct? 

24 Yes. 

:'5 And --



b Have w~ discussed the second time th~t we went ov~~ 

2 the instructions? 

3 Q And the second time was right prior to him lea~ing 

4 the bridge? 

5 H~ would hQve left approximately a minute late~. 

6 Q What I would like to do is briefly have you list fc~ 

7 me the events as they occurred, so I can write them down herL, 

B from the time you took the plots at 11:39 until the Captai~ 

9 

10 

11 

14 

1' 

l ( 1! 

1: 

1-
'c 

. \ 
]r; 

20 

21 were 

22 

23 

24 

25 

:1:39 you ••ould have been out on the p:i2.o-: -- :::::::- o:-. ·~:::_ 

. .. S~arbo~rd bridge wing . 

Fro~ tt~ t~idge ~ir.g, a quick stc~ 

Q Okay. 

into the chart roo~ 

,_ .. _. _, -
..... - ... -';:::!- • 

Ol:a~-. 

u·.c ~..: --

Where did you go from -- where did you do when 

there? 

~ I stopped at the radar again. .h. 

Q The starboard radar? 

A Yes. 

Q Ckz.y. 

_r- ..... 



A Frc~ ther~ I ~cnt to the windo~s. picke~ ~~ & pair 

2 of binoculars, looked for th~ ice. Briefly stepped out onto 

3 the bridge v.:i.ng. Callie back in, placed the radar -- I mean th~ 

4 binoculars in their -- in the holders. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Q 

1 G 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

. .. 

. .. 

Can we abbreviate that, looking for ice? 

Yes. 

Okay. 

Okay. 

Fro~ thcr0, b&ct to the r;:!~r. 

':'Le: sto.rboard rada1·? 

Have yo~ h;:d your first conversation v.ith Capt.::i~ 

13 H~~elwood at this point? 

14 

15 =on~ers;:tion th;:t we had was that we were: goin; to div~~t for 

16 the i.:t:.. 

17 tr.:::::.: 

12 

19 

20 

I had asked th~ Captain if I 

~ ._, .t=- ,. __ _ 
.J.. ·"-~ ,_. ~ ..... 

_r 
""' ..... 

sho1..4ld. 

That was at some point when I -- right after 

21 looking :or the ice. 

22 Q Okay. 

23 That would have been right here? 

24 A Somewhere in there. 

?.5 So v.c'll j~st put first conversation v.ith Captai~ 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

HazC;;l~ccd. 

That's ccrrect. 

(Pause.) 

Q Okay. 

So you've looked for ice. You've gone bacl: to 

starboard radar. And what did you do then? 

A That's when I took my first set of ranges. 

Q Uh-huh. 

.. t-:cr. ~ ;;~cJ: ... ~ +-"~--- ch&!:"t. rco:r. .. Get ;::.. ... .; ~··--, 
'" .... J..L t,.; ...... ..., .... """"' ... 

repr esc:-. tat icr .. -,....--~-,... ... ""''=' 10;.. -.A. .. ;:...~ a ::hc.rt as to estimate cf the ice. 

Q 

h.:--.d -.:!1~1.-e ~ co"J.rsc of 200 would taL:. :f"cu? 

Nc, net nccsss.:;.rily a co"J.rse of -- ~here a cc"J.rs~ --

by that tine he ~~~ .: .. ~ .-1 :. - - ...... -..... """' ... _ ....... ...._._-

15 th.:;.t ~e ~ere gci~; tc come tc 180. But I .::;,~ ~=t sure c~ :~: 

~~u~'s a l~ttle fuzzy. 

17 

.::L.:;.1: r;:,c;; .. a;~::.. •.. r" ... ~ _ ._ • +- 1 
..... .._.. .J "-"- "JY ....;,.. It, '-'-' 1 E 

19 

20 I didn't make a plot. I just used a set of di~i~~~= 

21 and real quick got an estimate of what that looked like in 

22 relation to the lanes. 

23 Q Okay. 

24 How about if I write estimate of ice in lanes. 

].. Rig!-.t. 



II 

2 Q 

3 

4 A 

5 Q 

6 A 

7 to 180. 

8 Q 

9 u-.a t t ir..c.? 

10 

II 
. .. 

(Pa~s.:.) 

What was the next thing you did after that? 

Returned to the starboard radar again. 

I believe at this time we were initiating the t~~n 

And where -- what would you have been doing dur~ng 

t ,_ - •.. -•"-- ..... ~ -- it's -- at that pci~t I tc:j t~~ 

9'7 

11 C~~t~~~ that it look~d like the icc w~s across both ttc lane~. 

12 

13 

1.1 

15 
I[ 

16 I 
17 

13 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

. 
'• 

. 

beyon~ the inbound lane. 

Ol:a~·. 

V--~ 
J. C::.o:.J. 

..... . .._-. 

in tl-.~.is peri.:~: 

A Yes. The extent of the ice across the lanes. 

(Pause.) 

Q Okay. 

Then what happened? 

--: - \.. 

A It was at this time that the Captain said that we 

25 arc going to --we're coming to a course c: :sc. 



98 

to bring it down to abeam Busby and then cut back to th~ 

2 lanes. 

3 Q This is all in this conversation? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q 180. Go 'til abeam Busby? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q And cut back into the traffic lanes? 

8 A Start to come back towards the lanes. 

9 

10 Q 

11 What happcnLd then aft~r that? 

12 ' .. c: :::anges and went agai:::-. bac}: tc 

13 

i 4 

I 
16 1 

1 ~ I 
\I 

1 c I! 
19 

-l-- - ,. .... ..- .- .-...... '\-. .. ~.! - ~., ..... ........... ~ ....... .L'-'-"•· ~J..-.- ... -...1. 

. .. 
Sc this gees do~n then until th~ ch~rt roorn again7 

, .. .. .... I'm not 

Noi> thcs;:;. rar..ges we::..·.;o taker-., that yo~ wer.t tc tr • .:; 

20 chart room, from the ice? For the ice? 

21 For the ice, yes. 

22 Q And I was wondering, while we're at that point right 

23 here, would you mind making that line a little bit darke::: 

24 that people can see exactly where you saw the ice to be? 

:25 (P&us.:.:.) 



93 

A~d wt~~ you saw the ice in that position, did yc~ 

2 take any ranges of how far the ice was from, s~y, B~sby I3l~~d 

3 or Bligh Reef at that time? 

4 A Well, what I did was I took a range of Bligh R~c~ 

5 buoy 

6 Q Uh-huh. 

7 A -- a range of the bottom edge of that -- of the 

8 and just backed it up --

9 I 
,.., 

"' vw~:d be EligL Reef buoy thcn 1.. ••. 
••\,.;..o..- I 

10 

i: 
little 

11 . 
"• ':'t.u.t's correct . 

12 !"' 

"' 
13 you took a rang~ of sou thcrr. 

14 ..... ~- - . ""' 
1,..~.1.'- ~.:c...:. 

15 Correct. 
I 

1 ~ :: Q ~nd i~ that way yo~ calculated f~c~. th~r~ tc t~c~c: 
II 

1:' 
I 

\- ..! .... l- ' .... ..... - . 
..... ~ ~ .....,.._I..,. .... --. 

'~ 10 IT·, ..... ~ ' 
\ J. 1...4 1..4,;.,;. i_ • I 

19 

20 Q They c~n't see. 

21 A -- 2339 fix was here. We were coming around tc ~ 

22 course of 1-8-0. And what I did was just drop a line with ~ 

23 protractor. I just laid the protractor from that fix. 

24 Q I'll hold it, because that way the jury can't s~c 

?5 you, what you're ~cing rig~t no~. 



2 Backed up from Bligh Reef baoy. I don't recall what 

3 the range was. Got a point here. Measured froffi here down 

4 whatever the distance was that I had gotten off and I got a 

s visual n:,k:r;;;~cr .. tat:.or .. on a chart as opposed. to just lo.:.: . .:.. .. "' ........ 

6 a -- lockiLg at the radars, the extent of the ice across th~ 

7 lanes. 

8 Q So essentially you're traveling somewhere in th~3 

9 area? 

1 c D::mn. T!-.. c.: fi:~ :1.: right here. 

..... ~- , : ... . 
1r.,.l..4.ol.o. ........ '=' 11 

12 

1 ~ ! _, is tr.c:.t. abc.~t rigt~":? 

15 

18 

19 

. ... 
r 

"' 

.. 
.n 

- - .& .... - ,. 
~ ............ . 

....... -1:.! ·--

tt.~s rar.g..:. up an measure.:: 

20 that I had gotten off the radar for the bottom edge of the 

21 ice, so I could tell where it was in relation to landmarks aLd 

22 th~ reef. 

23 Q Do you remember what that measurement was? 

24 A Well, just from having reviewed my statements. 

25 That, you know, was appro;:irr.a tely nine-tenths between the 



upp€~ ed;~ cf tLis Bligh Reef. 

2 Q Would you put a ~ark there where the ninc-tc~t~= 

3 extended down to, where you were talking about? 

4 A From here in a generally-- kind of a northwestc~:~. 

5 That was the closest point to the reef that the ice appr~~=Lc~ 

6 the reef. 

7 Q How about this range? Did you ever take what the 

8 eastern edge of the ice was to Busby? 

(, :::: tr.inl~ :::: did but I de:-.' t reme::-.bc::. 

10 

I 
O~ay. That's fine. Thank you. 

11 
'! ~ow, when you went back to th~ chart roo~ her-. ~~~ 

12 I h-~ a-.. 

13 with Captain Hazelwoc~? 

14 

15 Q \:r:.c. t diC: yc~ de in th<:;; chart roon. he:rc? 

1t: i 

17 Ol:a::i. 

18 r-.:-
.. ......_. ..... .,_ 0 

19 Yeah. That's also when the Captain expect~ 

20 to check his orders. That is part of procedure in a routi~-. 

21 to confirm that what he wants to do is proper and right. 

22 that had a double purpose. 

23 Q How about area of ice and 

24 Actually one leads to the other. 

:s ota::1. 



Chectin9 navigatioL. 

2 Right. 

3 Q What did you do after that? What happened after 

4 that now? 

5 Upon returning to again the starboard radar, I ~cld 

6 the Captain that it looked like when we get down to Busby, 

7 we'll be entirely out of the system, but that we had plenty of 

8 room to make the maneuver. 

9 

l 0 Tha~'s correct. That's approxir..atcly the ti; .. .:: tl: .. :.:. 

ll the load prcgra~ st~rted. 

12 Q 

fror.. 

l t r-
'X: 

l 7 
!! 

' 

II 
'. 

l s c.:..: 

Oka::z·. 

lkll, v;hen would the crew have char .. 9..:d thc::r .. :' 

Soractirr.e i:, that period of ffie gci~g 

radar ~o chart roor.., 

~ ........ -·..-- _ ..... \ ... --- "'-\-.: ... .-:­

---··~· ..... -··"-- -··-··~-. 

bacl: out. 

.: - .......... ,__ ............ '-•• 

..- \. -- ........... - - ~· 

20 that's -- I was standing by the starboard radar and that ~~s 

21 just shortly after the load program was started. 

22 Q Okay. 

23 So load progra~ and then the crew change, or the 

24 ere~ change and then the load program? Or all about the saEG 



2 

3 

4 

5 

. 
.r. 

Q 

A 

All about the sam~:; tir.,;;; . 

(Pa-:..lSG.) 

And when was the load program up command given? 

2352; 11:52. 

And tht.;l. is when you had your thi....-.::: co:-.·;;;;~· sa tio;:. 

6 with Captain Hazelwood? 

7 A Yes. 

8 (Pause.) 

9 Q And that was about the location of 

1 c II " •. w~ ~~d already discusse:d I~ c.. , 

11 
I 
last 

12 far as ma::ir.~ the tu1·r., point of execution 

1? 

14 

15 

20 

21 

OJ:c.:;. 

yeo:.h. 

~gain held at the r~d~r; 

~h&t's cc::rect. 

- -- .. ,_- -
.................... -- l~ - - _,: - -,. .. ...;(,...4,.--··~ !::f- . - ... ::=t 

... \_ .: 

- _. -· .... ...... '9· .... \ .: --

V .._ v ;:._. •A vJ. .. 

A No, there wasn't. 

Q Were you ever told a range away from the land in 

22 which to turn, or anything like that? Any particular poi~t? 

23 A The reference was abeam Busby begin the tu:·r. bo:.:l~ 

24 towards the lanes. 

25 Q Anr in~ication as to what rudder to use or ~nrthin9 



like that? 

2 A 

3 Q And al that time you were told that he want -- was 

4 going to leave the bridge? 

5 A His words were, do you still feel comfortable wi~~. 

6 this. And I said, yes. He said, do you mind if I go dow~ 

7 and get some paperwork out of the way, and I said it would b~ 

8 fine. And he said, well, I should only be just a minute c~ s~ 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1? 

14 

LS 

16 

17 

13 

I! 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

:?5 

yeti. start tl-• .;; 

Hvv: 

( Pc:.~.:.sc. I 

~ ,...... C" ~ .. ~ • •,...-..: -- r 

~••w w-. """.._ '"" ..... '-'•.6W • 

hnd wh~~ would he have left the bridJc 

Q ~~~~ ::-.i:--.~.utes after the load up progra~~ 

"" '<;1'.-,.. 
r~ ~ ~ o.;, • 

f I .... ,.,... \ 
\.t..-~•-'-"•1 

the bridge? 

.,.~ ................ 

., .... ;_- +-

A I went to the helm and put into hand steering. 

Q 

Q 

' .. 

Why did you do that? 

Because we were about to make our course change. 

And that would have been at Busby? 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 c 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1' 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q go then after tho.t? 

A I went tc the po~t radar. I shifted scal~s en that. 

I bcliev£ ~ .... ...... had been on the six mile range . I shifted it tc 

the thre(; r:'oi 1 e scale~ Prepared to take the fix en Busb.7i 

light. S~.:;.t ~ .. - .. ~.! -.1 ...... 1 ~ l-o.nge r~~a.~}~e.~ up ir .. ad\ra:-~c~. '!"~ • - ... t- . - --'tiQ.,..~O.U~t; -..t .......... ~ .... 

we were 

out on 

light. 

Q 

~ 

r. 

Q 

.. 
rt 

Q 

. 
n 

Q 

A 

,., 
"' 
.. 
n 

nearly abeam Busby Light and I went out to the -- ~~c: ... ~ 

the port bridge wing, prepared to take a sight on the 

And what time did you take that 

.. - ._._ 
...... u • .....: •. 

It was abea:r .. 

WL~~ yc~ say ab(;am, what do you mean? 

90 degre(;s away fro~ th(; heading cf tL~ vEssel . 

Okay. 

0-9-C, bearing 0-9-0. 

Hta ~ r.uppened after you had tat en the.: f i:: thc::.-c..: 

----­~~ _. .............. 

~lLii t into the char:. rcor.., plct~ed the f i:~. 

Q Who was watching the helmsman at this point? 

A There was no one watching the helmsman. 

Q And while you were in the chart roo:::;-,, what happcr . .:.:::~ 

A Durin~ rn·· l.J plotting of the fix the lookout carr.c l -- _,, 
WU\w.J• 

into the chart room, reported a red flashing light, five 

secor.d flas:t-.ing red light. 



vll:..a t did that tell you? 

2 I kn~w that t~ be Bligh Reef buoy. We had had tha~ 

3 on radar for quite some time. 

4 Q Where did she say it was? 

5 She sa:d it was broad on the starboard bov:, as ~ 

6 recall. 

7 Q Would you tell the jury what that broad on the 

8 starboard bow would mean? 

9 A We have a systc~ of rcportin; cbjc=t~ an~ we c~l: 

10 bov..' is anothc::: 

11 :::-::p::..-<...sents 

1? ..... , ,.... ............. -
~ ....... ,J.. .... ~- c::: b:::oad en the bow is 45 degrees. We co.::.. ,. 

-- if tti~ we:::~ th~ be~ of ~·· 
___ , __ . 
\,. ............ J.\_.-

15 s~rc it'~~ li~tle more pointed tha~ tho.t. 

1t 

19 

, .. 
... .. ,.... .. ., _., 
't' ...... : 1.<1..- ._.. 

do that 

20 explain something about this. 

21 Q Sure. 

22 A Well, approximately like this. 

23 headi•.g. 

l-- .... -..._._ ....... -... -

l i }: t: 

45 degrees fro~ the 

24 Q And then what would be the abeam one so that they 

25 ca~ get a reference? 



Okay. 

2 Well call these relative bearir.gs, and I ki~~ - r ,, -
3 tak~ it to hav~ a double meaning in that a reference -- ar. 

4 individuals reference to an object at a distar.cc, dependin~ 

5 where they are standing on the vessel, has a bearir.g en ho~ 

6 they pe~ceive or where they perceive that object to be in 

7 relation to the centerline of the vessel, which is where the 

8 points originate at, from, the centerline on. 

11 

12 an object being broad on the bow with a certai~ 9rain o~ s~l~ 

13 ..... exactly broad on the bow tecause 

._.' :-: ... : .... -1-"--- ....... _ .... ... 14 

15 vess~:!.. 

16 W~ll, ~i~ it concern yc~ that yc~ ha~ a re! li~~: 

18 

19 sta:::bc .. ::.:d sid.:o. 

,, '- •• - -'l - ••. -1 .1! u. ........ Q ... ;;.; ._ 

I had that on radar. 

, ..: .i . ........ ~ ........ 

20 Q What -- would you explain to the jury what havi~. 

21 red light off the starboard side, can that be a concern ..... 
22 some instances? 

23 A In this instance, I expected it to be on the 

24 starboard bow until we attempted the maneuver, until we 



Q 

2 

3 

Hbat --

(Pause.) 

Let me rephrase that. 

., ,... r 

... v '-

4 What did you do after you learned this informatio~ 

5 from Miss Jones? 

6 A That was at the end of a plot. I returned to th~ 

7 forward section of the bridge. I gave the 109 right rudder 

B command to the helmsman. 

9 

Q 

1-. c~ tt~ pert sid~ of the bridge. 

14 

15 hanging or . .;;. bra~l:c..:.. o:r ... t~.c b'L-'lkheaj. 

~.: -·- .... 
........ u ...... 

16 Captain and inform him that w~ were b~ginning th~ t~~~ . 

1 E J. 
..,. •• 1- -· - ..... ! -
..... ~ ........ a,;, v ~ ~ ~ ..... '- • 

19 ...,._.,, 1-.!~ ... --
~ '-.......... ... ....... u. 

20 A There was a short conversation. I told him it 

21 looked like we may get into the bottom edge of the ice a~~ 

22 responded by saying is it going to be -- does it look lik~ 

23 it's going to be a real problem. I said I no I I dor.' t thi:r.l: 

24 that it will. My intent was just to ease it around the 

~5 cor~cr. ThL conversation went to whether the second mate ha~ 



arriv~d en the bridge yet. 

2 

3 The Captain. 

4 Q Had you called the second mate at all? 

5 Nc, I hadn't. 

6 Q And what else did you talk about? 

7 A Well, the conversation went, has Lloydo shown u~ 

8 yet, and I said, no, I was going to give him a ca:: as sc~~ 

squc:.:::ed , -- - -... ~.o~. ...... ~- ' 9 

10 

II 

12 everything straightened out, and there was an addition&: L:: 

15 

16 

12 ' 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Q 

, 
r-. 

,.... .. .,...... J. ." - ~ ... 
...;V.IuL. ....., ........ , .. '--.._; 

-.lJ.- .. ._ ..... -- __ , 

o.nd 

one way and had to turn around and come back. I mean, tha::.'s 

how that's what I took it to be. 

Q Would you say that again? I didn't catch that. 

I think the comment was, well -- I don't exactl~ 

24 remember the phrase, but God bless the young or so:u.cthir..;; ::.~:: 

25 that, t:: that r.:. ;:::~c 



.., ... r, ....... ..., 

was squa1;l:ing about the fa:::: that I told so:r.:ebody to go ir. e-.. '"-

2 

3 

4 

wrong direction. T~ ...... reference to the lookouts. 

Q Where were you when you were making this phone 

A There's a phone that is nearly directly behind 

ca::? 

5 aft of the port radar on that partial bulkhead between th~ 

6 chart room and the nav area. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

. 
n 

. 
n 

Maybe you could point that out? 

Well, I lost my 

, ,...._-. ' 
\. .i. ....., ...,. ....,o '- • I 

I hc.:l ;;.::,· bc.:::l: t.:. the helmsman at that tir..c . 

H.:;•; long did th;:; conversation bet~c:~ 

T "'l ..- ~ : -1 
nJ.J.:;_..., • .l v""" .;J\..4.-"""", 

Or ta}:c :' 

.:;;f sitting down and ti~d 

it l.:;;oks lik~ ~c·~~ 

cf .... \.-- ..... 
tv .. J..._. ._ 

,..... .r= ..... 1- .... ~ - - ..... --
vJ... ~,...,...J~••:1 ~.,.....,.. 

20 by thc.t in this c~nversation? 

21 A I expected that we were turning -- I -- my -- ~r 

22 estimate was that the vessel was going to just apparently 

23 

24 

:'5 

I 

II 

\I 

II 

skirt the bottom edge or perhaps even come very, very, "_..._ .J 

close to the ice. 



Would ycu mind pointing out to the jury what yc~ 

2 mear. b:r that? 

3 A My thought was that as we were by that time afte~ 

4 the fix just below Busby, my intent was to have the vess~l 

5 gr&du&lly follow a track something similar to this. 

6 there was a chance that well, we might nudge a piece of ic~ ~~ 

7 in here. 

8 Q So you knew that you would be getting --

9 It to do that, 

10 that. t! ...... rc wo.s a pcssibility that that rr.ay happo;;;;.. 

11 0 ,_ -·· J ... c:.t._l' • 

12 Did J.·c'.... t~ll hi~ about what time ... -.... ' ..:: \.......­..r ~t. .. n .. ~ ........... n.; cutting 

1~ throu~t th~: ga~ o~ anything? 

... \... - .... ..: """' . 
~.....~~\,;: "-~,£h...,; • thought w~ 14 

15 

' . .. -- ... ,..... . -
v.._,~...._Vt....t...l 17 •.. --.... .... -..... 

18 That is --,, ~ 
.... -- .... -- .J 

19 first ti~& t~~t : observed the rudder an;l~ indi:~~=~-

20 Q Is that the first time that you looked at the 

21 angle indicator? 

22 THE COURT: Was that a yes or a no? 

23 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

24 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

25 Q Wh~n yc~ lcok~d at it, what did it read? 



.., ., ,...., .......... 

A bs I recall, 6 or 7 degrees right rudd~~. 

2 Q ~Jha t v;as the cour s~ heading at that t~:;;-• .s :' 

3 A I don't recall. It seems like it was 180 and s.:.~ .. "' 

4 tt:;nths. Not real clear on that. 

5 Q What did you do then? 

6 A I said get the rudder at 10 right. I stepped o~t 

7 from there I stepped out to -- I believe I paused for a 

B moment at the -- agai~ at the same radar, went out to the p.:.rt 

10 

11 

12 Q 

1? 

15 lig!-.:... 

16 

·~ I ..._- :z- .:_,""""' 

19 

20 

21 Q 

22 A 

Why did yc~ do that? 

a SE;ctvr~.:: 

Oka~i. 

l1f:. C~LL: Judg'-', I ar.-. going to ast !-.~.:L;. to ccr:.::... c. 

~hat he can show t~is j~~~ t~~~ 

..J \. ............. 

~ .. ,_ ..:. .... - .. 
:Ju.,L.;..)~- ...... 

~!:r: t:~TI:r:ss: I f~t...: likE. T I-- cr. a ~ - -- t-... ... ~t.:.c..~ ...... 

BY t-1R. COLE: (Resuming) 

What do you mean by a red sector? 

This is a dangerous hazardous area. And this ~.:; a 

23 white lig~t i~ all points of the compass except for this a~~& 

24 right here which defines the hazardous area. And we cal::. .:..: c. 

75 scctc::- :ig~.t. It's a different color, it's red. 



., ... -. 

here is whit.:. 

2 Q Okay. 

3 Now is it marked on the map in any way? 

4 A It says red sector --

5 Q Chart.;;:' 

6 A RGd sector. 

7 Q And what's the definitions? Is there a dotted line 

8 that goes out from that? 

9 

10 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

19 

~nd if yc~ cro~~ over th~t, what - &.. .., .: ,-.·\,- ..... ,-. ....... ~ ...... ""--' 

You would go from white to red. It ~::; not 

a cle~rly defined area where 

of tL<:.: line you'd definitely ,.-\-.!._.. ___ ,..., 
1(, ... _ ..... - ~ ... J. ...... 

if yet: wcrt.o 

- c-. ,.-. - ~· -· '\.- ..: l ... ....... ._.._ __ .................. """ 

COI!S t ru~· t~~. 

~ -' :. ~ 
'I'; .. ~ ......... ·~ 

line, 

be:at:se of the way these ~- -~ _, - ,__ ....... , 

+ \..- : . ............ -· , 

.. '...., 
.J .._.1,4 ...... 

.,,_- _., ... '- ..... 

- ~ ... \. _. -

B .... .... ~ ycu w0uld definitLl~ see th~ 

20 sector if you were a tenth or so inside. 

21 Q What did you see when you were 

22 A I saw a white light. 

23 Q On Busb:x·? 

24 A yes. 

?5 "" Hha.t 'II< ubv~t or:. - ·- - ..-. ~-, ...:! yo;.; sec \,......,"'"",.1..'-
T', ~ \..., 
...,..L~g ..... Reef? 



~ ~ ' ....... .,. 

, Oh, yes, we saw Bligh Reef frorr. up here. r> 

2 Q Ar.d v;hu.t colcl: vo'"-S it'? 

3 A That's a red flashing. 

4 Q No\:, who was watching Mr. Kagan while you were c ·~:. 

5 ch~cki~g th~ Busby Island Light? 

6 

7 

8 

Q 

10 

11 

12 I 
I 

1 ~ I 

...... .: __ ....., 

\. -··:::::~' 

A 

Q 

14 indicat~:-? 

15 

1 ~ 

' .. 

' .. 

No one. 

(Pause.) 

What did you do then after you came back in off th~ 

... : crd~red a ri~ht 

Decaus~ we hadn't turned. 

Whc.r:. you can,.;; bacl: ir. did you locl~ -...~ - ... 

"""" 

: prcb~bly did, but to sit here today ar.d say 

:-~c~ll specifically th~t : did. 

.,. ~ • -- ,l. , ... 

....... t,.o~....;. ..... -..J. 

1 q turr:.~J.. ~: ....... .. l~-·-
1,..-..H~~ ........ 1,.4. ~ ...,. By 

20 had ordered the 20 right, I believe then that there had b~c~ 

21 the beginning -- the initial part of the turn had started. 

22 Q When you had been talking with Captain Hazelwood 

23 :pr io:- to this, when did he indicate that he would be l:.ucl: up 

24 en the l:.ridge? 

~5 H2 sa:.d to be just a couple ~i~utes ..... .-... -­... , ... :-. ._. 



------, 

and t .. .s \oic~ld be finished up a:.-.. d be bacl~ 

2 Q Now, did you watch the v6ssc: aftc:: 

3 2C dE.grees right rudder? 

4 A This is -- there's something I'ffi not real clear 

5 and at a later dat~ through th~ various investigations, 

6 primarily ~ith the Justice people, I became aware of what 

7 appeared to me to be a fix. So there is a very good chance 

E that I went back into the chart room after ordering the 2C 

9 

12 

13 

1: 

1 t I 

17 

1 0 - I 
19 

20 

21 

Q 

. .. 

And ~ bcli~ve that -- ~ believe 

(Pau~.:..) 

"'--~1 _,r.._ ~-
....... .1....... C&. .... I.,. .._ ,1_ 

......... ........... a ph~to;raph hsr~. 

t a l:E:- :-. , c J-: ;:;. :y 7 

A Uh-!"'.tUh. 

T ,.,.:] :_ _., ,.."l - .,_ t. -- ~~- ............................ . 

• l .................. 

Q I would ask you to take a look at what has been 

22 marked for identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number JC a~-

23 Numbc1· and ask you if you recognize those two picture~~ 

24 A Yes, I do. 

25 Would y~~ start with what has be6~ identified as 



llG 

Plaintiff's Exhibit NumbEr 29, and t~ll --what is that a 

2 picturE of? 

3 J.... This is a picture of a section of the traffic 

4 separation schemE down to and including Bligh Reef, depictiL~ 

5 thE fixes that I took, and our grounding position. 

6 Q Is that a fair and accurate picture of the actual 

7 chart that you had that evening? 

8 J.... Yes. 

9 
..,.. • - •• ., ..:J - ....... ~ 
~ J\ 'o,J ................. ... -...~ y ~ 

11 

12 r:o obj;;;ctio:::-•. 

1 J THE COURT: It is ad;aittEd. 

14 (State's E;~hitit !1'-lrr.bE::: :-: 

15 was ad~ittEd i~ evidenc~.: 

lt: B';.' !:f.. COLE: 

1 7 
I ""' 

I 
>c: 

.. , ... 

., -· ., - -. - .... ,..... . . .... ~·· , , 
~:&.J.•- .... ~ .... .J v ..... ""'.._ _ _.. 

: - ..... ,_ - .. 
It 

li 
.. ~ ........................ 

' 

..... ;...;, 1.. 4.&.1...4 ..... 

19 " 

20 2355 fix off cf Busby Island Light, it's showing these mc:.:;:l::: 

21 that I referred to that I believe to be something that 

22 in hast~. 

23 Q Is that a fair and accurate photograph of 

24 chart? 

:?5 



t1R. co::..r:: I would rr,ove for the ad~issi~~ cf 

, . -... ~. 

2 has pr~vi~usly b~e~ identified as Plaintiff's Exhibi: IJ~~be~ 

3 30. 

4 HR. MADSOI1: No objection. 

5 

6 (State's Exhibit Nuilib~~ ~~ 

7 was admitted as evidence.) 

8 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

9 Q How, on Plaintiff's E:-:hibi t Nunbcr 30, the;j,:c c.rc -::~:: 

10 

12 

,... - .. - ...... 4- .... , ' ..,..... - .. - , - .~ 
t.:J.....,. .._ C-4. ~_...._..,. -'i.lU.._ ~ ... ;_ • 

. ..,. I dcii' t -- I could:~'~ irna;;:.~~~ 

13 els~ dciL~ anything with this chart after the g~c~L~i~;. '!:'>·· .. ......... ... 

14 agai::-., as I had ~ chart -- a copy of the chc;.::: ar • .;. ::.:.::.:l~:..:~ -...~ 

16 cf refereLc~ -:hat I was using all along. 

18 C ,_ .• --
J ........ .J. • 

yc~ cc;.~ USE this to show th~ .J """ .... .l 
.... \ ..... ~ ·~--
, ........... ""' ,J--~ .. 19 

20 mear •. Dividers up here, and what you mean by how these 

21 scratch marks got on this? 

22 A Instead of using the compasses, the co:rr.passes b.:...:. .. ~ 

23 like the dividers except with a piece of lead -- and qui~~ 

24 frankly, they were sloppy; they had a lot of slop in the~ --

25 sc -- a~e it takes extra time and care from moving from th~ 



d~s~anc~ scale ov~r to whEre you want to scribe, sc in haste : 

2 beli<::ve that I pick up a pair of dividers and scribe intc 

3 the paper ranges. 

4 Q And can you give the jury an idea of how yo~ we~:~ 

5 \.. -, . - ~ 
.U.at~~ d:me that with those dividers? 

6 A Yes. Whatever that range was from here real q .. ~ -1-u ........... .~. 

7 and just scratch into the paper, and again blind, just scr:.~~:-~ 

8 into the paper. 

9 

: c I; 
I! 

1' 
I I ;.;t.:r c. 

12 

After you got done with that -- w~ll, 

14 ,.."] ~ ~ .. - ~ --
....... 1,4 ... ~4!!;1j 

15 period of tiffi~ anJ inforffiing you about the red light at Eli;h 

17 

12 

19 ..:ould that happcr.~.;..;~? 

20 A That was at the 2355 fix. 

21 Q Did she come in after that? 

22 A Shortly after that. I think just about the ti~~ 

23 that I was giving the 10 right command, she came in and 

24 corrected herself. She initially reported the light as a !i~~ 

25 s~ccnd light, and returned to inform me that it ~a~ a f~~~ 



I 

i 
I 

I 
II secc,nd red flashing light. 

2 Q After you ca~~ out of the chart room then, wh~t did 

3 you do? hnd this is after you have scratched in on the chart: 

4 A Being that I don't specifically relilember doing t!-. ... :..., 

5 ::;:: dvr-.' t 

6 Q What do you remember next happening? 

7 A Being at the radar. This is a time when I am 

8 beco~ing very concerned about the movement cf the vessel 

9 

10 :::a;;t.a:i.n. 

11 r, 

~ 

12 right?· 

13 ' n \l~ssc:!., J8 dcgr~es. 

14 Q Ar.C. is thut th<:t you 

15 
. 
.n I d0n' t }:nov; tl~a t it is oft.;;~ .. ; It 

16 c~ .. tt ..... 

17 , --~· ,,...., _ _,. ~ ...... ., ....... ~.,,..:J •-1·- ---·· 
.... - '. .. """' .... ':::1 ~ '- "'- ...,) ~ ..... \..4 ..... I... J.- ~ - \.4 .J ,__ ...... • . .._- ._ 

18 ., .: .... - .. .- - .... - .. - .:. • - .... r ..... ,., - -· .. . - ,... 
............ ._ '-"- '-""'""""- ...... ~ .... L..o. ..... _, ...... """''-~·t,.;..--, 

- -- ~ - .. ._ -
~.- ....... _ ..... .._ ..... __ ";:::~ .... 

19 

20 idea? 

21 A I don't under --

22 Q How far forward would you have gone --

23 
,. 
n Oh, the advance? 

24 Q Right, the advance of the tanker if you haC. crd~~c~ 

?.5 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

r.ecessc.J..·:x·. 

time? 

Q 

A 

Q 

. .. 

E:-~c use rr • .::. • I think more foundatic~ --

At what speed, for instance. 

THE COURT: Objection sustained as to foundatic~. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

What happened when you ordered a hard rig~:: 

I turned to call the Captain. 

Were you watching the rudder at all during this 

: obscr~2d it at 20 right. 

'j. -· .. ~1 .. -..: ,-...1- ........................ -.1"·', 
...... ~ .. """ ......... '::::f ... J> .... _...; ........................ . 

,... -.., -: -...:I ..... \..., 
\,.Q..A. .. ~\,4 ~... ...... ~ Gave the;:; hal·d right -:or,,;;,u..-.d. 

- -· -· .. - -
......... -...J w ......... .... _""" __ 

trouble. He; the rudder. 

13 hard l-ight. I turned, it hadn't moved to har~ right. 

14 still at "" ... v. At t~c.t point we suf:ered the first 

'c I! -v;i thin a rna t ter c-f seconds we were hard agr c-...:-.d. 

1t, Q 

17 ~ 

~-

12 )c 

19 . ' 
20 Q 

21 point? 

22 ;.. 

23 Q 

24 A 

Th;;;; fi:.:st ~lhat do :xc·..; 

thG first initial contact -v.·itr. B:igL r.c'--:. 
't - .. -- -- ~ ... 
, • .._I:'.~ '-•• .. _-. 

Did you -- what did you tell the Captain at that 

There was nothing else to say. 

Did he -- did he realize it? 

I believe so. There was -- you know, a mutual hang 

-~ u~ c: the telephones. 



..., 

HoK long did you -- would you describe wh&t 

2 heard cr what you felt when the tanker first hit? 

3 A Best it could be described as a rumbling. 

4 Q And how long would have -- did you get a sense 

5 wher~ tLat rumbling started from and ended cr anything lil~~ 

6 that? 

7 A Somewhere up forward, and there were a series of 

8 jolts. It seemed to let up for just like a split second, aild 

9 -v;c just stepped. The vessel head was still 

10 

I 
rapid::.~· .. ~ 

... ..; 

11 r. 
\o: 

12 the: ri;-ht? 
li 

13 
. •• 

14 rigt...t. 

15 

16 
. 
.t:. 

the right. I had ordered a har~ " -~ .c ... ,_ .. +- ;. .. ...... _ .,_ ...,.l """"'·~:-"' . 
V.'l:. at de ycu me&n, the vessel was sv;~:--.; ::..::;; r~~::.~lj-

·v-essel head was 

l:l.y did you order a hard left? 

::: l:n<::>: Ke were hard aground. :t1y ft:ar is t!-.& ~ -;.;'-

K<:..r<:. sliding d::;•:~. the reef, th..-; rear of t~:..(.; vessel, l. ,_ - .r:. 
t,...a.J.- \..4 .... '-17 

-·--~---.!-- ~ ....... J. _____ ,._..,_ J..l. ~---'--
;;,w••.&.·~~··~ ...... .., \,.Vh'-4._ _ _. '""'••- .L.V-1•....;• 1 B 

19 p~~pl~ ~~ th~ engine roc~. 

20 don't want to endanger -- try to do something for them, yo~ 

21 know. 

22 Q What were you worried about actually happening? 

23 A Holing the engine room. 

24 Q What happens when you hole the engine room? 

25 Well, you have people down there fc~ one thi~;-. 

. -... ~ 



Anothc~ thing is that you are ~robably going 

2 ship. 

3 Q When you say lose your ship, it sints or capsi~cs: 

4 Correct. 

5 Q How long did it take -- who actually turn~d 

6 wheel on the hard left? 

7 

8 

10 

12 

14 

1 s 

A 

Q 

. .. 

I did. 

Why did you do it? 

hesitat~d, ane I was standing right th~r~. 

Q 

... -~ ~ ... . .J .._, ....... .... 

., "'-.. 

-- •.. ·~ - -· _.:T ........................... ~. 

~hy ~~s~'t Hr. LcCain up there ~nd =crlacin; J- ~- . 

,. .. -

,, . 
'· 

...... \- ....... ~. --~ ,_ • •..I _ ....... ·- ....... ~··· 

17 
._..._ 

._..- -- - ......... ,.... ~ 

................ '- ....... I.... ... 

li:i ., ~ .. - ... \- . ... ,- -. .. , ,_ .: . 
-""'"~··---~ ....... .~. ........... ~... ...... ._..~. ....... ~ ........ 4J. ...... 

19 

20 hel:rr.? 

21 A No. 

22 Q Were you aware that he had had trouble at the he~~. 

23 in the past? 

24 HR. HADSON: Your Honor, I would object. It'.;; .:. 

~5 lending question. It implies that this witness should kno~ 



som~thi~g that he doesn't. 

2 THE COUR~: Objection ov~~~uled. 

3 BY MR. CCLE: (Resuming) 

4 Q We~e you aware that he had had problems i:::-. th~ 

6 A Another second mate had talked with me about 

7 something that had happened on a prior voyage and that 

8 

9 

1 c 

1l 

12 

15 

13 

19 

' 

I 
II 
ii 

hr:c:.rsay, 

' .-. 

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I would object to any 

your Hcnor. 

rT'"'!"7"t"" : :mr. :- : .............. 

.. ,. ,-.,......, r r- . 

.l ....... • ..._..v.J....J~. 

':I!E cour. ':': bei~~ cfferEd fo~ the trut~ ~: 

stat~ 

,...~., '"L' ,....,......T r. 
l,_, J. ~J.•• • .....,.v~....._. • 

Gc al:.t:ad. Ycu ~~~6 saying ycu ha~ lc~~n~~ 

I b<:olieve, ............. _, ~ \.. - - l,ll.,.~ 
...:4.......... """'"'-..... ~.6 .... • 

20 had quite some difficulty in steadying up on a course. 

21 (Pause.) 

22 Q .Afte~ the vessel came to a stop -- well, whe~ ycu ~~ 

23 de you remember looking at a clock at all aft~r -- dur~n; 

24 the time the vessel hit or when it came to a stop or any ti~~ 



A Well, I did and whatever I wrote down and ~hate•~~ 

2 recoll~~t is off by s~v~ral minutes, but as what : recoll~ct 

3 was 0004, which is the time that I logged as the plot I toe}~ 

4 after we were hard aground. I now think that, you know, 

5 that's incorrect. 

6 Q And would ~lOU -- the 004 that -- would :,·o~.,;. e:-:pl.:.:..;. 

7 to the jury where you came up with that number, why? 

8 A Came up with what, 0004? 

9 Q 00~. W~s that what yo~ put en the chart? 

l 0 

ll 

12 

1:: 

l ~ 

15 

. .. , Yt;;.s. As th~ tim~ of grounding . 

r' 

"' An~ y0~ now think that that is wren;? 

, .._ r . - -r ,.., -
r• .I.....:..,. I ...._ """"'"-" • 

~ 

~ does tir. • .;; 00~ he.·.-.:: 

si;ni~ic~ncc t~ yo~? 

, .-. 

1 f I' - • ~ct~.:.lly this -- this plot ~a~ ~.:.a~ .:. f~~ 

17 - & .... ,-to .... \or~-

- .- ., ., l. . .: .... . . ~, .... 

~ ~ .... v...._.._.._ ...... l.....lr...6.!':::1 1...6.6.(...,. .._....._.t.ut.... • 

19 

20 right in front of you when you hit? 

21 This one. 

22 Q Did you have it in front of you? 

23 No, I just -- to say that I was concerned abo~t what 

24 time it was at that point, I don't think I was. I was more 

75 concerned about the casualty to the vessel. 



A:tc~ the hard left, how lo~g d~d it take fo~ 

2 vessel to sta~t steadying up and step its rig~t t~rr.? 

3 A I don't recall. I would have to refer to the co~~~: 

4 recorder. 

5 Q Arc you fawiliar with the course rec~rdcr that ·~ 

6 board there? 

7 A Fairly familiar. 

8 Q And is it a pretty fair and acc~rate represent=t~=~ 

- --~·~-.~!":: ~ 
\-\,o'"-'l, ... o.;J\_. 

10 I wc~:d s&~· so. 

11 the course record~r. 

12 steady that vessel? 

13 tc have stoppc.:l 

14 ~ppre~imatEly twelve ffiinutes after. 

16 

1 ~ 

19 

20 Q 

21 

22 A 

23 to swing. 

"~:" .. -....... _. 

~ -·· _, 'I' ... - •. .., _, ,_ - .• - •• 

.f~ ... - ~· '-" '"""'- ._ .l ,_ y .... """ " ...... 

IJ:. -- F:agar. was 

Okay. 

..... \.. -· \... -.,- ....,_-.I.. .. ....... ""- ... 

.. ':. \ ........ '- •·'-~ ... ~~· 

After you turned the hard left, what did you de? 

Hard left, I went on out to watch the rudder star~ 

I swung it, I saw that it was cc:ing back le::. 

24 went out onto the pert bridge wing and turned on thE brid;~ 

:?5 dow.:1 onto 



Ci~ected thQt over the side of the ship in an atteffipt sec 

3 Q P~io~ tc going out on the bridge wing, had CaptQin 

4 HQzelwood arrived on the bridge? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

l 0 
I' ,I 

I i 

12 

,, 
]'l 

i: 

1 ~ 

15 

19 

20 

;.. I believe l .. c had, but that of co;.;,rsc, whe;n ~·vu. :;. __ ,. 

at the diagram of this, the bridge entry is behind me, he'~ 

he would be entering from here and I am standing up forward. 

Q I'm sorry. 

Ho~ long wo~ld you have been 
_ .. 
"''"' 

¥ ..... , , 

•n ~.,... .......... I 

the wh<::el7 

J~st e~cug~ to turn it and then --

Jus~ : ... 
-'-'-I loo}~ to se.::. th<:; rudde:r wa.s 

.-1 - -· • -

"'-'--- .l ............. 

.. 
I was standing right there. I said hard left again. The:r. h..:. 

21 responded, okay, hard left, and I watched the rudder start t~ 

22 swing back left. From there I went out to the port bridge 

23 wing. 

24 Q And you would have gone out through the port wiLg 

25 doon:a::l. 



b Yeah, right tha~ way. 

2 Q Do you specifically remember seeing Captain 

3 Hazel~ood on your way out? 

4 A No, I don't. 

5 Ho...- :ong wo~ld you have been o~t the port 

6 A Perhaps for a few minutes. 

7 Q Did Captain Hazelwood join you out there? 

8 1. Wh0n I ca~e inside, I met the Captain. He wa;.; 

9 I a~ not sure whcr: 

lG thu starboard side this way. 

11 jus-:: c. ..... ..: +-. \.. \.-..!-
~~ ~ '""""'' ........ hi, 

12 Q O}~o.y. 

You p~inting tc the arec. arc~~~ t~~ ., ~ +- ....... ~ 

.... ~ """'""'~ ... 

14 

15 - ,~- . - .. ·~ 
~ ... 1.,..- ......... ~ ...... 

1 t : rt:.~c.ll. 

p 
•I 

15 T ··~' "'! - .., : '~ .._ ,·,vu ........ ._..._,~.;.... 
,1. \ : - -~ .. -

........... - ..... ~ t.... ................. 

19 

20 Hazelwood left the bridge at -- between 11:53 and 11:54. 

& ·--- --........ '-•••' 

l-- •• c __ 
'"'~., ........ :::f 

-- . .,:,-_,... ...... ~,;. 

21 What would you have done after he left the bridg~ 

22 that time? 

23 s~~tch ste~ring modes. Go to hand s~eering. 

24 (Pause.) 

Oka:y. 



A I s~itched that, yes, okay, to helm stee~ing ~~de, 

2 okay. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

1 D 

11 

12 

1" 

14 
I 

I 
15 I 

!: 
,, I 

I' 

:i 
1 ~ I· 

II 
1 E 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

See to the port radar. Set up the variable range 

marker in advance of taking the fix on Busby Island Ligt.:.. 

Q Ol~ay. 

A Proceed out on the port bridge wing. Set up &,... --......... 

taking the visual on the light. 

Q And did you go all the way out there to the end 

;. 'I'hE:; azintutlL c::.rcle. was ~lread:i cut the;re. 

Bu~ yc~ had to gc out to th~ er..d~ 

AnC.. y;::,-..: t.:.o}: yoi.lr fi:·: tht;n at 1.1:557 

.,. ~,. - -
r. • ~ ;_, • 

'! 'f'\-. - ... - ... -- •• i ...:I 
., .o.~ ~.- .... ._. .,, v '"-4..L."""' 

f T""'_., •• ,... ' 

\ "- CL """";_, "-'" • 1 

- s: ... - ..,.­.......................... 

au.:! 

T:"' .. - .... . ' ___ ;::' ..... '-· ,~ .:_ ... "''"· - \- ~ . - ...._ ... ~ ""' .- .... 
J::-"""J .... '- -\..-4"""--. .... ~ ........ ._~. ·~·L. .... ..... ........ ~ .......... - .......... , t----- ..... 

the fix. 

Q And when did Maureen Jones come in? 

A Just as I was finishing up that fix. 

Q Finisl;. fix. Then after that, after she came i4. 

24 Finish plotting? 

25 Finish -- wc:l, I ~:us -- I ~as finish(;d plotting 



wh~L shE gavE thE rEport of Bligh Reef buoy. 

2 Q Okay. 

3 And then what did you do? 

4 I went out to the forward part of the bridg~, the 

5 nav arc.;<:i. Gav~ th~ 10 right command. Picl~Ed up t:t.c 

6 flashlight on the near bulkhead and called the CaptaiL 

7 inform him that we had initiated the turn back towards 

8 lanes. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

17 

19 

20 

21 

/, 

+-'I-~ - ,_ 

~ 

r. 

. .. 

\.,. 6.1. .l. .... J- ,, ........ 

.. __ , ~l---­

.l·~· .._ .......... '- 4,,j. & f ~ Cl.- ..... ______________ __ 

l1R. Hl~oDSO!:: Your Honor, 

~"'T'r"' r,-..TT'f'",.,... 0 
~ .l.i..., \....UI.,.. J.-.. .o. • That ; .. .::.::r to;; right. 

MR. COLE: This part? 

th<:. .._ ., .. - - -
t,..!,.. ...... l_..t-- .... ,_ .... ._ 

1.-. ......... _, 

-·· ._ ._ I 

,__ ~ ··- - •.. ~- ,-- -- ~ - - ,... . -
~~ ... H ................. I;,;... -- -·•• .I>•.J 

THE COURT: I don't know, but there's no objection; 

22 just a statement by Mr. Madson, so you --

23 MR. MADSC!:: Well, I object to the quEstion then, 

24 your Honor. It's asked and answered. 

25 THE: COUP.':': r doL't recall if this has bEen asked 



and answered, but if it has, we'll let him ask a~d a~s~~~ .: ... 
J. ... 

2 ag&ir .... 

3 BY ML. COLE: (Resurr.ing) 

4 Q You had your first telephone conversation, and t~Qt 

5 lasted appr~~i~ately how long? 

6 A At least a minute and a half. 

7 (Pause.) 

8 Q And that conversation, you spoke about the pozs~~--

9 :c~ ~roblems and Mr. LeCain and the ~atch? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

18 

19 

" r. 

20 bulkhead? 

21 A 

22 

23 Q 

24 

25 A 

,...., -- • - ~ - - J 

--~ ... (_. ........... 

',- . 'a. ....... ....,_._ • I 

~:;.c.~ t.appenc.:! aft.:~ that convcrsa ticn ther:..? 

I turnca again tc the p~rt radc.~. 

..: ,.... ,..., .: ·-- ~ .- .,,. 

....... u ..... \.,. l,...o. ..... ~....- ..... 

,-.- ·- ·- - -- ... ·._,- ..... ·._ ............ 

.,. - _, ..... \.... +-
~~ • .I........ .... ............... 

Yes. 

(Pause.) 

Otay. 

~c.v.: been the one at 

What did you do after that? 

r ----
.._ -- Y.l..1..- .._.. 

::::: told t:~. Kagan t~ go ahead and gc t it all tt.: ~.-.:l-



-, 

II 

over tc 1~ -- :~ right. 

2 (P~us~.) 

3 Q wr:.a t did what -- when you looked at the rudd~~ 

4 angle indicator, what did it look --what did you see? 

5 .h. 

6 Q 

7 h 

8 Q 

9 ... 
~ c r-

"" 

12 

14 

15 

16 

18 

19 

20 port 

21 A 

22 

23 Q 

24 

It lc,c,}~,;;d as though it was 6 or .., d.::.,;l· c;;.;s right . I 

What did you do after that? 

I stepped out on the port bridge wing 

When did Hiss Jones come in? 

rT'I't ..... ' - f.; Q~~ }::..;.c}: at th<.,; first •"-J.'-4\,.. "" 
T- ~ ~ she came il.l. t.h.;; •• \.;,. .... .L , first tin.t::: vvl.l.el. j'O..l ~t...~~ 

- .. 

Ye::.,. And tl.~.~r. sl.~.e came in just like se~or.ds later. 

ttt-huL. 

Bridge wing. 

(Pause.) 

Oka~·. 

the::.:.:. --

, ·" ... v 

Looked back at Busby Island Light. 

hnd after coming back in, what did you look at? 

25 ~?hat did you de; 



A I would have gone back to the port radar. 

2 th~t's the -- the ranges that I had take~ at that time I 

3 tclievc a~c i~~icated by the scratches, scribe marks on the 

4 c!-.ar t . 

5 Q 

6 there? 

7 

8 

9 

l G 

ll 

12 

13 

15 

l t 

17 

1 
~ 

c 

19 

20 

21 

I 

I 
I 

I 
i 

! 

.--,-.? 
:::~'-'• 

, .... ,_ .....,,_. 
J- \.o/V..,lL• 

A 

Q 

, 
•• 

Q 

~ 

"' 

. .... 

Q 

A 

I believe so. 

(Pause.) 

~hen you ca~e out of the chart roc~. wt~ra 

B- ~·-c. ..... I ... to tL~ radar, port rada~. 

happened after that? 

,... r. ~- : -··, .. 
""""'v • ..... ~""~,. cr.c.::: 

~PUUSt.;.) 

And then what happened? 

I order the hard right at that tiffie. I believ.:;; 

22 there was perhaps fifteen to thirty seconds before I ord&~~~ 

23 the hard 1·ight. 

24 (Pause.) 

25 Q And did you se~ the rudd~r come around to 
..,,... 



"' - -, ........... 

whcL yc~ ord~r~d a hard right rudder? 

2 A No, I didn't. At that time I turn~d -- I s~~~ t~~~ 

3 right, and I turned, picked up the phon~. called the Ca~~~~---

4 Q Sc that would have been your second telephone 

5 conv;;;rsa tior.? 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

A 

,..., 
.... 

. .... 

That's correct. 

Did you know the heading of the ship at this t~~E. 

I can't recall what it was at this time. 

" .. ~, 1 ~or .. 
.l•• .& ·-- .& .. -' • ' long did that con~crs3tic~ ., -- ... .., ...... 1,.4.~""" • 

a~ .. 

12 of that? What happened after that? 

13 
, .. 

14 vess;:;l 

15 tc th<.: bridge 

16 

~,. - -
.J.. t.,;..._ •• 

13 tt ~- ':::1 ...... -
...... ,...., ... _, ~- .. - .,___ .. , ...:J #., ... ---.--•·"--- ..... ~ .................... _ ~'"' - r 

19 

20 ]. That's correct. 

21 Q And frorn there what happened? From there you wc~t 

22 out to the port -- the --

23 
.. Tl.e port bridge wing. .... 

24 Q Okay. 

•s Q T"..:.l·nt:d or, the bridge wing flood .., ! -\- .... -...... ~, ....... ~. 



(PaUS(;.) 

2 THE CO~RT: Col€o, this is goir-.g to bE; c. 

3 tim€; fer the break. 

4 Don't discuss the case in any fashion with anyb~~i· 

5 Dc~'t fer~ or €oXpr€oss any opinions. We'll comE; bacl~ 

6 ten or fifteen. 

7 THE CLERK: Please rise. This Court stands in 

8 recess subject to call. 

10 

11 

12 

1? 

14 

15 

17 

1" •: 
I 

19 

20 

21 

- ~- ""' - .. - - , ~ 
~ ......... ~.t-" ...... -'·1.-

. .. 
----,... .. .. 
ct.~ .. - ............ _. 

cr. 

:ouJ:~ .stood ir. recess fron. 

;:. ' c l 0 c J: ;;, • :;; .. ) 

r:~:= :::our. T : 

BY l!f,. CCLE: (Resuming) 

! .. ..... 

....,. --- ... -. ..: ..... 
'-.1o4'- '-C....,t--''-'\..4-4.••t 

. , 
...................... -· 

Yes. 

+.: -­
.L J.. .... 

c... fix, 

-1 • _, 

"'"" • -. r - ' -- ., ~ .... ·-,-
--~~-· ~···· 

I . \.... :l 
~~......: .... ~ •-' ._... ....... 

c;-. 

Q Is that set forth in the photograph that you have ~~ 

22 front of you? 

23 Yr;;S, it is. 

24 Q And would you, pointing to that, hold that up and 

25 poir.: to tl-..: ji.n-j·. 



A That's right hErE. 

2 Q :::::s tr.ere; an ir.tersection of a couple: of l:..r.;;;.s tl • ._..:-:. 

3 at that point? 

4 Yes. Indicates two diffe:rent range:s. 

A~~ Y(.,w ~cu.ld ha~E plottEd th~ fix of .... ,_ - ... - - -
\.o.L.I.t; "i\;.W~ ......... 5 

6 right in the inters~ction of those two range markers. 

7 A Someone might get a little confused if it was stated 

8 that way and they look at the photograph. They're really ~~0 

9 positions that arE close togethEr. I believe the first en~ 

1 r ;, 

11 cf slcp 

- ~ - , ~ 1 
...._,;_;-""""' ..... l-4.~ 

. . . 
~n :.. .... 

12 ;:,£ c;:.,u.1·s"-::::: tL:..r:J: -v:e wc:-E:o all shake-. scrr.ewhat b:;· t:-.c 

14 .r: -': .. ~ ,.... ! 
....... .tr.. ...:.>I,. the upp<::rmost th.;;s.::.. 

15 r-
1.: 

m1- .,. ..... .... -
• .~.. ..... _ _.. 1..- ~ "- n....., 

16 
. .. 

17 ( 
_, . 
--~.- ..... 

~:onQ this en~ line, 

18 . . -. -.;• __ --
... ·._- . 

19 r• 

"" 
T ··--.: ....- _... 
..1.~ ............. I.J ...... ~ .. ~ 

. . ., - -· ,..._. 
~.J..u.u.~ 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q And that would be just north of the five fathom rnc:.rl: 

22 right there:? That would be your first fix? 

23 The uppermost or northernmost point was the 

24 f ~ .. .;...h. The one just below is the second fix. 

25 And that would be above the letters, S-H? 



h. Correct. 

2 What docs S-H mean? 

3 A That's an abbreviation for describing the type of 

4 bottom. 

5 ;.~.d did you show the Captain that 

6 A He looked at it. 

7 Q What happened next? Do you remember anyone co~in~ 

s in on the bridge while you were plotting that fi::? 

9 

11 

12 

II 
1'1 - i 

I 
1 ~ 

15 

10 it 

\I 
1 ~ I' 

1 c li 

19 

r-. ............ -.~ ...... ,_. ~....o.r- ..... c... .... .1.. 

,.. 
X. 

I d:,n' t l:r~o-;; if it was while I was plv~~=..:~;;, 

l.Ld d~J you tell him anything? 

were hard agrou~~-

"'"C' --r·--,.--• ._) c..\'~ c.. .... r...~ t~·s u~ here en the 

V~Gt did yc~ de after ycu plott~d 

r ,. ~, . .,--.- _., 
• .. ...... ...... ~,..o..._ .... .;.... ..... 

-- ""\ , 

I:' ..... .-
\ .. ~ .__ . ._. ~ ' 

\...,. .... ..:; ,.=,,.. ... 
.., ....... -::::~ .. # .. 

~ .. ~ :: ~ . -----:t'- .............. --
..:..~ ..... - • .L • 

~ell ... ~ ....... '···-·· 
20 the engines were shut down? 

21 A Probably quicker if I look at the bell book. 

22 actually -- yeah, I would have to look at the bell logger. 

23 (Pause.) 

24 Q Have you seen the bell logger for the Exxon Valdc~ 

75 en that evening? 



A Sever&l times. 

2 I a~ show~ng you what has been marked for 

3 identific&tion as Pl&intiff's Exhibit Number 17. Do you 

4 recognize that? 

5 

6 Q 

7 A 

8 changes. 

9 

10 c.... ...1. 
"'- ~ ............ ~ ........... ~ 

11 

12 Q 

13 

14 

15 

16 

12 

19 

20 

21 witness 

22 or not? 

23 

24 

?.5 

yes. 

What is that a representation of? 

That's a print out of engine speed and speed 

; .. n~ 

... ... 

•. - -: -- .c ... 
.JVY ~\;."""-

po:::: ~~or. of th.:.. 

th~ dock or just & p&rt of it? 

- +-
..... I.. • t L"' t I s l~i 0 s t 0 f 

Is that a fa:L: &r.J accurate represer.taticr. ::::c::. 2.t 

Yes. 

I I. -~ .., ........... 

• If., "r- ,..... ,., 't" -
.6.J.J.:I.~_...., ••• 

I, ... --. -
\ J.. 1..-4'-'1..:.;.._ • I 

MR. MADSON: 

l•- ..... 'T •. L.J.. T'!'-- --
i.J..._.,.J ~ .:..>"-'.._. t...6J.I,....6,'-t ,lY\...4- J,,~..._, ..... ..., .... • 

You Honor, could I voir dire the 

for just a second with regard to this before I object 

THE COURT: All right. 

VOIR DIRE 

BY Hf.. MADSON: 



Q Mr. Cousins, you'v~ indicated that that seeffis tc L~ 

2 or app~ars to be a~ acc~rate reproduction of a port~ou cf tLc 

3 bell logger, correct? 

4 A Ye;s. 

5 What a~~~t th~ l~ttle notations en tt~~e? 

6 Grcur.ding, for instance? Do you agree with the time and \-."f.<:..::.: .:. 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
i. 

19 

that is 

prograrr. 

.. 1- ..: ~- , . 
\,.. ""' ........ J ~ 

~ .. 

" •. 

stated on 

up, things 

!J::;. t • 'l.-....... .~. ... 

(Pause.) 

there, and where midnight is? And the 

like this? 

-- the loud pr ~gra;r; up d ~,- c-•• I,._ s ~:: : .. .... ~ 
V-...,t.LI. 1.. ~"' 

of an es~i~ate on 

Your hcnor, I would obj.::c:.. ........ 
..... ~ is 

!:. r... 

ar.d accurate reproduction as far as 

are rc~oved frcffi there 

- , - .&- .: • ~ 
........ -~-·...; ....... '- ..... ._; .... 

TH:C CCURT; ... ·- ' .-.'\.... 
,;.... ... ..L .......... !(,:.,._.._ """"""......, __ 

20 two parts? 

21 MR. COLE: Well, I am going to establish them at a 

22 later tin.e. I'll just put a piece of tape across there. 

23 THE COUF..T: All right. Is there any reason fo::.: 

24 to go into evidence now you're going to establish it at a 

2 5 : a t e :.: t i rr. e 7 

T ..... 



- --, 

MR. COL:C: No, JudgE, I'll withdraw it. 

2 THE COUR:': Okay. 

3 DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed) 

4 BY MR. COLE: 

5 Q Do you st~ll hav~ th~ b~ll logger in front of Y--· 

6 A Uo, I don't. 

7 THE COURT: Mr. Madson, except for those two 

8 portions you have no objection to the exhibit then, is tfi~~ 

9 

10 

11 

12 things 

.:. . ,.. 
~ ....... 

Well, yc~r Honor, 

could asl: tl:...=.; -v;i tness 

en th~re that he believes mig~t b~ incorrect cr 

13 can't sa~ for sur~, then I would object to thos~, tc-. 

14 ,. ., ., -, 
~. t,; ........ , :::mr.T: 

15 already, t~t I'll give yo~ & last o~portuni~y. 

16 

..! .,... +- ... - _., .• - • :. ~ • - & .:. ..... .0.\ ·'~·-~ _,., 

\-. 
•• <.. 

17 ~ .... "" ,.1.. "" - '-~ - ,_ ..... '-' ... ... ........ ... '-'••-.i .. ..,;. ~·- - .......... ,,._ \' ...... _. 

18 - ."'' ··-. 
..... -....... ...... t-· • ..... !:::) .. ~-··· 

......... . .: .. .: - --· 
"-"J:-1 '-""'-••·....o..•J.':::) 

+-'1.----- ---~ ._.,,..t;:,...._ ..... ...... ... .J 
- ..... \., ... _ 
.... '-••"-• 19 

20 inaccuracies in that exhibit that you can see? 

21 THE WITNESS: Not that I can see, your Honor. 

22 THE COURT: It will be admitted if those can b~ 

23 eliminated and those c~n tc reinstated if there is a 

24 foundation for them later on. 

~ (State's E~h~bit ~umber 17 



2 

3 Q 

was admitted in evidence.) 

BY MP .• COLE: (Resuming) 

What ti~e did you shut down the engines the first 

1 1: r 
... .,.'"' 

4 tiffie &fter the grounding? 

5 A 

6 referring to the bell logger it was 12:20, alt~ough I h~-c~': 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 I 
il 

1'1 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 E 

19 

20 

found it in here yet. I really don't see the start and stc~ 

for this. 

Q This is th~ 24th. 

A Th~ Captain instruct&d me to go below, alcng with 

s i t 1.4 c. t i cr •. 

. 
~. Y~s, I did . 

... \.-, - +- ") .... .~. .. at..... 

\-- • - ; ·l -- -
................. ::f"-• 

A To the best of my recollection there was the chief 

21 mate and the master having a conversation about his initia: 

22 assessm~nt of the damage to the vessel. I don't rec.lly know 

23 what the contc;:t of that conversation was because I wc.s .... _ ._ 

24 included in that. 

25 Q Were y~~ ord0red to start the vessel forward &;a~~-

I 
.~ 



2 

3 

> 
.h At so~etimc late~. 

I was given a series of engine orders, 

4 to full ah~ad. 

5 Q What w&s the purpose of thos~? 

6 cc~mands giv~n at that time? 

increas::.~.;; 

~ /1 , ......... 

7 A Yes, I believe there was. I don't know exactly ~h~t 

8 those commands were. 

9 Q -- well, wher0 we~~ 

1: .. ... .a..a.--- . 
12 ~ 

"" 
13 ' r• 

14 Q 

15 ' . .-. 

16 '"' '.: 

17 .... -· , ··1 . 
I...._, • .._ .. 

-· • .- v 
- •-Vt--· ----- ..... ,- ~--

'-.LJ.:;:, ... J.•'-..J ·-··· 

18 T 'T- ., ~ 

'''-·...._-.I 

19 I 'r"-_ •·. 

\ .l Y u.J ~._; • I 

20 Q Can you tell from the bell logger? 

21 A Yes, I was just looking through here. If this is 

22 the sa~e as that, it's 0141. 

23 Q What -- what was the purpose of these ruddc~ 

24 commands and running the ship ahead forward? 

25 .. 
.n Well, I didn't really know what the purpose of it 



142 

was. I assume that it was the result of whateve~ t~~ chi~f 

2 That6 and th~ Captbin had talked about, the conversa~iv~ ~l~~t l 

3 wasn't included in. 

4 Q What did you personally believe was going on~ 

5 !1R. MADSON; Well, you Honor, I'll object tc 

6 relevancy. I don't know as it matters what he believes 

7 this point, since he doesn't know what the Captain was doing. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

THE COURT: I don't see how it is going to assi~~ 

' ... , ~ ...... 

BY HL. COLE: 

Colt=. 

(Res ur.-.ir.g; 

Do you remember telling anybody els~ ~hat th~ 

1~ pu~pcs~ ~~s cf t~yin~ -- cf running the vessLl ahe&~ ~~~ ~=in; 

1 j • 1 , ....... _, ~ •. -
l- .... '- .. I,.. _. ....... ,_, .... 

- ... , .. -- .. ~· . -
\.._,. ,_ .. ~._..... ~.. .•... \,....-15 

; ~ , I T" ., ., - +- ~ \...-
•• 1._. ...._ .._ 1 CL L. ~.u.;._ 

1
: 

,I ..,.. -- . - -. : .·.- -
~ ..... ~...._ ........ :f_lo.o._ .. 

l-' ,,.-..... - ,_ - .. - - .... 
44 v ...... u.., · ..... """' ..... '- •• 

'~ IC 
.l. t ... '-"'"'""""' \.. ~uv~·r-,::_:-..,;. 

"'"- ..... .,. - .,... -
~ ~ ...... .~.~ ...... :: .. 

20 the er.gines. 

21 Q Do you remember what you told him was the purpose of 

22 using the throttle and the rudder? 

23 I told him initially I thought that there might LL 

24 an attempt to extract the -- or extricate the vessel fro~. 

reef, based on part of a conv~rsation that I ov~rhea~d ~n 



2 

3 

4 

5 

ro.d:.o. 

Q 

J.,. 

Q 

Who h&d that -- who was having that conversatio~: 

Th~ Captain and I believe the Captain of the Port. 

Do you remember talking to the NTSB and telli~; .j. -.... ,.... -

"""' .... \,.. .... 

the reason fo~ Lhese rudd&r commands and the engine b~i~~ 

6 ahead full ahead? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q What did you tell them? 

9 

11 thought that perhaps we m~y b~ ::.:::ying 

12 th0 sLi~ cff th0 re~f. 

1 j 

15 

16 

1' 

18 

19 

20 

' .n 

durinJ this ti~e. until 

d:.d yet:. se.:.: !1:.. . 

_, .: _, (""< ~· ' .I. 

was 

.... .! .... -
"'"'-•u"- • 

back on 

- - -· .. -
~ .. ·:::::t-••i;...-

b:;.: idge whi lt.: 

1- -- • ._, __ 

··' TT -- ., - .. - ~- _., ... ,., ............. """"" ,, ....... ~ ...... .l ................... _.j..l'-""" 

He said something to the effect, well, we're 

21 definitely not going anywhere, or -- we hadn't moved 

22 essentially from running the engines. 

23 Q Did he characterize that in sense of the ship L~i~; 

24 in danger or not? 

25 A I dor.' t think h~ had to characteriz0 t~~~ t way. 



We all knew that we were in danger. 

2 Q Did he indicate that what he had don~ had p:~cc~ 

3 ship in danger by moving it ahead? 

4 A No. 

5 ~ft~r the vess~l was shut down, 

6 A I remained on the bridge. Kept rechecking t~~ 

7 vessel position, keeping an eye on it to see whether it was 

8 shifting on the reef. 

9 

11 ' .n 

De ycu. havE 

-, .: ..... ., -
... ..L.'-.rl..o...L.~ • 

aLy communications ~it~ ,... - .. - ~--= ~ 
\....t1,t-~ .... u~ .... 

12 I bcliE:v.:.. thE: rest of the n.c:.:ning was, he quEried r.n.:; aLe·.,.:, 

ThE:r~.. ;;.ight have been so;r.c oth..: .... .... - ., ,_ - \. 1-
\,..~ .... J • ...,.......,._~ .... """"-

15 cargo contrcl reo~ tc discuss ~atters with the c~i~f mate, c:.: 

1:' 

' .. 
20 have it in the log here as start lowering the starboard anchor 

21 at 0448 that morning. I -- I believe that is correct. It may 

22 not be. But it s~ems that it might -- it seems thaL that 

23 order ~as given around the time or shortly aft.:..r th~ c~a~~ 

24 Guard boardE:C:. 

25 i1hen did the Coast Guard board the ves.:.~..::.. :-



A 0338. 

2 Q Were you on the bridge when they first started 

3 radioing indicating that they were in the area? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Do you remember how long prior to boarding tha~ 

6 would have been? 

7 A No, I don't recall. 

8 Q Did you have any contact with the Coast Guard that 

10 Yt;s. ;. t. some point :::: f it;lded a call fl·o;;. t!•.;; 

12 conversation without reviewing it. 

13 

14 bo~rd th&t ~orning? 

15 No -- later that rnornin~. Much later. 

1t 

17 Yi;;,S. 

15 

19 ;.-::tu&lly ::: think the -- it. was tab::r. -- ::ie<..~., :::. 

20 guess it was taken later that day. 

21 Q Would you tell the jury what the Exxon alcohol 

22 policy is for use of alcohol on the vessel? 

23 The policy has beeri termination. 

24 Q And is that the same thing for possession of alcohc: 

?.5 cr. the vessel? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q Did you hav~ any alcohol in your poss~ssio~ on the 

3 23rd or the 24th? 

4 A No. 

5 Wt.;l-~ .You aware of any alcohol on boar~ the E;:::c~ 

6 Valdez these mornings? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

11 I! 

I' 
14 

II 15 
I 
I 

i 6 I 

i. 
jl 

1 p 
II 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

·7-i 

A No. 

MP,. COLE: I have nothing further, your Hone~. 

CRCS S EX~.11:::::n~.TIC!~ 

BY l1L. l1hDSC1:: 

Q 

That's correct. 

fa:.:. sa:z .. , sir, thu.t a 

~.. .;._. -· . - _., 
'"'1-"-- ......... -·""'"-"""' lust 

... , . - ... ... - ...... .: - .. 
.l. • "' """' .... ~~ ,;,_. ""' -· ... .t" 1,.4 .L. I,.. ,.i.. t..,;. - • 

........... ..,_ ... ,_ - .... 

.un ......... ~.o66,;.;.. , 

stateroents and to think about this incident? 

A Well, I have had plenty of time to think about ttis 

incident. I haven't really found the desir~ to wade thro-..gl. 

all the statem~nts and material. 

Q What I am getting at, sir, is that you hav~ hac 

this point -- you haven't lest, let's S -·· C.O.J , 



., r - .. 

... .,., 

yo~~ memory cf wh~t happened? 

2 I don't think that I'll ever forget th~t. 

3 Q The events are still fairly fresh in your mind, 

4 correct? 

5 J... Y6s. 

6 Q Let me go back to the beginning, as Mr. Cole did, 

7 and ask you something about your maritime experience. You 

8 

9 !1 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1' 

18 

19 

20 

said you 

198S? 

' .. 
~ 

ll< 

~-igt.:.7 

' .n 

~ 

"' 
, 
S> 

Q 

- - ... .: ~ .. 
(.....- 1.. ~._... .. ..,I 

. .. 

got your third mate license in, I think, February 

.. 
.. ...... ..J • 

......... _ ·-

!"""' •• - • , : ~- - -
\,.] ............ ..~..- ........ .._ ._. ... ~ ..J ,._ 

~ - ... - .... 
..._ 1.. .. .~.._...._.I tc g~t that licens~? 

..,.. ~ . - ... -- - ., ., -. - ., .! ,.... ,.. - ..... - ~ ~ ' - - - ... - .... ~ .t= ...: ~ ·- ..: - .... ._._.. ... __ .J ...... _ .... ;..; ... ~ ..... , ... '- .:.;. ... -'-- ........ ___ -

That certification, does it mean something, let ~c 

21 ask you that? 

22 Yes, it's supposed to mean something. 

23 Q As opposed to say, an ordinary seaman. 

24 difference? 

25 A hn ordinary seaman is one that, i won't say ~ithcut 



skills, but is certainly not had the time nor experienc~ 

2 has or th~ kno~ledge of seamanship skills. 

3 Q So an AB th~n is tested and found, at least he ~~ 

4 certified by the Coast Guard then that he has certain 

5 s~amans~i~ skills? 

6 A yes. 

7 Q And included in that would be the ability to st~~~ a 

8 vessel, would it not? 

9 

10 

11 

13 •.. 
- .... , ..,_ ~ ... --
;;J~..'- ....... ~.£. ... ~· 14 

l 0 

c 

- l- .. ., : ~ -­
~~ ..................... .J. '.::.: understand 

... . -- .. . ~-
I,..V ~\....;...t:L. 

"' .. -• ....:1 ---·· ____ ,._ 
" .............. .J ........... -..:.4•• ...... ':::f-

- ..... -........... .L 

--, ....... , ... _- ..... ~ ~-
\,._ ....;.Llo..&IL .... ••-- • 

19 
... - - pc~nt ~ to poi~t B . 

20 yourself, right? 

21 A That's correct. 

,-..._,.-· ... 

'1---··'-·-·' 
,., .... -4- ~ ........... -· ""'· ... .J 

22 Q That's differer.t than saying understanding steerir.g 

23 commands, which is mel· ely following an order, you know, ~ ,.. 
... ~.~ 

24 right, 10 left, something like that, correct? 

25 A Yes. 



Q All right. 

2 He~ about a h&ading? Is that all also a pa~t of ......... 

3 Put the stip on a heading of 2-0-0, 2-4-5, something like 

4 that? 

5 That's part of tht;; skill of bei11g a ht:;lmsn.an, Y'-"-. 

6 Q Now, can an ordinary seaman act as a helmsman on a 

7 vessel? 

8 A At sea, but only at sea. They're not -- wouldn't 

9 allo~~~ ~~ ha~L~rs or bays. 

- ..... r -~- .. :... -.~. - .!~ 
.£':6.!"'"-"- _....,.~...._~v,•!.L~ ~'"'c;t.;.J....LJ.-6~ 10 

12 I'd say its about the simplest thin~ y~u ca~. 

13 yeaL. 

14 Q liJ. other words, if you gave a cor~.;-;,;::;-.,:: 

15 ar.d sa:d lC de~r<..:.:..s rigLt :::uddc:;.:, that he::..r..sr:.a;.:. has to }~no.,; 

16 

17 

18 

1-.: -
"'"'•...;; 

r"n1 -· "" I • ~ - t_ .0. 

··~<.•... .... .. --~ .......... 

19 s~~e~hcire, right? 

20 A Yes. 

h::md, 

21 Q And that's basically it? 

22 A That's all. 

correct? 

u. lC . ·- _.,.! ,.... -. .......... -__ ................. _u\,.. .... ~ 

23 Q And these are routine commands, are they net? 

24 are given all the time. 

25 A Yes. 

,­

·-



c; You car.' t steel" a shi~ \otithout givi:.-.g co••·•~.<..r.d.,;:. a5 tc.. 

2 where it ~s going t~ go? 

3 Right. 

4 Q I got a little off the track here, but anyway, i~-

6 and then third mate? 

7 A That's correct. 

8 Q So you sort of worked your way up the ladder, 

9 that CO~l"tCt? 

1 r 
oU 

"'!,.' .- ~. \. 1 1 
J. t.;w I '-4J.J. .,,.._. .. J. • 

11 
I 

. . 
l'o ..... '- •• 

12 
I! 

yo-u ~a~: to say g~~ you~ license to become an officer, w~w: ~-

13 :i' 0''-' 

1 j 

19 

20 Q 

fi: • .-st of all, 

ever. allov; you to si:: :!:.:;.· ::!-.<: e:::.:7 .. 

,.,.,,_ ·- -.. . ...... - ... -
.... "~ .1.. t.,.; t..,; .1 ...__ ... ""- ....; 

- ·- ....... - __ .: ,. - .. -., ... -
~-J.-"J.".L. ................... ~- ... ~... .... .i :!:i~e years ::c get 

... \- - - ... 
'-44\oo4 .... 

thl".:.:. 

And then you said there is an exam. 

:-r ~'I--- -\- -·--
....... J .. ~...-._. "-4.t-V~~o. 

--- - .. _..-
.J ._ ._ • .:;;.. 

This requi:rt:;;:; 

21 some formal training in addition to just being en a ship and 

22 having experience? 

23 A Well, if you're particularly adept student, you 

24 could do it en your own without any formal education. 

25 I~ other words, a degree fro~ a college isn't 



2 

3 

requirt::d, c::.: scr,ic thing like: that? 

N,:,. 

Q And so you studied on your own to take you~ ... \ .; -. -
""""" ........ -

4 mate: license? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 c 

11 

12 

1 j 

1 s 

1 t 

17 

1S 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A I at t.;nd<.;..:l a mal-ine licensing school in Nev. 8r ~ .... .:.. .... 

Q In where? 

A In New Orleans. 

Q I see. 

_, .! _, that 

r;,:,t jus~ th.;:; exa;;,. 

... .: ., 

-- t ~ , - _, ' - "' 
'-'• ... - ~ ......... Jil...;. ...... I._ 

' . -
........ ::;I ......... 

,....., ~ ' .. .: .. t ... 
- -- •• ... - .... -..!:::f.l! l. • 

Q 

license, is it not? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q That enables you to do 

seaman can1:.vt? 

A That's correct. 

certain things that an 

- -, ... . 
1,.-0,J ............. ~ 

- '\.-.., ,. 
Q..lr.J~(,.,. 

I 

.... -

Fer in:tance, you ~~c an office~ rather than just a~ 



ordinary or able seaman? 

2 That's right. 

3 Q You can stand a watch and I think you said on ~ 

4 vessel of any size? 

5 Yes. 

6 Q By standing the watch, that means you can be the 

7 officer on the bridge in control and direct the vessel? 

8 A That's right. 

·-,.... "' . .,_-
.J ....... u .... 

, .:. -- --- -9 Q 

11 
... --. 

12 ~hat added or what other necessary educatic~. 

13 experienc~ is n~c~ssa~y tc get the second mate licens~: 

14 vl.::: 11 , it's --you arc just in a s~ns'-' g:;,.'-'~~-.:.t.:...;-.q 

1 ~ u-.c ne:.:t le:ve 1. Ycur le~~l of expertise is expect~~ ~~ 

1' I . - -- .: .. - .. -· -, --r- _ ................. - .l 

19 .,.."-- .. -

._ \... - "'- .... -· ~-
~,. •• a ~o.,. ._..r to--

..... -- -,....... "t" 
~;.-...,..; ._ .... 

--- .., ... \ ..... __ , ___ ..,.!_, 
-~ \... - .._ ,6.,..; l.;} ..... ~ ........... 

- l- -­......... c ~~as~ring cf celestial bcdies 

20 that to fixing the position of the vessel. 

21 Q In other words that is different than say taking it 

22 off an electronic instrument, right? 

23 

24 Q 

. 
.n 

That's correct. 

You actually have to go out there and --

Measure it with a sextant . 



Q That's the old fashioned way, is that ri;,;l.~.::.: 

2 Th~ old fashioned way. 

3 Q But it ~ight come in handy some day if all your 

4 equipment breaks down? 

5 Ehactly. 

6 Q Then after receiving -- and you said you r~cei~~~ 

7 your second mates license -- did you ever ship out on a vess~l 

8 as a second mate? 

9 .r Never. 

.. ,- .: _., ' .. 
... .&, ... \,. ·~'-"'• ~' 

12 r. :·L.c:..t' s about i~. 

even though, however, 

14 en the Exxon VQlde~, you were qualified to be th~~e as ~ 

15 

16 

sc.:;:,r:.d r..at.:;, 

. .. 

........ lor·-

17 ~ 

18 I ,~:. ::~. 
~ ................. -- 1:""- ... - .......... 

~~ '. - J. - . .,. ........... _ ........ ~ ........... ._,..._ 

19 ~s ~ lc~c~ grad~ third mat~? Hew does that t~;;c~? 

20 For one thing, available jobs. There aren't m~~~ 

21 jobs available for second mates at that time, and if there 

22 were, they would probably go to an individual that has 

23 probaLly had the license a lot longer than I have. 

24 Q So basically if you wanted to work at that time, 

25 take a job as a third mate, right? 



r 

'-

2 

3 

4 

.. 
.n. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes . 

I irnag~nb there is a d~fference in pay, ~s tLcr~? 

I hope so, yes. 

Do you intend to go on and get further in licens~~. 

5 like first mate, captaiL. 

6 A I had that .. 

7 (Start Tape C-3615) 

8 

c; 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

12 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A 

r. 

Q 

I had that in mind, yes. 

""''--- ...__ ' -­J..u.u""" .J 

,. . . ~ 

J.'f~o,..' n' 

anothu. to 

·- . .. . . • . - ., . c ... . 
~ '-- ... .;._, ,, ...... ___ .J ............ ~ ...... .l 

. .., ., .......... ..... - ..... "i. 

'""'~~~ """"';,..• . 

r 

""' 
A 

Q 

A 

;..1:.~ as a tr .. ird ma t.o., how lor .. g 7 

My first assignment was in January of 1987. 

And where was that, sir? 

Just for a number of days -- do you want me tG 

23 recount the vessels or --

24 Q Well, just briefly, if you could. I mean, I dG:~ '::. 

?5 want t~ go into every trip and everything likE that. wr.o. t 



type of vessels and what coast were you on and things 

2 that? 

3 Th~ first assignment of any duration, and that was 

4 only for approximately two weeks, a bit more than two we .... ;~.:.,, 

6 Q 

7 A 

8 Coast. 

9 

1 ~ 
'v 

11 

12 

1' 

14 

15 

16 

19 

.. 

' •. 
20 Coast. 

Is that a tanker also, sir? 

That's a -- yeah, a product carrier on the East 

v:h'-'n ycu sa::i product carrier, what does th<.:: r..;.;.::.; .. 

,-... .&" -· -- - , .: - ·- ...... 
.......... ~..:...- ....... ~ ....... t,;. 

GascliL~, chemic~ls. 

I ;1:;.dr, · t me~n t.:- interrupt yo~. Please go or •. 

f::c;:, th ..... ::.:. I ••&s stifted to vessels or. th;:; Hest 

That was a matter of fifteen or seventeen days on tt~ 

21 Exxon Charleston. The rest of my third mate time has been en 

22 the West Coast. 

23 Q What about standing say, a bridge watch as a 

24 helmsman, before yo~ got your third mate license. Were yo~ 

25 doing that on both coasts, too? 



' r -

A Y~s. 

2 Q Sc you a~tually wer& let's say sta~~i~; -- not 

3 steering, excus~ ffi~, but following steering ccn~ands fo~ a 

4 number of years, is that right? 

5 J... 

6 Q Now, with regard to -- what other ports say, fo~ 

7 instance. On the West Coast, what ports would you normally 

8 call at? 

9 

10 two tirr.c..::,. 

11 

12 Th~ VTS -- tLc.~L is~·~ 

13 sL in Long BbacL. T~~ Channel Islands, 

14 traffic systc~ mucL diff~rent than, 

15 :;.:i r:::inc~ 11illiar,, Sound. 

- r 
V.I.. 

19 How &bout Pu~Lt Soun!, 

20 in Seattle? 

in 'r" - .: • - • - , .. , -· - , . - .. c • ...._ ... _ t,;. ·~-~.J.. ............... 

21 In Puget Sound, yes, I've been in that. 

"T" .. 

1· ·-...... .._ ~ .... 

.,..;--••- I 

.. '-· 

22 Q Is there something called an active system, a 

23 system, and a passive system? 

24 A Yes. 

25 Q What's the difference? 



1 ,-
-' ' 

h I wcu!d take a passiv~ syste~. for exampl~. th~ 

2 Chall~~l Island Traffic Separation Scheme, as being the passi~~ 

3 system in that there is no -- no center to communicate witL, 

4 no report in poi~ts, it's simply a charted scheme, looks ffiUCL 

5 the saffie as the one you see on the chart here. 

6 no participation with any agency, Coast Guard or loc~l. 

7 Q In other words, there may be a chart where you 

8 supposed to stay in certain lanes, but you dcn't comrnunic~tc 

9 i t:.· 

10 Jl 

I 
11 

13 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Q 

. 
"' 

Q 

-r•.: .. , ---- ... -~~.., 
"· ... '""'"'" ...... ...... \..,. ..... I...~ ... 

That's corre(;t. 

T~6~ wh~t about an active syste~ .• wh~: ~~~s th&t 

I tc.L'" c::.r. active sy s t er.. tv be cnt; such a::. 

center? 

.. -
.l L- • 

:...:... ~ ................... ._ ··-

Give then E~~·3, positions. 

And of course you are familiar with the systc-:-. ::~ 

21 Prince William Sound? I think you have already indicatcc 

22 that, right? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q Would you -- you believe that to be an active .sy::::: <;;; .. 

75 the r .. , ~igf .. t? 



A Yes, I de. 

2 Q Wh~n you were in, say, Valdez Ar~. say in the 

3 vicinity or Bligt Reef or Busby Island and in the Arffi gci~~ 

4 into the Harrows and into the port of Valdez, did you 

5 

6 that area? 

7 

8 

9 

11 

A 

Q 

, .. 

tha~ tL~1~ w~s radar coverage by the Co~s~ 

I understood that to be the case. 

/""1 •• -
Vl.,..\..o.--

And I think you said you made perhaps a tota: of 2C 

That's AB 

12 1 

.&-'\-.:--.:I -- ........ ,--. ..... ~ w 

._ .... .._"'-- J.d~ I,.. I.,;. I.. """"'-'•It_. • 

13 
1: 

14 about half of those or ~=~= .. ).. -.- \... - ., .t.: 
I,.~.&. ........ _ 

15 cf th~sc, said ycu we:::.:: as a third r..c.te? g ~-'-'-

···.J 

, -'"'r _.r +-1-- J....! 
... ~. ~...... ..... ... ""' ... 1 ....... 

\. - -- .• 1-.... -·' ·.._ -;,;.. ..._ .... 

19 
+ l- .:. .... . 

c.. \...L ........ -

20 mate. 

21 Q And I think you said that on the Exxon Valdez t:.~:.: ~ 

22 were a total of three transits, three trips, including tt~ c~-

23 in March cf lc.st year? 

24 A I believe that's correct. 

Q Is it fair to say, sir, that from the number 



t:;: i.:t=-s :you rr.ad.:: Prince William Sound, that you we1:e 

2 far .. i.lia1· with the charts of the au:: a? 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Y.::s, I would say so. 

Q Fair to say that you were familiar with the 

A Yes. 

Q Did you know where Bligh Reef was? 

A 

. 
n. 

t!!ir.gs 

. 
.r. 

Yes. 

Yc.s • 

Yes, si1 

....... ' .-. - - .... -,.... . -
._ ',_,. - - "-.1'-A.L..,._ ._..,v••~ 

- ~ . ..._ .. . . .., -, -.. - .. 
......,~..~ •_, ............. .._. ........ ~ - -- --....., '-

·- -I,..- ......... _ 

, _., ,_ - -. 
'- ...... """' ... - .... (,..j. • ..._ 

-..!., -..... -- ., --- . 
!:'~.,&.,.'-.,It,.. ~,.. ...... _ ......... ___ ,,_.~...._ 

20 correct? 

21 A I had never inquired. 

22 Q Uh-huh. 

23 So do you know what's involved in tal:i:1g the, 

24 exa~ination for that? 

25 . 
n. No, I don't . 



1 .- -

........ "' 

Q At the same time you felt that you wc~c Cviliid~ilt iil 

2 your ability to know the area of Prince Willia~ Sound and --

3 Well, I generally understand what a pilot test wo~l~ 

4 most likely include. 

5 What would that be7 

6 A They may ask you to draw -- draw the Sound, or dra~ 

7 the Arm, draw the Narrows, give specific bearings on, say, t~ 

8 line up for their transit of the Narrows, that type cf 

9 i:-.f c.:.-r.,a tie-r .. 

10 

11 

12 

14 

15 

1t I s:.::, 

1- r- -.,.... • - ,- ..... 

~~-~· .. F~-~-·· 

1c ·'-;_.~-~ .. 

19 I 

20 

' .. 
Q 

...... ::...::; r.0t o. driving 

- . ... '- i.5r.~.'t. 

D0 yc-u kn0"' 

- , ~ C" -~ _., ...... - , ... 
"-:1~-·~--- ..... .......:-..... '""''-'' .l-- ~ ...... .._...,,, 

,-.' ~· . . -: ., , : - .. "':" - . - ... _-: ": 
.... "- ......... ...~ ....... .._ ...... ~ .L. ~ ~ ... l. - ...... \..4 ...... """"' • 

The other times you were in Prince William Soun~, 

21 were they all on I guess I want to say tanker vessels lik~ the 

22 Exxon Valdez? 

23 Not nec0ssarily like the Exxon Valde~. 

24 one other like that. But tankers. 

75 Q Ther0's one other, a sister shi~. is it? 



h Yes. 

2 Q 

3 When I say like, I mean in general. 

4 Tankers. 

5 

6 the handle, operate, or anything like that? 

7 A There could be -- yeah, there would be some 

8 differences, primarily due to size and power of the vessEl. 

9 Q With regard t~ the Exxon Valdez itself, 

10 .L-1-

12 

13 1 nec~ssarily ~~~~id~~ ~ys~lf an expert, but --

14 Q Col~ asked a number of questions ab~~: 

15 tht:: E.o.:;_t.:.ipr,;e;nt '..l • .:..t i.::. board tl-'.<; Ex;.:on Vald.;:;z. Is 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 Q You've got, did you say, is it two radars? 

21 A Two radars. 

22 Q Port and starboard. 

23 A 

24 Q I don't want to go through all of that again, 

25 there any equipment you could possibly think of th~~ you woul~ 



2 

3 

4 

have wante~ on board that vessel if you had your choice? 

.. 
.n 

Q 

A 

You ffiear. after the fact? 

In addition to what's already there. 

You mean as we sit here today talking about the 

5 groundir.g:' 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 " 
''-' 

II 

13 

14 

IS 

1 t 

17 

IE 

19 

20 

i 
I 

I, ,, 

li 

Q 

A 

Q 

- -·. -· ....... - ..,:l ":" 
t_. - .............. .t;.· .L· 1._ ·-1 • 

. 
r. 

No, let's go back before the grounding, okay? 

No. 

It was in your opinion, at that time, fully 

~ .. - -
.L ....:.. ..... • 

th;:; grour .. ding, de y::;..:. -:t.i:-.l: 

~h~t wculd have really -..! ,.., ~- -~ .. •. .,...... ... -. ...... ---- .... ·-- ~ -. 
a. .. u~ ....... •""£ ...., .. ~vt,..;."'"''--••!:1 

~ You w~re faffiiliar then with all of the Lc~essar~ 

operatic~ EquipmenL en boa~~: 

·- -

Q And with regard to the radar, you were qualifie~ 

.., .. - ,. 

21 certainly to operate the radar, had been examined and actu&ll~ 

22 plotted targets, is that part of the examinatior.? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q You had been alone on the bridge at other times ~~ 

25 Prince: Williar .. Sour.d, correct? 



l6J 

A Yes. 

2 Q Standing as an officer, watch officer? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q And on those occasions you felt confident in yo~~ 

5 abilities to de the job at hand? 

6 

7 

8 

r: 

II 
10 

II 
11 

12 

14 

A Yes. 

Q Now, when you arrived in Valdez, I think you s~~~ 

that the first jet, of course, is 

..! ..... t.- .... -=. 
.J ~ ~ ...... 

don't handl~ th~ :i~cs yc~rs~lf . 

. .... 

to dock the vessel, ar.;:: .J ..... '-"'-

in doi;--.g T .,.... - -~ ..-
~ .,)t..;""""&olo 1 .) ..... ""'"' 

~s to di~cct th~ undo -- I mean th~ docking . 

..... - - . ~~- ., , .... 
~~.Li..;....,_u,..._..._J 

.... , .._ ... ·l ·- .... . 1- - .... -
'-.l..l.r..,.;.."- t 1 !.1.J .J....,...._.. .LoL!,l.Vt... 

·- -- .,.... .! ... .-. \ . "" ._, ............. """ ..... ... · o;:..v .... _~or_ ... ._ __ . 

·, . 
..;. .. .L_ ... \.,. • 

19 cvc~y~hiLg goes the way you hop~ . . . 
20 it's been planned, that's fine. But you know, when you h~~~ 

21 machinery on ships, sometimes things happen and you find 

22 yourself a little short handed at times. 

23 Q Going bad> to another question I just asked yo"..:.., ~--~ 

24 I said you were alone on the bridge on other occasions, en 

?5 these c~c~sicns we~~ there other captains en the vessel 



r 

I_ 

.., r:. 

th~n Captain Hazelwood? 

2 Yes. 

3 Q Anette~ question in that area. You get evaluatic~~ 

4 in your job on a regular basis? 

5 Well, I won't say on a regular basis. 

6 Q Well, on any kind of basis. 

7 A Yeah, on some kind of basis, whenever they decide 

8 someone decides that I should be evaluated. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 rr.a te: 

l t 

1-

'c 

How ~~ thej,· ::'!:: t:h:::t? '-' ,, 

Ho;,; dv ~ '· ~--...... .a.r.....~- u.u 

II::;>: c..:.· t.; ".J.;~~ evall.l;::.t:e;d'? 

' .. 1-lell, there arc a ~Uffiber of areas th~: t:~~ 

- ...-- -. .- ~ 

(...&.~.&.-. !Wt;...A.vo~.o~. 

a~,;l the ne:·:t 

in ••·Y case. Th(;y viculd, I assume:, talk 

chie:f v:hat abili ti(;s - -. r :'"<-,a 
...... - J- ........... 

,...,_ ......... :.--
~~1,..\,..-.1.4~ 

_., - ~- 1. - .:. ,...., -

"'-"''-'••'- ~-t,_;;:;. ..... ....,..;;.. ..... 
.... __ ,_ 
I .._-. J .. • 

• 1 

4 l- ....... -- - -- -- ~ .. - ... . . ,..... . -- . .. ~ - .... ., 
\,....l,,l.::__-:.1..~ "'" ........... -.. ................. ___ ... ~, ....... ~ ....... ::1u· .......... - ... ..,.._..._ 

19 al.,::.lit::,.· c.r, :)·:.u }~nov;, cap&b::.litie.s con.sidcn;:::; 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q Did you -- have you -- were weaknesses also point~~ 

22 out? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q In other words if the first mate or the captain 

-~ thought you were weak in handling a vessel, they would point 



that 

2 A. Sur""; y<:..s. 

3 Q In your evaluations, sir, were you evaluat~~ ~cl: Q~ 

4 far as your abilities were concerned? 

5 I1f.. COLE; Judge, I ~~j~~~. H~a1:.say 

6 THE COURT: Objection overruled. He's asking 

7 the witnesses own opinion. 

8 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

- ..- -- - - -
-...· ........... ~--~-ol..i. :id Sapt~in Hazelwocd 9 

II 
1 C I 

Q 

'' I I ther:.. 

13 ~:E:s. 

14 Sid he rat;.: your navigationo.l sl:ills o.nd shi;:. 

15 operatiLg s~ills exce~ticnal? 

16 T •·- -1 1 •• 
.._ .._ CCA...6..J....J. dcn't recall what th~y ~r~. 

1' 

12 ,.,..,, 
- ""! -"" -- .... ,-. --~- - -· 

, .......... ~-- .... ._-'ili;;.4•i~c;... .... 
~ - - ·- ., ., -- , --
..... .... _ ............ .:1 -"-'.o.- ._ 

19 

20 anything. 

21 Q Can you think of any instance, sir, where you ever 

22 gave Captain Hazelwood any reason to believe that yc~ wo~l~ 

23 not fellow directions or otherwise be a competer. t third r: . .:. t......; 7 

24 A No. 

25 l!L. COL::: Objection: speculation. 



THE COUF..T: Objection overruled. .hr.swe;.:.: th.: 

2 qu.::stior •. 

3 BY t:r.. HAD SOil: (Resur.,ing) 

4 Q Can you answer the question, sir? 

5 Would ycu r~state th~t? 

6 Is there anything from your experience, that 

7 where Captain Hazelwood was in a position to evaluate you, sc~ 

8 your performance, that would cause you any concer~ about 

9 hz-.·.-::.r-.~ 1-.ir.. b<:.:lieve: you werer:.' t con,peten: c:.:::. cap;:;.::.::_:· 

10 I 
II 

11 

. 
r. 

~Tips . 
1..-.J 

12 so.id :J'c..u:: jct.s .:.:.: yot:..r pc,si tic:·. 1:~quired you to r .. air.t<..i~. 

positions, avoid cc:.llisicn~, do na~i~atic~, . l -., -- . 
-....4.1..1......., ~.L.WV ~"""""·-

14 st~~:.:ing ord~rs if n~c~ssary. 

16 

17 

12 

19 -~·.:~.-~~ ........ .~....~,.~ .... 

20 load. 

21 Q 

22 

. . - \. . 
.l.t;:aJ..o. • 

Sure. 

' """ -· ..... .... ·~· ..... 
...... -- -· - ...................... _ ... ._ 

.... l- . ~ ~ - .,._ i. 

"" •• lw '" - ..... -

I thin}: yot:.. said tho;:; connir:.g officer is the o:r.c ,.;~ • .:. 

23 is actually giving the orders, steering orders? 

24 A Correct. 

25 Q And th~ watch officer is doing othe:.: tasks. 



He would provide any navigational infcrmatic:r. 

2 ~oul~ b~ p~rtinent that the conning officer would requast, ~~~ 

3 of course, collision avoidance. 

4 Q You've been both, right, conning officer and wat~~-

5 officL:r? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Now when you were on the Exxon Valdez on this tri~. 

8 were your watch was your watch always the same? I mean the 

9 san.~ ho;.:rs tl-;.u.t :yc'.l' d work? 

10 

11 Q Ar:.d tLa L.. agu.in. was? 

12 8:00 to 12:00. 

13 8:0C tc 

14 Q 8:00 in the ; .. cr:r.ing to 12:00 nc.:::.:r.? 

15 

C:::.:: .. Tt;;::~ ... 

Q :r. ~- ._.. ......... ----- ... t. . 

20 A That's kind of the thing that you want to do, b~-

21 you have a nurr,bel· of other duties that we need to perfor•~-· 

22 The third mate was d~signated safety officer, and that en~~~~~ 

23 inspecting life boats, making sure the equipment is in pro~~~ 

24 operating condition. Checking emergency equipment that w~ 

25 have in our soleus lockers. That is one cf t~e duties --

·-· ., 



Sounds like -- excuse n.e. Sounds like -, , .,. ...... 

2 th~ngs you don'~ have time t~ do on your regular watc~, ~~ 

3 that· right? 

4 A No, you can't do those on watch. 

5 about paper work. Do you have add.:;.ticna.l 

6 work assignments? 

7 Yes. 

8 Q Now, prior to this particular trip to Prince Wi:: .. :::...:;.~; .. 

So'..lr.d or, ~1-.E: Ex::cr. \·aldE:z, I thir..J: you so..iC. ::,:::.,·~ 1·,<;.:: - · ,.. .r ~ i- . 
I.. .... '-9 

10 Cl ch ~ •. ~;.;l;il:..>~;.;r.s, ~-'-'~ had wor}:ed previously with Hauret;..;:, Jor:..<.::s o.ad 

11 ~1. Kaga~ on ~~ic~ assig~nents? 

12 ? 
.n 

yc..:. ]< 
,.. 
x the assignment with Mr. Kagc.n, ;; :: s 

14 rE:cc.::; 

15 A 

17 T''"'- 4--. ~l-~ 
t' '-"' ..... ·- ... , 

, . ~· 1E - . - ...... .... ~ ........ :._ J - -

19 Li~:. ;c.rs.:.:r.c.l:!.::.-, 1 igLt? 

20 A Well, yeah, I knew of him. 

21 Q When you came into Prince William Sound then, we~~ 

22 yc'..l or. the bridge at the time the pilot came on board, d0 you 

23 recall? 

24 A Yeah, I believe I was. 

25 
,... 
"' 

And do you know who that pilot was? Do you 



2 

3 

4 

5 

. 
.n 

Q 

Q 

6 him up at? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

I' 

I 8 

19 

II 

A 

Q 

Q 

. 
r;. 

",.":E:S 5 t:..: I 

. .. 

I b6liGve it was Captain Murphy. 

Th6 same pilot that was on board coming out? 

Yes. 

1 r r 
... o.i 

~Ii.d whcl .:= did you -- do you recall wh;;;;1·e .:1 ... ,. .. ~~ -·· _ ~ 

Just off Rocky Point. 

Is that the pilot station? 

Yes. ,_ 

-··-~ ·-. il. bo.ck u~ 

-- b~lo~ th~ l~gLt. 

~ight off of Rock~ Foi~t: 

Yes . 

iL the position to allo~ 

20 to come along side? 

21 A Yt::s. 

22 Q How do they actually physically get on your v~s~~~ 

23 or ship? 

24 A Well, when we come in light we put the accomrnod~ticn 

25 ladd~r over for thern, and they just climb up the ladder. 



r 

Q Is it just a rop~ ladd~~? 

2 A No, this is the accommodation ladder. 1 t 1 s ki~~~ 

3 lik~ a gangplank I guess you would -- could ref~r to it as 

4 that. But we call it an accommodation ladder. It's kind of c. 

s lli~tc.l stairway up the sidb of th~ ship. 

6 Q And once the pilot is on board, he fuOre or les~ 

7 guides or directs the vessel into that part of Valdez Ar~.s and 

a the Narrows and then to the berth, is that correct? 

9 

10 

11 

13 Q T~ .. .::. t s.;;.;; ... ~ t.:- L'"' p1·.;;t ty rou tin~, 

14 - - -~ - ..... -
;:;,t;.~"h;.;. ~... ....... they norrn&lly do? 

15 Yeal... 

1 t Had ::r.:-u sec .. Captain llurpr.y act 

17 

12 

19 

20 to Valdez on the 22nd that caused you any concern at all atv~t 

21 Captain Murphy's abilities as a pilot? 

22 No. 

23 Q He seem cofupetent and qualified'? 

24 A Yes. 

THE COUF~':; Hr. I1adson'? 



... ' ... 

HR. 11ADSOH: Yes, your HonoJ:. 

2 TE.E COURT: I wonder if counsel could approac~ t~~ 

3 b~nch just a minute, please. 

4 (A bench conference was had.) 

5 THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, we are not 

6 finisht:d quite for the day, but I am going to have you go b.::.~~~ 

7 to the jury roo~ momentarily to take a matter up outside ya~~ 

8 presence that needs to be addressed. I'll bring you bac}: ::. .. 

9 y~~ so~c instructicLs bc~cre you .r - . - .... 1· 

10 C:u.y. In thE:: meant::..:.~e, don't speculate cr .. v·il • .::.;.. we':..-"" C:v::..r:..~ : ... 

11 :;;.;.•·· · t discuss f as hi c...r. 

12 yoursc:~~s cr witl1 any oth~r p6rson, and don't for~ c...r E::~~~~--

14 If y~~·d gc tc th~ jury room at this ~imc, w~'!! 

16 

17 ,,. ... , 
\ ~. 4. .i ...... ..... 1_. ....... l:-" .......... ' -- ..... ·-·-----···•1 

18 ~-- . . . '\. - ,. "~ 
.., ...._~··'-I ... _...._ • -- ' . ' 

,_ - ,L. •~ •• 

4-UCL ,_ '- ._ ._ 19 

20 be taken up i~ camera. 't-le 'W:ill be clearing the Courtroo; .. 

21 The media will be barred from covering this. The public 1-.:::.::..: 

22 be barred from this proceeding as well. I expect it to ta~e 

23 about ten minutes. We will put it on a sealed tape, 

24 take it up in camera, and then we'll go back on the record 

25 wit~ the public pre~e~t if necessary before WE:: recess the r~=~ 



2 ~k · :::..:::.. t<::.l:t; just a two or three minute break L-: e-l·d..::.~ 

3 to clear the Courtroom. The media room will be shut down. 

4 The curtains will be closed. And the doors will be lock~~-

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

1 j 

15 

16 

1 ~ 

'' 

1 B 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

75 

We stand in recess. 

THE CLERK: Please rise. This Court stands in 

recess subject to call. 



SUPERIOR COURT 

2 STATE OF ALASKA 
Cas'"' No. J.;.!JS89-7217 
Case No. JANS89-7218 

3 I do hereby certify that the foregoing transcript 

4 was typed by we an~ that said transcript is a true record cf 

5 the recorded proceedings to the best of my ability. 

6 

7 

8 
- - -

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 



VOLUME 11 

2 STATE OF ALASKA 

3 IN THE SUPERIOR COURT AT ANCHORAGE 

4 - - - - - - X 

s In the Matter of: 

6 STATE OF ALASK,A Case No. 3ANS89-7217 

7 versus Case No. 3ANS89-7218 

B JOSEPH J. HAZELWOOD 

11 

12 

1 ~ '. 

Anchorage, Alaska 

February 14, 1990 

The above-entitled matter came on for trial by 

jury before the Honorable Karl S. Johnstone, commencing at 

:.: 8:50 a.m. on February 14, 1990. This transcript was 
I 

1 s I 
I 
I, 

1 ( ! 

,_ 
IC 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

prepared from tapes recorded by the Court. 

APPEARANCES: 

On behalf of the State: 

BRENT COLE, Esq. 

MARY ANN HENRY 

On behalf of the Defendant: 

DICK L. MADSON, Esq. 

MIKE CHALOS, Esq. 

PRO-TYPISTS, INC. 

Professional Transcription Service 

(202) 347-5395 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Q ~ 

WITNESSES 

STATE'S 

Gregory Cousins 

Maureen Jones 

Ephraim Meneses 

Melanie Wright 

Lloyd G. LeCain 

2 

I £ ~ I § 

DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS 

7 65 82 

88 90 

92 119 139 143 

145 146 

148 149 

152 154 

155 179 197 199 

- - -



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

:25 

DEFENDANT'S 

J 

K 

STATE'S 

47 

48 

3 

~ X !:i l ~ l I ~ 

IDENTIFICATION IN EVIDENCE 

6 42 

6 38 

174 

174 
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2 (Tape C-3615.) 

3 THE CLERK: -- presiding is now in session. 

4 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: You may be seated. There are 

5 two matters to take up before we get the jury in here. The 

6 first up, I think it would be a good idea if Counsel didn't 

7 take their coffee breaks in Judge Roland's office. That's 

8 immediately next door to the jury room. The walls are not 

9 as thick as they could be and I hear people laughing in 

10 there and maybe they hear us laugh. So if you want to take 

a coffee break in my office, feel free to. It's 

geographically pretty far from the jury room. It'll avoid 

13 potential problems. 

14 The next thing is I've got a note from a juror. 

15 I' 1 1 read it for the record. "Judge Johnstone, I be 1 i eve 

16 it is the Court's moral responsibility, if not legal 

17 responsibility, to make every effort to assure the jurors' 
, r 

'c 1 safe passage horne. I respectful) y request that you keep 

19 yourself apprised of developing dire weather conditions and 

20 that the jurors be advised accordingly. Yesterday was the 

21 pits," signed by "A Juror," who upon further investigation 

22 was one of the fortunate ones who did not get into an 

23 accident on the way home through Eagle River yesterday. I 

24 was unaware of the weather conditions until I left here. 

·ts I'm going to give this to the administrative director, let 



5 

him handle this. And if we do get notified of dire weather 

2 conditions, it might be necessary to let the jurors go home 

3 early during a given day. Apparently this juror was not 

4 the only one who lived in Eagle River and had a problem 

5 getting home last night. I can certainly appreciate their 

6 concerns. 

7 I don't believe it's the Court's legal or moral 

8 responsibility to take weather checks periodically, but I 

9 will make steps, take steps to be apprised if there are 

10 conditions that the Court system is aware of and can pass 

11 on to me. 

12 I asked her specifically if she felt this was 

13 going to in any way affect her ability to continue to sit 

lJ on this jury. She said, "Oh, no, not at all," it didn't 

15 concern that at all; it was just the driving conditions 

]1', I ,, home. Do Counsel wish me to inquire further of the juror 

]7 on the record? 

'' 
I MR. MADSON: I don't, Your Honor. 
II 

19 MR. COLE: No. 

20 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay. We'll make this part of 

21 the record, as well. Is there anything we can do before we 

22 get the jury in? 

23 MR. MADSON: I have nothing. 

24 MR. COLE: No, I have nothing. 

25 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Well, we'll bring the jury in 



6 

I 
1 I promptly at 9:00 o'clock and you can get Mr. Cousins up on 

2 the stand and resume. 

3 THE CLERK: Please rise. This Court stands at 

4 recess. 

5 (Whereupon, at 8:50a.m., a recess was taken.) 

6 (Defendant's Exhibits J 

7 and K were marked for 

8 identification.) 

Q (Whereupon, the jury enters the courtroom.) 

10 THE CLERK: -- the Honorable Karl Johnstone 

11 presiding is now in session. 
I 

12 1 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: You may be seated. I'm really 

13 II sorry about the weather conditions that inconvenienced you 

folks on the jury last night. You're not the only ones, 

15 apparently. I've sent a juror letter to the administrative 

1 ( director and to the trial Court administrator and I've 

17 asked them to let me know if the weather conditions get 

18 such that they th1nk it's necessary to let people go home 

19 early. And if they, we'll make arrangements to let the 

20 jury go home early to avoid some of that rush hour so you 

21 won't have to go through that again like last night. And 

22 I'm certainly sorry for anything I may have done to not 

23 accommodate you. 

24 We'll resume with the cross examination of Mr. 

15 , Cousins. 
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BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

2 Q Mr. Cousins, let's resume with the say inbound 

3 transit into Port Valdez. I think you said yesterday you 

4 were on the bridge and the pilot was on the bridge, 

5 directing the vessel in after Rocky Point. 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q And you arrived there at about-- actually started 

B to dock at about what time? 

9 A Without reference to 

1 Q I 

I Q Approximately. 

11 A 2230. 

12 Q Then, sir, is it not true that the first mate or 

13 the chief mate, his function or primary job is to oversee 

14 the loading and unloading on the vessel? 

15 A That's correct. 

1 { Q Is this normal for your industry? 
I 

:: II 
'~ I 

A I believe so. 

Q Could you just kind of summarize what this 

19 involves? I think you did yesterday, but very briefly, 

20 what would his function be? 

21 A Prior to the load, he's worked out a load plan, 

22 written cargo orders that the second and third mate would 

23 read and sign, stating that we understand how he wants to 

24 load the vessel. He will be in charge of starting up the 

75 cargo. 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 ' 

10 

11 I 

12 

13 

1 ~ 

15 

16 

17 'I 

13 

19 I 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

8 

Q When you say how you load it, you mean so the ship 

remains stable and level, it's level at all times? 

A Yes, it-- what level it is that the tanks will be 

topped off; certain vessels load a little bit differently 

than others. He will be in charge of starting up the 

cargo. Actually, in Valdez, we'll begin with a dirty 

ballast. You'll start that up. 

Q It pumps it out of the ship or the vessel to 

somewhere else. 

A Yes, to shore. 

up. Once that's going, 

He's in charge of starting that 

if he's not on watch, he may get a 

chance to get a little rest. As we near the end of 

discharge of dirty ballast, he would be up to supervise the 

stripping of the tanks, stopping the pumps, getting ready 

to begin the load of cargo, which he would start and 

supervise the beginning of the load. 

Q Is it fair to say that there isn't much wasted 

time on the oper·ation of getting the cargo on the vessel~ 

A Not much. 

Q And he has to be there essentially throughout this 

whole period to oversee it? 

A Yes. 

Q And this may involve say working all night. 

A At times -- and, again, that's what the second 

25 mate and the third mate there are there to assist him. 



9 

Once the load is started and started satisfactorily and 

2 everything appears to be fairly routine, that gives the 

3 chief mate an opportunity to turn the cargo watch over to 

4 one of the mates. 

5 Q And I imagine the chief mate kind of sets his own 

6 schedule as to when he thinks things are going well or if 

7 he has to stay up or --

8 A Well, he'd normally go to his stateroom and the 

9 orders-- most cargo orders that I've seen say if you see 

10 
.I anything going on, give him a call at any time. 
I 

11 Q In other words, he doesn't feel that he has to be 

12 present, personally, at all times to watch; he can rely on 

11 your judgment, the second mate's judgment. 

14 A That's correct. 

~ s Q And if something goes wrong, you call him. 
'i 

1 ·~ II A YeE. 
I 

:" II 
c I 

Q You I think went to work, started your next watch 

at 8:00 o'clock the next morning, is that correct? 

19 A Actually, a little bit earlier. 

20 Q Okay, you were still loading at this time? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q And that took essentially all day, did it not? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q Is an estimate made of when the ship is expected 

75 to be loaded and ready to sail? 
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A We keep track of loading rates and if the rate 

2 changes appreciably, we will update what we call the 

3 sailing board. 

4 Q But if you're not there to see the board-- in 

5 other words, if it says 8:00 o'clock, 8:00p.m., or 

6 something like that, and someone's ashore, how would they 

7 find out if it's going to be an hour later? 

8 A The only way that they would be able to find out 

9 is to call the agent or the vessel. 
' r 
iU Q How about if it's an hour earlier, would the same 
1) thing apply? 

12 A Yes. 
I' 

13 Q I take it the loading of the Exxon Valdez on the 

1 ~ 23d, during the day, was uneventful, routine, or do you 

15 know? 

16 A That's a fair characterization, yes. 

17 Q And then I think you were off after noon for 

13 awhile and started again? When was your next watch? 

19 A My next watch? 

20 Q Yes. 

21 A Well, my next watch wouldn't begin until 8:00 that 

22 evening, but I had other duties in between noontime and 

23 2000. 

24 Q Okay, what did you do during that time interval? 

'!5 A After lunch, I went and took a salinity reading. 
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Q A what reading? 

A salinity. 

Oh, right. 

1 1 

A 

Q 

A I had supper relief at 5:00 o'clock for our chief 

mate. And I helped in topping off. I don't recall 

specifically, perhaps somewhere around 1900, I think. 

Q When did you start checking the gear and all the 

associated equipment to see if it was functioning? 

A You know, again, without some reference material, 

I can't give you a real good time. 

Just approximately, sir. 

1930. 

Q 

A 

Q About how long does that take? Just run through 

this precheck. 

20 minutes. A 

0 As part of that checking system, then, do you 

actually turn the rudder to see if the rudder indicator is 

operating properly? 

A Yes. 

Q And did it do so on this particular --

A Yes. 

Q Yes. 

A Yes. 

Q I think you also mentioned that one of the other 

things you do is check the fathometer, right? 

A Yes. 
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Q It has an alarm which would indicate you're in 

2 water that is-- well, whatever your setting is on your 

3 instrument, it would ring an alarm when you get to that 

4 level. 

5 A That's correct. 

6 Q Is that used at all for navigation, sir? 

7 A For navigation? 

8 Q Yes. 

9 A No. 

10 Q In other words, if -- I mean have you ever heard 

11 of a situation or ever done this, where you were directed 

12 to make a turn or do any a course change at a particular 

fathom mark on a chart? 

14 A No. 

15 ! Q Maybe you can explain to the jury why that would 

be so. Why would it be unusual to have a fathom mark as 6 

navigation --

A You can't see it. You can't see it with your 

19 eye. There's many other things that would be much more 

20 reliable. If there was not a point of land, then you would 

21 have a position, a latitude and longitude, that you would 

22 use. 

23 Q Otherwise, you're looking at an instrument, 

24 waiting for a certain figure to show up that says 38 or 40 

/5 or something? I mean that's what you'd be looking for with 
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a fathometer, right? 

2 A Yes, I suppose so. 

3 Q I think you said that in Prince William Sound, the 

4 fathometer is not used to any real extent, is it? 

5 A No, it's the depth alarm. It is not -- you know, 

6 it's energized, it's used, but the application is limited 

7 because you go from extremely deep water to no water. 

8 Q Either too much water or plenty of water or not 

9 .I near 1 y enough, right? 

A Correct. 

Q You tested the radar and that, I think you said, 

12 was working properly. 

1 ~ A Both, yes. 

1.: 0 And you used the 12-mile scale to do that. 
i' 

'<: :t A To tune. i: 
1 I Q To tune. 

li 
A Yes. 

12 Q By tuning, you adjust the gain so your targets 

19 come in at the best possible visual sighting. 

20 A The gain in the tuning, yes. 

21 Q I think you said, at about 8:20, the pilot, Mr. 

22 Murphy, Captain Murphy came on board, correct? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q And he was there for awhile and I think you said 

25 that the captain then came on board some time after that, 
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Captain Hazelwood. 

A Yes. 

Q Did you actually see him come on board or just on 

to the bridge, itself? 

A I only recall the captain coming onto the bridge. 

Q And did you speak with him at that time? 

A No, I didn't. 

Q Did you hear him speaking to Mr. Murphy or anybody 

else? 

A Yes, I believe the agent was up there. I'm pretty 

sure the agent was on the bridge at that time. 

Q How close did you get to him, physically, would 

you say? 

A Not within ten feet. 

Q Did you have a chance to observe his demeanor at 

all and his manner or method of walking or any of his 

physical coordination, anything like this? 

Yes, I did. 

Q Did you see anything at all unusual about Captain 

Hazelwood at that time? 

A No, I didn't. 

Q Then you started the undocking procedure and you 

assumed your normal station on the aft of the ship? 

A That's correct. 

Q That went routinely? 



15 

A Yes, it did. 

2 Q Who gave the orders to do things with undocking, I 

3 mean as far as undocking is concerned? Were there certain 

4 orders given? 

5 A Yes, typically, we'll gather at the stern for the 

6 aft docking people. I will ask the master if we can start 

7 dropping lines aft and I'll let him know when indeed we are 

8 going to drop lines aft after he says it's okay. That's 

9 transmitted to the engineer so the screw is stopped. From 

there, we'll --and I direct the work being done on deck. 

11 From there, we'll move up to our spring wires which are 

12 forward of the superstructure. 

Q Was there anything unusual or different about the 

orders or the manner of undocking at this particular time? 

15 A No. 

16 Q Once you leave the dock, then, the engine is 

running, the pilot more or less directs the course of the 

vessel out to the pilot station 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q -- to Rocky Point. 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q And I believe you said that was routine. 

23 A That's correct. 

24 Q You were on the bridge at all times? 

25 A Yes, I was. 
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Q And who was at the helm, the wheel? 

2 A I believe Paul Radtke was the helmsman when I got 

3 up to the bridge. 

4 Q And the pilot was there. 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Anyone on lookout? 

7 A Yes, Harry Claar. 

8 Q Where was he stationed, forward or the bow or --

9 ' A On the bow. 

10 Q Okay. And he has a radio, of course. 

'' I I I A Yes. 

12 Q I think you said at some time that the captain 

went down below or at least you did not see him on the 

bridge, correct? 

A That's correct. 

0 Now the -- let me just show you a chart. Perhap~ 

17 that would be better with less glare. But, Mr. Cousins, 

1 Q could you just more or less show the route that you tool 

19 out through, from the dock or the berth to the pilot 

20 station? 

21 A The Alyeska berths are situated here. From 

22 undocking, we would generally make a track something like 

23 this, make a turn and transit the Narrows, from the 

24 Narrows, without ice, typically just down the lanes. 

· 2s 
Q I believe you said the captain came back on board, 
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to your knowledge, somewhere before or around Potato Point, 

right? 

A That's my recollection, yes. 

Q That's toward the end of the Narrows. 

A Yes. 

Q Did -- was there any unusual anxiety during this 

transit at all on the part of you or the pilot, Mr. Murphy? 

A No. 

Q It was 

A Routine. 

Q -- routine. You've done it many times. 

A I haven't done it many times, but --

Q Well, a number of times. 

A Yes, a few, yes. 

Q It seemed like, oh, just like it always did. 

A Yes. 

Q The course changes that are made, are they -- you 

know, the course you take, is that pretty much 

established? In other words, does the pilot seem to have 

any particular course in mind when he goes through those 

points? 

A Yes. 

Q You basically stood there and watched, right? 

A Well, you do a little bit more than that. You're 

supposed to keep track of the vessel's movement and observe 
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the helmsman and take any engine orders the pilot would 

2 give. 

3 Q The pilot would give them to you and then you'd 

4 transmit them to the helmsman, is that how it works? 
5 I 

A He would give rudder orders to the helmsman and he 

6 would give engine orders to the watch officer. 

7 Q Which would be you. 

A Yes. 

Q Did anything that occurred on this particular 

10 transit out to Rocky Point at all contribute to the 

11 eventual grounding of the Exxon Valdez? 

12 A No. 

13 li Q I think you said then that after the pilot was off 

14 maybe we could go over that just very briefly. Does the 

15 vessel slow down or alter course to allow the pilot to get 

16 1! off? 

17 A Some-- yes, it'll do both, usually, depending on 

1 B if the pilot boat needs a lead, there could be a course 

19 change sometimes that isn't required, but a course change 

20 will also knock some way off the vessel. 

21 Q I take it the pilot was taken off the vessel with 

22 no problems. 

23 A No problems. 

24 Q Now do you know to your own knowledge, sir, 

25 whether or not the chief mate had worked such long hours 
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that the captain was going to take over his watch say at 

2 4:00 a.m. for him? 

3 A I didn't know. 

4 Q After the pilot was off, was the course changed 

5 then again? 

6 A Yes, it was. 

7 Q To what, sir? 

8 A I don't recall -- I recall coming to 200. There 

9 

II 
was another change to 180 after that. 

1 c Q Who made those course changes? 

11 A The captain. 
I 

12 I Q And you were present and heard them, right? 

13 I A I don't know that I was present. I may have been 

l ~ on the bridge, but not heard them. I did hear of the 180 

15 course change, I was informed of that one. 

16 ! Q And this occurred on the bridge. 

1" A Yes. 

I: Q And this was in the presence of the captain, 

19 you're standing together? 

20 A We11, we weren't standing together. I was in the 

21 course of doing something and the course change was given. 

22 Q Fine, but you heard it --

23 A Yes. 

24 Q -- clearly. Did you see the captain also at this 

7.5 time? 



20 

I 
1 ,, 

A Yes, I did. 

2 
Q Did you see any change at all in his demeanor or 

3 i speech or anything else from this point, compared to the 

4 earlier time you saw him on the bridge? 

5 A No, I didn't. 

6 Q Did the commands or orders he gave seem to be --

7 you had no trouble understanding them or they made sense at 

8 the time? 

9 A They were clear, yes. 
1 r ,, 

Q Did he seem to be in command of the vessel? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Now perhaps I got a little confused at this 

l:? point. Maybe you could relate again exactly what actions 

14 you took after this course change was made and what did you 

1 s do next? 
' 

1 t li ,, 
I A At what point do you want to pick this up? 

17 
Q Well, maybe I can ask you this. I think you said 

18 1 that thE:: pilot was off at 2324. 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q And then you came on the bridge. You said the 

21 captain wanted you to do a fix. 

22 A That's correct. 

23 Q In other words, he wanted you to plot your 

24 position as to where the vessel was at that time. 

25 A That's correct. I believe that at that -- during 
~ --, 
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the process of taking that fix, I believe the vessel 

started to swing, heading towards 200. 

21 

Q 200 would put in what direction, could you just 

show that on the chart for the jury, just approximately 

where, what direction that is? 

A That would be kind of like this. 

Q Southwesterly, right? 

A Yes. 

Q What made this course change? You said it swung. 

What made it swing? Maybe I misunderstood you. You said 

during some process or --

A During the process of taking the fix, the vessel 

began to swing to the course of 200. 

Q Oh, I see. About how long did it take you to do 

this fix? 

A Oh, perhaps -- you mean the actual fix or the fix 

and plotting? 

Q Let's say just the fix. 

A Just the fix? Perhaps 15 seconds, 20 seconds. 

Q And, again, what do you do? This 15 seconds, 

what's involved in that? 

A On that pa~ticular fix, it was two visual sites 

and a range. 

Q Using the -- using what equipment? 

A The starboard bridge repeater, bridge wing 
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repeater, and the starboard radar visual range marker. 

2 
Q Is it fair to say, sir, that getting a fix is a 

3 very commonly done and routine operation on a ship? 

4 
A Yes. 

5 Q And it's done -- with anyone with any degree of 

6 skill it can be done very rapidly, can it not? 

7 A Correct. 

8 Q Then how long did it take you to plot this fix? 

9 By plot, that means you actually went to a chart and put it 

10 on there, put a mark on there? 

11 I 
A That's correct. 

12 Q And how long did that take? 

A Oh, 30 or 40 seconds. 

14 0 So the entire fix and plotting took less than a 

15 minute, is that correct? 

A Well, I didn't have a stop watch. 

Q Yes. 

A Around a minute. 

19 Q But it didn't take a great deal of time, is that 

20 fair to say? 

21 A No. 

22 Q Where was the vessel when you took this fix? 

23 Could you just maybe point to it? I don't know if the 

24 pointer is still up there or not. There usually is one up 

'5 there, but, if not --



23 

A The approximate position at the time of the fix 

2 was right in here, approximately in the middle of the 

3 separation zone. 

4 Q You're in the middle of the separation zone, still 

5 on a course of about 200? 

6 A Coming to 200. 

7 Q Is this -- at this time, did you have a discussion 

8 with the captain about what the plan was about the ice, 

9 things like this? 

A I think the conversation consisted of the captain 

telling me that, "We're going to divert for the ice." 

12 Q Okay, he made the decision to divert around the 

13 ice, correct? 

14 A Yes. 

15 0 Routing around ice is a fairly routine operation 

16 in Prince William Sound, is it not? 

17 A It's become routine. It wasn't always, I don't 

1 c think. 

19 Q Well, have the ice conditions changed, in your 

20 experience, over the years? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q Columbia Glacier ice has increased. 

23 A Calving increasing amounts of ice and larger 

24 pieces of ice. 

25 0 On that topic, you said you looked at the radar 
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\: for the 
2 'I A 

ice, correct? 

Yes. 

3 Q I want to show you what you marked on the chart 

4 yesterday. Now, sir, I believe you drew that green outline 

5 on there as the extent of the ice. 

6 A That's correct. 

7 Q Now that isn't an ice sheet, is it, solid ice? 

8 A No, that's, again, a general outline of the area 

Q of ice. 

1 G Q Would it be more accurate, Mr. Cousins, if instead 

11 of the line there, you had little dots to represent 

icebergs, ice chunks or things like that? 

1: A Yes. 

14 
i 

Q And these are varying sizes? 

1 , I 
-' i! A Yes. 

16 Q Some are small, some are big? 

17 A Yes. 

1 c I 

i 
I 
I 

0 Can you tell from looking at the radar-- the 

19 position you were at, you were in ~t that time, could you 

20 tell how big some of the icebergs were or the size of the 

21 ice floe? 

22 A By the targets on the radar? 

23 Q Yes. 

24 A No, not really. I would say that, from 

15 experience, that they were -- considering the strength of 
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the return of -- that we're getting from the chunks of ice 

2 that they were a pretty good size. 

3 Q When you say pretty good size, I mean that leaves 

4 a lot to be understood. Can you describe it in terms of 

5 feet or anything like that? 

6 A Perhaps not feet. I guess the description would 

7 be, as we know it, called bergy bits, which is smaller than 

8 say an iceberg, larger than growlers, which are smaller 

9 chunks of ice. I could characterize what you'd see in 

10 
I/ bergy bits as perhaps the size of a small house sticking 

~ ~ i above the water line. 

12 Q 20 questions, bigger than a bread box and smaller 

1

1'11 
~ II 

1s I 

than --

A Yes, exactly. 

Yes. In other words, some of them may pose a Q 
I 

16 i danger to a vessel like the Exxon Valdez and others would 
II 

17 not, is that fair? 

18 A That's fair. 

19 Q And you don't really know, but it's-- let's say 

20 it was a-- well, let me ask you this. When you said the 

21 captain made this decision and told you what the plan was, 

22 you, in addition to your duties of just carrying out the 

23 orders, you also discussed it with him. 

24 A That's correct. 

25 Q You felt free to voice your opinion or objection 
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if you felt it was wrong. 

A 

Q 

decision? 

A 

That's part of our job. 

Did you feel there was anything wrong with this 

After I had taken some ranges and got this view of 

the ice against -- you know, in relation to the traffic 

lanes and the hazards, I thought that it was indeed a 

maneuver that was practical. 

Q I guess a decision could be made to either go 

through the ice or try to go around it, is that basically 

what it came down to? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

You said, in your direct testimony yesterday, that 

you felt you had plenty of room to make the maneuver, 

right? 

A Yes. 

Q You were a mile off Busby Island when you were 

going to make the turn? 

A Approximately. 

Q And how far at this point, then, would be Bligh 

Reef? 

A I don't reca 1 1 the --

Q Can you estimate, two miles, one mile? 

A About two miles to the northern edge of the reef. 

Q You knew the characteristics of the vessel as far 
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as its ability to turn when it was fully laden. 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q And you had no question in your mind that under 

4 the conditions that existed at that time, the maneuver was 

5 a prudent one. 

6 A That's correct. 

7 Q I think you said that you asked the captain or 

8 said something that you were going to tell traffic, but you 
Q 

said that he had already done that, correct? 

A That was earlier. 

Q Earlier, okay. Like, "Talking to traffic," that 

12 means the Vessel Control Center, does it not? 

A Yes, it does. 

1~ Q It's something that you felt you were required to 

15 do, was to inform them of your intentions to go around the 

]{ I ice? 

A Something that we have to do. 

1 ~ At that time, you could see Busby Light quite 

19 clearly, could you not? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q And you knew where Bligh Reef was and where the 

22 buoy was. 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q It was visible certainly under radar. 

25 A Yes. 
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Q And was it visible at that time, also, visually, 

2 just looking out the bridge window? 

3 A From what point are you talking about now? 

4 Q The time you made the decision to divert around 

5 the ice 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q -- your earlier fix. 

8 A Yes. Well, the Bligh Reef buoy wasn't. 

9 
Q Was it 

A It was visible on radar, but, visually, I don't 

remember seeing it. 

12 
Q You knew where it was. 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q So I assume then, sir, that you knew to make the 

15 maneuver, you weren't -- Busby Island was certainly not any 

16 problem because you were a mile to the west of Busby, 

17 right? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q The only potential problem was making the turn so 

20 you would go to the north of Bligh Reef and get back into 

21 the traffic lanes, at the same time skirting the southern 

22 edge of the ice. 

23 A Correct. 

24 Q At 2324, you said the order was given to go full 

-~ ahead on the engine controls, maneuvering speed? 
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A That was the time the pilot was off, yes. 

Q What does full maneuvering speed mean? 

A 55 rpm. Laden, I believe that's about ten knots. 

Q And is it true, sir, that the vessel, such as the 

Exxon Valdez, will maneuver better or is easier to control 

at a little faster speed, as opposed to a slower one? 

A Yes, you get quicker response from the rudder. 

Q On that topic, when you turn the rudder on this 

ship, how long -- let's say you're going at 11 knots, draft 

is 56, 57 feet, when you turn the rudder say ten degrees, 

how quickly do you see a response of the ship or does the 

ship begin to respond, let's put it that way? 

A Oh, you should see a response within 15 to 20 

seconds. 

Q Not instantaneous, but quickly. 

A Yes. 

Q The captain did not tell you to put any degree of 

rudder on the vessel, right? 

A That's correct. 

Q You indicated -- did you look at the chart, were 

you standing there at the chart with him while this 

discussion about what the maneuver was going to entail? 

A No, we did this at the radar. 

Q The captain looked at the radar, too, to see the 

ice at the same time you did? 
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A Well, I don't know if it was at the same time. I 

2 l'li, was observing the ice from the time of the 2339 fix on. We 

3 had two discussions at the radar and, obviously, the 

4 captain had to be aware of the ice because that's why we 

5 were changing course. 

6 Q Right. So you assumed at least that at some time, 

7 he looked at the radar and knew about it. 

8 A Well, he stated that, "We're diverting for the 

9 
!. ice. 

1 o I 
,I 

11 

12 

13 

1 ~ 

15 

17 

Q Did you know of the earlier ice reports from the 

ARCO Juneau at all? 

A No, I had heard that there had been a report of 

ice in the lanes, but I didn't hear the specifics of the 

report. 

Q Now if I understand correctly, sir, the 

maneuvering question was this. When you became abeam of 

Busby Island, you were going to make a turn to the right, 
1C 

•c I! which wou 1 d then take the vesse 1 north of B 1 i gh Reef and 

19 back into the traffic lanes. 

20 A That's correct. 

21 Q When -- in other words, you have to be 90 degrees 

22 from Busby Island 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q And you're going on -- because you're going on a 

?5 course straight south, 180 degrees, right? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q And you then just, at that point, give an order to 

3 the helmsman to say ten degrees, 20 degrees, something. 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Perhaps for the jury, you can explain. Ten 

6 degrees may not sound like much. Can you explain what you 

7 feel a ship like the Exxon Valdez does with a ten-degree 

8 rudder? Is this a normal, routine maneuver or order? 

9 A Yes, it is. 

10 Q Did you anticipate using a ten-degree right rudder 

11 as you approached Busby Island? 

12 A Shortly in advance of getting abeam, I decided 

13 that I wasn't going to use a large amount of rudder, large 

1 ~ being 20 or 30 degrees, and that I estimated that that rate 

1 0 

.I '-' of turn would have taken us into the ice. 

1( 1: Q At 20 or more? 
1- i I 

1 E it 

I 

A Yes, at more than ten, I felt that that would 

produce a swing rate that would actually bring us into the 

19 ice. 

20 Q When you speak of swing rates, say at abeam of 

21 Busby Island, if a ten-degree rudder turn was actually put 

22 on the vessel, can you explain what you would expect by way 

23 of swing rate, how fast the vessel would turn in a given 

24 amount of time? 

25 A Well, at this point in time, it's kind of hard for 
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me to give you anything with any degree of accuracy. I 

2 would hope for the swing rate to increase from nothing up 

3 to at least five-tenths of a degree per second, perhaps a 

4 little bit more. 

5 Q Per second. 

6 A Per second. 

7 Q I believe you said the discussion after this 

8 decision had been made centered around your understanding 

9 II of what was to be done and your being comfortable with 

1 c I / doing it. The captain was not directly there, I mean right 
11 on the bridge with you, right? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q I think you said, yesterday, that -- you were 

14 asked the question twice whether you felt comfortable with 

15 doing that. 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q This didn't cause you any unusual anxiety or 

1 c anything like that. 

19 A No, it didn't. 

20 Q I mean you knew your capabilities and abilities as 

21 a seaman, right? 

22 A Yes, sir. 

23 Q And Captain Hazelwood at least had some idea of 

24 the same, since he had sailed with you before. 

25 A Yes. 
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Q I think you said that you did not know much about 

the helmsman, Mr. Kagan, his abilities or lack of them. 

A No, I didn't. 

Q After the captain went down below -- and your 

communication with him is via telephone, right? 

A Yes. 

Q Maybe I can use this exhibit here, if I -- Mr. 

Cousins, perhaps you could step down --

MR. MADSON: With the Court's permission, would it 

be all right, sir? 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Sure. 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

Q and show the jury where you were physically 

located at the same time where Captain Hazelwood was. 

Let's turn it perhaps so it would be a little easier. 

A And this is at the time of the phone call? 

Q Yes. 

A It's on the port side of the bridge, on this --

MR. COLE: Judge, can I lift it up so that it 

doesn't 

MR. MADSON: I'd rather have someone-- well, too 

late. 

THE WITNESS: The phone that I was using is 

mounted on this partial bulkhead between the nav. area and 

the chart room, about here. The captain's office is 

located 
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right here and his desk and phone are just a matter of feet 

inside the door. 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

Q Now when you say "right here," that's--

A D Deck, one deck below. 

Q One deck below. Now the captain's desk is 

situated here and there's phones on it. 

A I think you said, yesterday, Mr. Cousins, that 

from the captain's quarters to the bridge, if someone was 

in a hurry, could take maybe 15 seconds. 

A That's correct. 

Q And, certainly, you knew in your own mind that had 

you asked the captain, to say, "Hey, I've got a problem," 

he would respond and come up. 

A Yes. 

Q Do you feel at the time you were up on the bridge 

that the captain still was directing the control or 

directing, controlling the vessel? 

A In a sense, yes. 

Q In other words, he had the power, the ability to 

tell you what he wanted to do and you could then carry it 

out. 

A That's right. 

Q On the other hand, you could discuss that with him 

and perhaps say, "Well, I don't think that's what we should 
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do because of the .,"following and he could then 

2 change his mind. 

3 A That's part of my job, yes. 

4 Q And at the same time, the actual physical 

5 maneuvering of the vessel was not even done by yourself, 

6 but it was being done by Mr. Kagan. When I say physical, I 

7 mean hands on the wheel type of thing. 

8 A That's right. 

9 Q But you also had the ability to direct and control 
1 r 
'v !: Mr. Kagan by telling him what you wanted done, right? 

A By giving orders to him, yes. 

12 Q And of course you gave him, I think you said 

13 yesterday, the order to go ten degrees right rudder. 

A That's right. 

Q Mr. Cousins, is it correct that in your mind 

16 today, there's no doubt that had that ten-degree right 

17 rudder command been executed at that time off Busby Island, 

12 the ship would have cleared Bligh Reef by a substantial 

19 margin? 

20 A That's my belief. 

21 Q When you told Mr. Kagan and said, "Ten degree 

22 right rudder," do you know if he responded or not and said, 

23 you know, said, "Aye, aye, sir," or whatever seamen do? 

24 A He would have responded, "Ten right." He would 

25 
i repeat the command. 

I 

li 

I 
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Q That's normal and routine, is it not? 

A That's, yes, routine. 

Q That's to make sure that the person you're giving 

the order to understood it and --

A Yes. 

Q -- is repeating it? 

A Yes. 

Q At that time, you certainly had no reason to 

believe that Mr. Kagan did not put ten degrees right rudj~r 

li on the vessel . 

A That's correct. 

Q I take it, though, sir you said you did not 

actually look up at that point and see the rudder 

indicator, itself. 

A That's correct, I was I gave the initial rudder 

command and was in the process of calling the captain. 

Q Now that was the first conversation, correct? 

A Yes, and had turned my back to the rudder angle 

indicator. 

Q And at that time, you told him that, "We are 

starting the turn." 

A That's correct. 

Q I assume there was no anxiety in your voice or 

anything that would cause Captain Hazelwood to think that 

that was not the case. 

A Correct. 
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Q To the best of your knowledge and belief, the 

vessel was beginning to start turning to the right. 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Now I'd like to get on another topic at this 
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point. Mr. Cole asked you, yesterday, about the auto 

pilot, itself. Going back to that point, you said that, I 

think, at one point, you physically turned it off, correct? 

Yes. A 

0 I think you said that was off at about 11:50 --

"''I'm layman's hours again-- about 11:52 or :53. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1-, 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yes, as the captain was leaving the bridge, I 

switched the steering mode to helm. 

Q 

begun? 

A 

0 

And this was the same time the load program up had 

It was a little bit after. 

Okay. And load program up, again, takes some 40 

minutes to get up to what's called sea speed, is that 

cor-rect? 

A It's my recollection it takes that long, yes. 

Q Mr. Cousins, I'd like to have you look at what's 

been marked as Defendant's Exhibit K. Would you look at 

this, sir, and let me ask you if you recognize that? 

A 

Q 

Yes, this is our Sperry steering unit. 

Would you hold that up so the jury can see it and 

indicate where the button is that is the auto pilot? 
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A The auto pilot? 

2 Q Yes, turning it off and on. 

3 A Well, this is the gyro mode button. It's on a pad 

4 of six buttons. It's the upper left most button that would 

5 put it into the auto pilot. 

6 Q How about turning it off? 

7 A The helm, going to helm mode, you depress this 

8 button right here. 
i 

9 I 
Q Now when you say "this button," what does it say 

1 c there, helm? 

i l 
A Helm. 

12 Q And it's roughly how big in diameter, sir? 

13 A Oh, perhaps an inch or more. 

14 MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I would ask that Exhibit 

,: K be offered into evidence at this time. 

l ( I MR. COLE: No objection. 

17 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Admi~ted. 

12 (Defendant's Exhibit K wa3 

19 received in evidence.) 

20 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

21 Q Mr. Cousins, if the vessel is on auto pilot, is 

22 this readily apparent to you at the time? Would you know 

23 that and how? 

24 A If I hadn't put it into auto pilot? 

25 0 Yes, just in general I'm talking. You came up on 
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the bridge and you wanted to know if it was on auto or 

2 helm. 

3 A Well, I would ask someone. 

4 Q How about looking at anything? 

5 A Well, if there was enough light there, you would 

6 obviously see if the helm was in the steering or not. 

7 Q If it's in auto pilot, engaged in the auto mode, 

8 if you turn the wheel, does the rudder indicator turn at 

9 all? 

10 A The rudder indicator, no. 

11 I' ,I Q The rudder does not turn, right? 
i 

12 I A No, it's segregated at that point. 

13 Q So you wouldn't go six or seven degrees, let alone 

14 ten degrees, if it was on auto pilot. 

15 A No. 

:: I 
i 

0 Is it true then, sir, there is -- do you have any 

doubt in your mind that at the time you push the button and 

12 disengaged the auto pilot, it did in fact go off and you 

19 were on helm steering from 11:53, approximately, on? 

20 A There was no doubt. 

21 Q Did the auto pilot have anything to do with this 

22 grounding? 

23 A No, it didn't. 

24 Q Now Mr. Cole asked you exactly what you did, 

25 yesterday, after say the first conversation with the 
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captain and you explained how you went here and went there 

2 and, you know -- let me back up just a little bit. When 

3 did you actually say to Mr. Kagan, what time in other 

4 words, "Ten degrees right rudder"? Was that 11:55 or 2355? 

5 
A It would have been more like one minute later, 

6 2356. 

7 Q And you knew exactly where the vessel was at that 

8 time. 

9 
A Yes. 

Q No question you were abeam of Busby Island? 

A Actually, we were, I figured, two-tenths south of 

12 Busby. 

13 Q Two-tenths of a mile or a nautical mile or--

A Nautical mile. 

15 Q Nautical mile. And I think you said the leading 

16 edge of the ice was approximately nine-tenths of a mile 

17 from Bligh Reef, from the buoy. 

1 e A No, not from the buoy. 

19 Q Okay, from the reef, itself? 

20 A Yes, that was the distance between the reef and 

21 the bottom edge of the ice. 

22 Q Do you have any idea now about how much time 

23 elapsed before you actually looked at the rudder indicator 

24 and saw that it was only like at six? 

A Approaching two minutes, anywhere from a minute 
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and a half, between a minute and a half to two minutes. 

Q During this time, you were at the starboard radar 

the entire -- was your --

A 

Q 

No. 

Port radar? 

A After the telephone conversation, I returned to 

the I turned around and went to the port radar, looked 

at the port radar, looked up at the rudder angle indicator. 

Q There is only one overhead rudder angle indicator, 

is there not? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Well, there's actually two. 

Oh, I'm sorry, one up on the forward bulkhead-­

Yes. 

-- and one more or less directly right above the 

15 console'? 

16 

1: 

12 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 
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A 

Q 

Yes, on the starboard side. 

Mr. Cousins, I'd like to hand you now what's been 

marked as Defendant's Exhibit J and ask you if you can 

recognize this, sir. 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And what is that? 

A This is a view of the starboard side of the 

forward section of the bridge. 

Q Maybe you could hold it up and just illustrate 

where, for instance, the radar is. 
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' 
1 I 

I A This is the starboard radar. This is the rudder 

2 angle indicator. This is the steering stand. The other 

3 radar that I was using would have been over here. 

4 Q Well, from the other radar, the port radar, can 

5 you see the rudder angle indicator? 

6 A Not clearly, no. 

7 Q How far would you have to move in order to see it? 

8 A As I recall, you'd need to step fairly close to 

9 the steering stand. 

1(; 
Q What about the other rudder indicator, angle 

11 indicator? 

12 A That is located right here --

1:: Q That was it. 

1 ~ A -- the smaller 

15 Q Could you see that from the port radar station? 

16 A Yes, it's kind of -- it's at an angle. I think 
1 :' 

it's more directly in front of the steering stand. 

12 MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I'd offer Defendant's 

19 Exhibit J at this time. 

20 MR. COLE: No objection. 

21 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Admitted. 

22 (Defendant's Exhibit J was 

23 received in evidence.) 

24 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

25 Q Is the port radar essentially the same as the 
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No, it isn't. 

What's the difference? 
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A The starboard radar is a ten-centimeter radar and 

it's equipped with a collision avoidance module. Port 

radar is a three-centimeter radar without any other 

attachments. 

Q You felt, on this particular occasion, the port 

radar was better for your purposes? 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

Now when you have a helmsman that you give an 

order to, do you naturally assume it's carried out if the 

guy says, "Yes, ten-degree right rudder"? 

A Yes. 

Q You don't normally stand right over the helmsman's 

shoulder and watch every move he makes, do you? 

A No, but -- not right over his shoulder, but you'd 

observe that your order was indeed executed. 

Q Did you see Mr. Kagan actually turning the wheel 

when you gave him the ten-degree right rudder? 

A Well, I could only see a silhouette of the 

helmsman. It was extremely dark in the wheelhouse. 

Q That's because you don't want any light to 

interfere with your night vision. 

A That's correct. 
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0 Now the chart room, itself, is that lit so that 

2 you can see the charts and everything back there? 

3 A Dimly. 

4 Q Do you have a curtain that's drawn across? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q When you were on the phone with Captain Hazelwood, 

7 the first conversation when you told him you were starting 

8 the maneuver, did he ask you what rudder angle you had on 

9 did tell him? 
I 

or you 

10 
II A No, there was no discussion of the rudder angle. 

11 
Q But told him you were starting to make the you 

12 turn, right? 

13 A Yes. 

0 Now did you come in -- after you hung up the 

15 1 phone, you then took another fix or plot or were you just 

1611 looking at the radar at this time? 

17 A After the first conversation? 

12 ' 0 Yes. 

19 A I turned to, again, the port radar, looked at the 

20 rudder angle indicator. It was at that time that I stepped 

21 out onto the port bridge wing and looked aft to Busby 

22 Island Light. 

23 Q And did it seem to be in the proper position as 

24 you were starting to make the turn or can you tell, really? 

25 A Well, I-- no, I expected the light to be more--
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not off our port quarter, but more astern as the ship 

2 started to swing. 

3 Q Did this cause you any concern at this time? 

4 A Yes, it did. 

5 Q What did you do then? 

6 A I entered the bridge again and I believe it's at 

7 this time that I ordered the 20 right, took a couple of 

8 ranges and may have, although I don't remember returning to 

9 the chart room to plot these, I believe that I did. 

Q Were these the ones you described yesterday that 

you said you did in haste? 

A Yes, the scribe marks. 

13 Q Okay, so you believe that while you plotted them, 

14 you did them in somewhat of a hurry? 

15 A That's correct. 
/, 

1
6 \1 Q About how long did that take, sir? 

' 
p ' 

' A 
i 

A matter of seconds. 

': i! Q Again, 15, 20 seconds? 

19 A Yes, I -- 15, no more than 15. 

20 Q I guess the question is why did you do these in 

21 haste? 

22 A Well, obviously, things weren't going as I had 

23 planned and my the reason that I walked out onto the 

24 bridge wing was a quick check to see whether we had gone so 

25 far down that we were into a red sector. It was a quick 
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check, verified that with a couple of quick ranges. I had 

2 ordered harder rudder, put an additional ten degrees on the 

3 original rudder order. 

4 (Tape changed to C-3617.) 

5 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

6 Q You ordered the 20-degree rudder angle before you 

7 made this plot, the fix, or a fix and plot? 

8 A We 1 1, before I plotted it 1 yes. 

9 
Q You concerned enough at that point because II were 

1 c 
II the vessel wasn't turning as you expected. 

; 1 A Yes, it hadn't turned at a 1 1 . 

12 
Q And is that when you also noticed that the rudder 

13 'I angle was only at six or seven degrees? 

14 A That was prior to that. 

15 Q As you were coming in, you came in and looked at 

16 the radar, did you look at the rudder angle indicator at 

17 that time before you did your actual fix? 

12 
A Y8s, it was at ten then. As I stated yesterday, I 

19 to 1 d him, "Put it over to ten." 

20 Q And you actually saw that it was at ten. 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q Now from just visually from being on the bridge, 

23 just being there and looking out, without the use of radar 

24 or anything, you couldn't see any landmarks, is that 

correct, any mountains or any points of land or anything? 
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A No, only lights. 

2 Q It was virtually just pitch black. 

3 A That's right. 

4 Q And radar is used to a great extent to navigate 

5 vessels like the Exxon Valdez, is it not? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q I mean you could be in a virtual dead or complete 

8 fog and still navigate, could you not? 

9 A Yes. 

l 0 Q Can you estimate-- I know, sir, that the degree 

11 is very difficult, but can you give the jury any idea of 

12 
1 the time that might have been involved from the time you 

13 said-- you did your fix or plot and the time you actually 

14 heard the rumbling of the grounding, itself? 

15 A Are you talking about the plot prior to the 20? 

1 t 1 r 

1 ~ li ,, I 

1: 
\I 

Q That's right, the one you did in haste, when you 

said you were concerned. 

A Perhaps up to a minute, a minute and a half to tw0 

19 minutes. 

20 Q During this time, you did not call Captain 

21 Hazelwood and say, in effect, "Gee, Captain, the vessel's 

22 not turning as I expected," or, "I just gave it 20 degrees 

23 right rudder," or something? 

24 A At that time, no, I didn't call him. 

?5 

\i 

Q Did you still feel that even though you were 
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concerned that, you know, with a 20-degree right rudder, 

you were going to have no problem clearing Bligh Reef? 

A I thought that we were going to clear. 

Q At some point then, you gave another rudder 

command, did you not, the hard right? 

A Yes. 

Q Why did you do that, sir? 

A We weren't -- although the heading change was 

increasing rapidly, our advance was such that we were 

really carrying down under the reef and that was an attempt 

to again increase the rate of turn and hopefully shorten 

that advance towards the reef. 

Q So it was -- it made sense in your mind to turn 

sharper or sharp as possible --

A Yes. 

Q -- at that point, right? 

A Yes. 

Q Was it immediately after that that you went to the 

phone a second time and called the captain? 

A When I ordered the hard right, I was in the 

process of calling the captain. 

Q And I think you said yesterday that, at that time, 

you were just telling him, "I think we're in serious 

trouble," when you heard rumbling sounds. 

A The conversation went, "Captain, I think we're in 
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serious trouble." He said, "Well, what's the matter? 

2 Where's the rudder?" And I said, "I had it at hard right 

3 and turned, it was a 20," the initial contact, impact on 

4 the reef, that was it. 

5 Q When you make a course change or any change, is 

6 there something called a weigh that changes or weigh off 

7 the vessel or something like that, a nautical term? Maybe 

8 I've got it wrong. 

9 A I don't think I understand. 

1 G Q I probably don't, either. In other words, does 

11 the vessel tend to slide as it turns? Maybe that's a 

12 
I better way of putting it. 

13 I A That would be an advance from the time you put a 

1 ~ rudder over until it actually starts off at that line. 

15 

1611 

Q Could you say that there's nothing unusual or 

substantially different about the Exxon Valdez and its 

17 handling characteristics as opposed to other tankers you 

1 s served on? 

19 A They're not the same, but they're very similar. 

20 0 Now you said yesterday that your original estimate 

21 of the grounding time at 0004 is not correct and that it 

22 was actually later than that. Where did the four come 

23 from, the four minutes after; how did you arrive at that? 

24 A I don't really recall. I mean it may have been 

25 just a best estimate, trying to reconstruct the time that 
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I might have gotten off the digital readout on the 
2 console. At the time of contact or impact on the reef, I 

3 did not stand there and say, "Well, it's . .. ,"you know, 

4 0012. I didn't do that. 

5 Q And if the -- you gave the command of ten-degree 

6 right rudder at 2356, let's say, and the grounding, as you 

7 said yesterday, was closer to maybe 0011 or 12 -- is that 

8 correct 

9 I Yes. A 

10 
Q -- that's about 15 minutes, is that correct? 

11 I A Yes. 

12 Q That's the time when you were on the bridge and 

13 doing what you described yesterday, look at the radar and 

14 things like this. 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q Is it true, sir, you didn't feel unusually rushed 

17 or hurried in doing this until you realized there may be a 

13 
! problem, right? 

19 A I felt I think that during that time that I gave 

20 the 20-degree right that it was time to --

21 Q Time to hurry. 

22 A Pick up, yes. 

23 Q And, again, I may have asked the question, I may 

24 have not, but from that time, the 20-degree right turn 

?5 order, to the time you heard the rumblings or whatever, the 
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grounding, was that -- did you say about two minutes or 

longer? 

A A minute and a half to two minutes, somewhere in 

that time frame. 

Q From your earlier testimony, had you asked the 

captain to come up at that time, he could have been there 

say in 15 seconds. 

A Right. 

Q Do you feel, sir, that even if he had come up at 

that time, there was anything that anybody could have done? 

A No. 

Q It was predetermined it was going to hit the reef, 

right? 

A I believe so. 

Q Now, sir, you testified yesterday-- Mr. Cole 

wrote down a lot of things on a sheet. One of the things 

he wrote down was the term "initial grounding." There wa~ 

only one grounding, wasn't there? 

A Yes, it should -- initial contact. 

Q I mean you heard these rumblings or vibrations and 

they lasted for a period of time and they stopped. 

A That's correct. 

Q After the vessel stopped, the engines were still 

running, correct? 

A Yes. 
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Q I think you said that you went out onto the port 

wing, bridge wing at that time immediately after. 

A Yes. 

Q And you turned the lights on, floodlights. 

A Yes. 

Q What did the floodlights do? 

A They illuminated the deck and 

Q That's a dumb question. 

(General laughter.) 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

Q What do they illuminate? 

A They illuminated the deck and the side of the 

vesse 1. 

Q What were you looking for? 

A Holes and oi 1 gushing. 

Q Did you see any on the port side? 

A No, I didn't. 

Q Did you go on the starboard side? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q What did you see there? 

A We saw oi 1 bubbling up in the water. 

Q When you returned to the bridge, was the captain 

there at that time? 

A When I came in from the port bridge wing, he was 

there. 
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Q That was your first trip up? 

Yes. A 

Q How long did you stay out there, just enough to 

put the lights on and look and come back in? 

A 

Q 

Yes, two or three minutes. 

Is it fair to say, sir, that this was a -- I won't 

say unusual, but exciting or--

A Shocking. 

Q -- shocking event, right? When you saw the 

captain come up on the bridge, did he tell you anything to 

do right away? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, get a fix. 

Get a fix. 

Yes. 

And that seemed like a proper, prudent order to 

give at that time? 

A 

Q 

P.. 

Q 

Yes, we needed to know where we were on the reef. 

Yes, because you have to let somebody know, right? 

Yes. 

I take it you did that. 

A Yes. 

Q Did you see any change in his demeanor or manner 

of speaking or anything else that was different at this 

time than any other time earlier that evening? 

A Other than the stress and shock, no. 
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Q Did he appear to be somewhat in shock, too? 

2 A Well, we all were. 

3 Q Did he still seem to give clear and concise 

4 commands, orders? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q After you got the fix, did he tell you anything to 

7 do with regard to the rest of the crew? 

8 A He instructed Maureen Jones, the lookout, and 

9 myself to go below and inform the crew members of our 

10 situation. 

11 
Q There's a general alarm bell or something on a 

12 vessel, is there not? 

13 A Yes. 

14 
Q Was there one on the Exxon Valdez? 

15 A Oh, yes. 
i 

; 6 I Q Was there any suggestion made to sound that 
I 

1- I' 

1: 
II 

general alarm? 

A We thought perhaps it might not be the best thing 

19 to do. The chief mate had mentioned how strong the vapors 

20 were, just in the passageways that he'd come through, so 

21 Q You didn't want to cause anyone any unnecessary 

22 alarm or fear? 

23 A Correct. 

24 Q The captain decided not to use that, but to inform 

25 people? 
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A Right. 

2 Q And you believed that to be a prudent order at the 

3 time. 

4 A Yes. 

5 MR. COLE: Objection, lack of foundation. 

6 MR. MADSON: If he knows, Your Honor. 

7 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: I think the witness can give his 

B opinion on that. Your objection as to foundation is 

9 

17 : 
, I 

I 
1 c I, 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

overruled. 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

Q I believe you said yes, it seemed appropriate 

under the circumstances. 

A Yes. 

Q I want to go back just a little bit. I think you 

said when the vessel hit the reef, it continued to swing to 

the starboard or to the right. 

A Yes. 

Q At that time, of course, you did have the full 

right turn rudder on. 

A Yes. 

Q And that's when you grabbed the wheel to stabilize 

it, in other words, the center of the vessel. 

A Yes well, I did that to slow or stop the swing, 

24 to stop the aft end of the ship from getting up into the 

25 reef. That was an attempt -- that was the intent. 
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Q Yes, the intent was to protect the engine room and 
I 

2 I the crew down there. 

3 A Whether it did anything or not -- yes. 

4 Q Was there a crew or did you know there was crew 

5 down in the engine room at that time? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Why are they there at that particular point of the 

8 voyage, do you know? 

I 
A Well, because they have to be until we make 

10 I departure, until we're out of those waters and out into 

11 open sea. 

12 0 You said the engines were shut down at about --

13 again, I'm doing it in layman's terms-- about 12:20 p.m., 

14 0020, the first time. 

151! A Okay, I don't have anything to reference that by, 

11 i ,_ ' but it sounds about right. 

1~ Q Did I say p.m.? I should have said a.m. 

A Yes. 

19 Q Okay, that would have been roughly ten minutes 

20 after the initial -- after the grounding, approximately. 

21 A I don't know that the engines were running that 

22 long. Of course, you're assuming that my time of the 

23 grounding is correct, so 

24 Q No, actually, I'm asking you to give us your best 

?5 estimate. 
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A I don't think -- I do not believe that it was ten 

2 minutes from the time that we were fully fetched up on the 

3 reef until the time that we stopped the engines. 

4 Q Were you present on the bridge when the captain 

5 gave any -- talked on the phone with the chief engineer, 

6 for instance, stopping the engines and --

7 MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay. 

8 MR. MADSON: I was only asking if he heard a 

9 conversation, not what the content was, Your Honor. 

1 J JUDGE JOHNSTONE: All right, but don't relate what 
1; 

the conversation was. The question is did you just hear a 
' 

12 i 
I conversation? 

1: 1: THE WITNESS: There were a number of 

1.; ! conversations. I really can only tell you who they may 

15 have been with. Certainly, the captain would have talked 

1 t I 

17 li 
12 II 

II 

to somebody, the chief engineer. I don't know what the 

conversation was about. I didn't overhear it. Or the 

chief mate --

19 i 
I BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

20 Q Did you-- did the captain actually ask you or 

21 tell you to go to the engine room or contact the engine 

22 room? 

23 A I did. 

24 Q For what purpose? 

75 A To tell the engineer that we were going to stop 
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the engines. 

Q Did you do that from the bridge? 

A Yes. 

Q By phone, I guess. 

A Yes. 

Q Now how long were the engines off, if you can 

estimate that time, before they restarted them? 

A I don't recall. It was a period of time. I'm not 

sure wnen they were restarted. 

Q Were you present when the order to restart the 

engines was given? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q And who gave that order? 

A The captain. 

Q Did he-- he didn't sound panicky or anything like 

that, j~st, "'Restart the engines"? 

A Yes. 

Q And a number of engine commands were given while 

you were there, right? 

A That's correct. 

Q Were any of those engine commands ever, to your 

knowledge, in the stern or reverse position? 

A No, no. 

Q To get off a reef, sir, from your experience, 

isn't it commonly done to put engines in reverse if you 
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want to get off, if you went on forward? 

2 A That would make sense. Of course, my experience 

3 in being on reefs is --

4 Q Limited? 

5 A -- rather limited. 

6 (General laughter.) 

7 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

8 Q Was this the first? 

9 A This was the first, yes, that's correct. But, you 

10 i 
! 

know, you would logically assume that if you pile into a 

11 pile of rocks that the way you're going to get out is to 

12 back off. 

13 Q You said that Mr. Kunkel, the chief mate, came up 

1..: the bridge and there was a discussion about the stability 

of the ship. 

A Yes, that took place between the captain and the 

chief mate. 

12 
Q You weren't involved in that discussion at all, 

19 sir? 

20 A That's correct. 

21 Q But you were present and overheard it? 

22 A I overheard voices and that's it. 

23 Q Oh, okay, you don't have any clear recollection of 

24 what was said and by whom? 

!5 A No. 
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Q But you knew the gist of the conversation was the 

2 stability of the vessel, right? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q The chief mate, is part of his function to 

5 determine, in other words, things like stability? Can he 

6 do that? 

7 A Certainly. 

8 Q Can you do that? 

A No, not to the extent that the chief mate would be 

able to determine stability. 

Q Do you know how he would do that, just the means 

12 li, or method he would have employed? 

13 A A general idea. 

1.! 
Q How would that be, sir? 

A Well, he could do that-- work that manually, I 

suppose, but we have on board computers that help calculate 

17 stability in stresses at various points along the ship's 

1 E structure. 

19 
Q Does he have a computer or something that he can 

20 use at his disposal to program it? 

21 A Yes, he does, yes. 

22 Q And, of course, Mr. Kunkel would be the person 

23 that would have that knowledge, not yourself, as to how 

24 it's actually done. 

25 A That's correct. 
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Q From the time the vessel was actually on the reef, 

2 I mean after you gave the -- turned the wheel and got it 

3 centered, did the vessel ever move at any -- to any degree, 

4 a substantial degree, after that? 

5 A Did the position shift or 

6 Q Did the position shift, yes, that's what I --

7 A The position didn't shift. 

8 Q It virtually remained motionless. 

9 A Yes. 

Q Do you know if the time was coming in or out at 

that time, sir? 

12 A As I recall, it was flood tide. 

13 Q What does that mean? 

14 A Incoming tide. 

15 Q So the water, if you want to call it that-- the 

16 vessel would tend to rise if it's on a reef? 

17 A Yes, if there was any buoyancy there. 

13 
Q And, of course, you were losing cargo or losing 

19 
0 i 1 . 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q At the same time, would water come in to displace 

22 that oil or how does that work? 

23 A The water would -- oil would not drop out to the 

24 extent that whatever the pressure is outside of the hull, 

25 the level of water. In other words, it would equalize. 
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Q And, of course --

A And it would be -- a hole the size of the holes 

that we had, the oil would be replaced by water. 

Q You didn't know exactly how big the holes were, 

but 

A I didn't. 

Q -- I assume you knew they were substantial --

A Yes. 

Q -- by the-- that was from the amount of oil that 

you could see coming out. 

A Yes. 

0 And, of course, you don't know exactly what was in 

the captain's mind when he was giving engine orders at this 

time --

A No. 

Q -- rudder commands. 

A No. 

Q You remained on duty for how long, sir, after the 

grounding? 

A I remained on the bridge until approximately 5:00 

o'clock. 

Q That was after the Coast Guard arrived? I think 

you said they came on about 3:40, something like that --

A Yes, approximately. 

0 -- a.m. And what were you really doing during 
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this period of time? I think you said -- let me back up. 

2 You said the engines were shut down again at 1:41 a.m. or 

3 0141, right? 

Yes. 4 

5 

A 

Q The captain told you at that point, "We're not 

6 going any place." 

7 A Right. 

8 Q In other words, did you take that to mean that 

9 vessel was stable, it was sitting where it was? 

10 A Yes. 

the 

11 Q And what did you do after that, after 1 : 41 a.m.? 

12 A I continued to monitor the vessel's position and 

13 see whether there was any shift in it, fielding telephone 

14 calls. 

15 Q You weren't in the captain's presence much after 

16 1:41 when the engines were shut down? 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

At 1:41, did he seem any different than you had 

19 seen him earlier? 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

22 anything? 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

No. 

Did the captain yell at your or accuse you of 

No. 

Did he basically just ask you what happened? 

Yes. 
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Q Did you tell him what you thought happened? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Now at 1:41, when the engines were shut down, was 

Mr. Kagan still on the wheel, at the helm? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you hear the captain say anything to Mr. Kagan 

at this time about how well he had done or anything like 

that? 

A Yes, I remember a comment. 

Q What did he say, sir? 

A He said something to the effect of, "Damn fine 

job, Bob," or something like that. 

Q How did you take that to mean? Was that a 

compliment or something else? 

A It was kind of dark humor. 

MR. MADSON: I have no further questions at this 

time, Your Honor. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: We'll take a recess, ladies and 

gentlemen, for about ten or 15 minutes. Remember my 

instructions not to discuss the case among yourselves or 

with any other person and not to form or express any 

opinions. 

THE CLERK: Please rise. This Court stands at 

recess. 

(Whereupon, the jury leaves the courtroom.) 
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(Whereupon, at 10:18 a.m., a recess was taken.) 

(Whereupon, the jury enters the courtroom.) 

THE CLERK: The Court now resumes its session. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Redirect now, Mr. Cole. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Mr. Cousins, at the beginning of your testimony 

yesterday, you indicated that you had not spoken with Mr. 

Madson before, is that correct? 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

How many times have you spoken with Mr. Chalos 

about this case? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

him? 

A 

Q 

A 

Once. 

And where was that at? 

In Orlando. 

Is that where you live? 

I live in Tampa. 

And how about Mr. Russo, have you ever spoken to 

Yes, I did. 

How many times have you spoken with him? 

Once. 

Q When you have traveled in and out of Prince 

William Sound in the trips you've made on the helm, were 

you ever relying on the VTC radar system to tell you where 



2 

3 

you were? 

A 

Q 

No. 

Why is that? 

4 A Because we maintain our own position. 

66 

5 Q You indicated prior that you had been alone on the 

6 bridge in the Prince William Sound. Had that ever been for 

7 as 1 ong as an hour? 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

No. 

Had you ever been alone up on the bridge when 

10 making a maneuver such as you've described here that you 

11 made on March 23d, 1989? 

12 A No. 

13 Q Had you ever been alone up on the bridge with Bob 

14 Kagan at the helm? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

No. 

How long would it take to travel from Hinchinbrook 

17 to the Valdez Terminal if you had a straight shot and no 

18 problems? 

19 A As I recall, approximately four hours. 

20 Q And you indicated that, on several occasions, 

21 tanker captains had left you up on the helm alone while 

22 traveling through this area. 

23 A Not on the helm, but 

24 Q Up on the bridge. 

25 A on the bridge. 
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Q Were those all --what types of circumstances were 

those? Were they during daylight or nighttime? 

A Both. 

Q And when it as during the nighttime, was there ice 

in front of you at that time? 

A No. 

Q Did you have to make any maneuvers-- well, let me 

withdraw that question. What was the longest period prior 

to this evening that a captain had not been on the bridge 

with you? 

A Oh, perhaps ten to 15 minutes. 

Q Is that what you would consider a very brief 

period of time? 

A I'd consider that brief, yes. 

Q And the ten or 15 minutes was the period of time 

you said Captain Hazelwood was off the bridge when the 

tanker grounded, is that correct? 

A Approximately. 

Q Do you remember talking to the NTSB and being 

asked questions about how long you had been left alone on 

prior occasions by tanker captains? 

A I vaguely remember the question, yes. 

Q Do you remember telling the NTSB that you were 

asked a question which said during that time, was it -- I 

think you followed it up by saying it was for a very short 
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period of time. Well, let me read it in context. You were 

asked where you were left alone on the bridge in the Prince 

William Sound area. And you indicated that during that 

time, was it, I think you followed it up by saying for a 

very brief period and you said, "Correct," remember that? 

A Yes. 

Q And you were asked, "But it was a much shorter 

8 period than during this time, right," am I correct? Do you 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

remember answering? 

A Yes, I think that was in reference to the period 

of time that the master was off the bridge in our approach 

and transit of the Narrows. 

Q 

A 

Q 

So that's what you were referring to at that time? 

Yes. 

Now I'd like to talk to you for a minute about the 

16 time that Captain Hazelwood was off the bridge before 

17 Captain Murphy, while Captain Murphy was the pilot. If 

18 Captain Murphy had made a mistake going through the 

19 Narrows, would Captain Hazelwood have been able to correct 

20 it? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Not as quickly as I could have. 

And that was why? 

Because he wasn't on the bridge. 

If you had so much confidence in Captain Murphy, 

:ts why did you remain on the bridge through the Narrows? 
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A As somebody that-- I'm a representative of the 

2 master and I think -- and our policy states that a member 

3 of the crew, a qualified member of the crew has to be on 

4 the bridge. 

5 Q That's in your policy manual, itself. 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Why is it that you have someone up there? 

8 A It's our ship. A pilot is -- you can characterize 

9 him as a contracted employee for a short period of time to 

10 help us get the vessel out of the port area. 

11 
Q Are you aware of any Coast Guard requirements that 

12 require the chief mate to be in the cargo control room 

13 during the loading and unloading process? 

14 A Yes. I don't-- I can't recall specifics of our 

15 regulations right now, but I believe it states that the 

16 chief mate will direct the or supervise the loading or 

17 discharge of cargo and that a qualified member shall assist 

13 him. 

19 Q Would you explain to the jury how common or 

20 uncommon it is for the sailing board to change? 

21 A It's not all that common in Valdez. Loading rates 

22 are usually pretty steady, predictable. We're usually 

23 within a close approximation of the original sailing board. 

24 Q How can a person who's off the vessel find out 

25 about what time his sailing time is? 

r-1 
I 
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A We inform the dock of any changes. We also inform 

the agent. 

Q The "dock," does that mean the Coast Guard? 

A No, that means the terminal personnel. 

Q And a person can call up and ask those people any 

time. 

A Yes. 

0 Were you aware of how much experience Captain 

Hazelwood had coming into Valdez, the Port of Valdez? 

A Not specifically, but I knew that he had fairly 

extensive experience. 

0 And when you say extensive, you mean over a number 

of years. 

A Over a number of years, correct. 

Q Was there anything about the undocking process out 

to Rocky Point that was otherwise other than normal on this 

trip, or routine? Would you consider it nothing more than 

a routine transit out that evening? 

A It was pretty much routine, yes. 

Q Did you have any high winds or --

A Well, it-- we did experience a short period of--

I wouldn't characterize it as reduced visibility, but 

visibility greater than two miles, but probably less than 

four. 

Q That was in the Narrows? 
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A No, not in the Narrows, prior to entering the 

Narrows. 

Q And that was when the pilot was in control of the 

navigation. 

A That's correct. 

Q Now you talked about fixes. Do you -- are there 

any guidelines for taking fixes? Do you take them at a 

certain length of time or does it make a difference 

according to the situation? 

A Well, a difference according to the situation, 

that being if we're in confined waters, six-minute plots, 

if you're able to, if you have the time to do that. I mean 

a six-minute plot is something that is considered a general 

rule and a prudent manner of keeping track of your vessel 

position. 

Q So it does make a difference what type of 

circumstances you're traveling in as far as how many fixes 

you make. 

A Certainly. If we were out in the middle of the 

Gulf of Alaska, hourly fixes or perhaps even fixes of two 

hours would be more appropriate than six-minute positions. 

Q And the reason is, again, for that? Why is that? 

A Well, you're in a more confined waterway or inland 

water space than in the open sea. 

Q Would you consider yourself to have been in a 
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confined area when you entered -- when you left the vessel 

traffic zone and headed in a course of 180 degrees? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

If I could 4 

5 

6 

MR. COLE: Is this where all the exhibits are? 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: What are you looking for, Mr. 

7 Co 1 e? 

8 MR. COLE: The operations (inaudible). 

9 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Do you want to give him a hand? 

10 Do you know the exhibit number, Mr. Cole? Is it 29 or 30, 

11 31, something like that? 

12 MR. COLE: (Inaudible.) 

13 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

14 Q Mr. Cousins, the Exxon Shipping Company puts out a 

15 revised br; dge manu a 1 , is that correct? 

16 MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I want to object at this 

17 point. That's beyond the scope of cross examination. I 

13 never asked him any questions regarding the manu a 1 

19 whatsoever. 

20 MR. COLE: Judge, he asked about whether or not 

21 traveling through ice in making this turn was a routine 

22 operation. I'd like to ask Mr. Cousins where he would--

23 what type of watch he would have said is required under 

24 this situation, to show that it's not routine. 

25 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Objection overruled. 
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BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q It's correct that there's a revised bridge manual 

that's put on all the vessels, is that correct? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And it sets out some of the policies and 

guidelines that the mates and the captain are supposed to 

follow while they're traveling aboard an Exxon vessel. 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

Is there a section on this that talks about what 

type of watches are considered prudent in certain 

circumstances? 

A Yes, there is. 

Q Would you tell the jury what watch you consider 

this should have been placed under? And maybe you could 

15 explain the different categories. Is there an A and B and 

16 C and a D? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yes, there's those four watch conditions and they 

briefly describe certain situations that you would 

encounter. For instance, Watch Condition A would be 

dealing with, as I recall, open waters and it will 

prescribe the officer complement, watch complement that 

should be on the bridge at a given time, based on the watch 

condition that exists. 

Q After having reviewed that manual, what would have 

been the prudent watch detail that should have been on 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

74 

board the bridge of the Exxon Valdez that evening? 

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I'll object to the form 

of the question. If he has an opinion as to what he thinks 

he would have considered it to be -- but whether -- I 

object to the term "prudent ... 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Can you style your question so 

7 it attracts the manual and the policy, rather than the way 

8 it's asked? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1? 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q Would you have considered Watch C to be the watch 

you would prefer? 

A 

Q 

That's correct, yes, I would. 

And would you read for the jury what the watch 

14 requirements are under Watch C? 

15 A Watch Type C, "In situations such as in restricted 

16 waters with clear visibility and high density traffic or 

17 when entering or leaving a port with clear visibility, 

18 regard 1 ess of traffic." And then it goes on to state what 

19 the bridge complement should be. 

20 Q What does it say about what the bridge complement 

21 should be? 

22 A "Supplementary personnel are necessary so that 

23 there are two officers on the bridge with a lookout 

24 posted. " And then it goes on to make a statement about the 

25 automatic pilot. It defines the role of the master and the 
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role of the watch officer. 

Q What is the role of the master in that situation? 

A "The master or senior deck officer is in charge of 

the watch and will coordinate and supervise the overall 

watch organization and the safe navigation of the vessel." 

Q What about the watch stander? 

A The role of the watch officer is, "To assist the 

master or the senior deck officer by performing the duties 

outlined below. Primary emphasis will be placed on 

navigation and communications." 

That would be the watch officer's role? 

Yes. 

Q 

A 

Q Now what about the lookout? On this particular 

evening, the lookout was Maureen Jones, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And she was out where? 

A On the starboard bridge wing. 

Q When you encounter ice, where is the best place 

for the person who's out on watch, the lookout, to be under 

the right circumstances? 

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I'll object to that. I 

don't even see the relevance in that, his opinion as to 

where he thinks the best position is. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: The question is difficult for me 

to understand. The objection as to relevance is 
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overruled. But rephrase your question to make it more 

2 understandable. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q Where is it easiest to see ice from on this ship, 

the bow or the bridge? 

A It depends if you're talking about daylight or 

night. At nighttime, the night that we're talking about, 

as far forward as possible, that being the bow. But I 

really doubt that, in my opinion, that that would have been 

of really great assistance to the watch officer. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Do you remember talking to the NTSB about this? 

I haven't --

Do you remember being asked where would you have 

14 preferred her to have been? 

15 A I be 1 i eve forward. 

16 Q When you passed Busby Island and took a fix, how 

17 far away from Busby Island were you? 

18 A Approximately a mile. 

19 Q Do you remember writing down that you were inside 

20 that, a mile, within less than a mile of Busby Island? 

21 A I believe that the range was 1.1. 

22 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: While you're up here, would you 

23 come up here a minute, Mr. Madson, please? 

24 (The following was said at the bench.) 

25 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: I know you're not intending to, 
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sometimes. 

MR. MADSON: (Inaudible.) 
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JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Chalos, would you step up, 

please? 

MR. CHALOS: Yes, sir. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: It sounds like you're building a 

nest over there and (inaudible). 

Q 

MR. (I naud i b 1 e. ) 

(The following was said in open Court.) 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Now when you and Captain Hazelwood were discussing 

where you would turn at the radar, do you remember which 

radar you were using? 

A The starboard radar. 

0 And how do you look at the radar? Is there a way 

that both people can look at the radar at the same time? 

A Yes. 

Q How does that happen? 

A You're just standing shoulder to shoulder, looking 

at the screen. 

Q You were at the starboard radar? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Would you point out to the jury where this thing 

is right here? 
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A This is for daytime. It shields the sunlight so 

2 you can referring to this shield, that's off at 

3 n i g h t t i me . 

4 Q That's off at nighttime. 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q So you were able to point that -- he was able to 

7 point to a position, is that right? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q How important is it to know the capability of the 

1 o peop 1 e that are working under you? 

11 A It's very important. 

12 Q Are you confident that you heard the first time 

13 the Exxon Va 1 de z hit, made contact with the ground that 

14 morning? 

15 A Could you 

16 Q Okay. Do you feel confident that you heard the 

17 first time the Exxon Va 1 dez struck a part of B 1 i gh Reef? 

18 ! A Yes. 

19 Q And that was when you were on the phone. 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q And would you describe to the jury how fast the 

22 vessel started turning at that point? Did it increase the 

23 rate of its turn or did it decrease the rate of its turn 

24 after striking Bligh Reef? 

25 A I believe it decreased the rate of turn. 

' ' . 

~ 
I 
) 
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Q And then, at some point, it became grounded and 

stopped all together. 

A Shortly thereafter. 

Q And did the rate of turn increase or decrease at 

that point? 

A 

Q 

I couldn't say for certain. 

Was the rate of turn, the heading of the ship, 

going as fast prior to the grounding? 

A 

Q 

Was it --

Was the vessel heading turning as rapidly prior to 

the grounding? 

A Well, I think the difference in the rate of turn 

just prior to the grounding and just after the initial 

contact was not that distinguishable to me and I wouldn't 

say that there was a great change in the rate. It 

continued to swing fairly rapidly to the right. To give 

you a reference in terms of speed, of rate of turn, I 

really couldn't do justice to that. 

Q But it was fast enough so that you had a concern 

that the aft of the ship might be punctured. 

A Yes. 

Q And you took very quick actions after the 

grounding occurred to counter rudder. 

A Yes, that was -- you know, we're talking in terms 

of split seconds. The series of jolts-- I knew we were 
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going aground. I didn't know where, on the reef, we were 

at that time. I suspected that we were on the very 

northern edge of it, but it didn't -- I didn't think that 

we were going to come off the reef, that was the sense that 

I had. And my concern was that the rate of turn, the 

motion of the vessel was going to carry us, carry the aft 

end of the vessel into the rocks and very well hole the 

engine room. 

Q From the captain's quarters -- is there a radar in 

the captain's quarters? 

A No. 

0 Are there any rudder control indicators in the 

captain's quarters? 

A Not in his office. No, I don't think that there 

is anything like that. 

0 Are there any gyro repeaters in the captain's 

quarters? 

A No. 

Q Are there any doppler systems in the captain's 

quarters? 

A No. 

Q Does he normally keep the chart of the voyage laid 

out in his quarters? 

A Well, the voyage charts would be up on the bridge. 

0 And is there any television system where he's able 
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appropriate turns from his quarters? 

A No. 

Q Could you see the reef, itself, when you were 

looking at the radar? 

A No, the reef is submerged. 
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Q You indicated that there were no other equipment 

on Bligh Reef-- on the Exxon Valdez that would have helped 

to avoid this incident. 

A No. You mean additional equipment that may have 

prevented this? 

Q Yes. 

A 

Q 

I can't think of any. 

And you also said that it's your belief that if 

you had turned when you instructed that you would have 

avoided this grounding. 

A 

0 

Correct. 

If Captain Hazelwood had been on the bridge during 

this maneuver, would you have avoided the grounding? 

A Well, I can't say yes or no. I would assume that 

another person up there would have caught any errors that 

were made, the workload divided more evenly. 

Q 

A 

Q 

That's the purpose of having another person on. 

Yes. 

Thank you, I have nothing further. 
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3 Q Mr. Cousins, you said you can't say whether it 

4 would have made any difference if Captain Hazelwood had 

5 been on the bridge or not because you don't know if he 

6 would have been looking out a window or maybe in the chart 

7 room or doing something else. 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

It would be basically sheer speculation to say now 

10 what could or could not have happened, had he been up 

11 there. 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q Going back to Mr. Cole's earlier questions, you 

14 indicated you did not rely on the VTC or the VTS system to 

15 tell you where you are. It's not an aid to navigation, is 

16 it 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

No. 

-- in the sense that --

19 A No. 

20 Q But on the other hand, have you ever been on a 

21 vessel in Prince William Sound where it's strayed out of 

22 the traffic separation zone and has been notified by VTC to 

23 correct the course or get back into the lane? 

24 A No, I've been on a vesse 1 that -- where we were 

25 required to give a report in at a certain time. I believe 

there was no pilotage on board. In the course of doing 
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some other things, we were not minutes late, but seconds 

2 late or something, and they called us. 

3 Q So you feel you were at least being watched or 

4 under surveillance or being controlled by the VTC system? 

5 A Yes, I knew that we weren't being watched as far 

6 as what I was just talking about, but --

7 Q How far was that, sir? 

8 A Oh, that was just past the entrance, heading up 

9 into the sound. 

10 Q Now you said the captain during this time, the 

11 captain-- and when I say "period of time," that's the time 

12 you started, just before you executed the maneuver just off 

13 Busby Island, until the grounding was about 15 minutes, 

14 right? 

15 Approximately. 

16 Q It wasn't an hour. 15 minutes. 

17 A An hour, no. 

18 Q And again, sir, with your Coast Guard license, you 

19 are a qualified watch officer to stand watch by yourself, 

20 are you not? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q There's nothing in there that says you have to 

23 have a captain there, present with you when you're on 

24 watch . 
. .. 

25 A Not on the license, no. 
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Q And, of course, captains have other duties just 

besides navigating the vessel, don't they? They have paper 

work, things to do. 

A Yes. 

Q They also have to sleep, don't they? 

A Yes. 

Q Sometimes you're alone on the bridge, you're in 

command of that vessel when you have the conn, right? 

A That's correct. 

Q You said the visibility was good at Busby Island, 

it was beyond two miles, anyway. 

A Beyond two miles is correct. 

Q Now, Mr. Cole asked you a few questions about the 

Exxon operating manual guidelines. They are, in fact, only 

guidelines, are they not? 

A Yes. 

Q And the master determines the watch position, does 

he not? He's given the responsibility to do that? 

A Yes. 

Q At the time you had discussions with Captain 

Hazelwood about the maneuver that was going to occur, when 

you were going to go around the ice, you didn't tell 

Captain Hazelwood, "Well, gosh, Captain, this is ... , .... I 

think it's Watch Condition C, and not A, and therefore I 

want somebody else up here," right? 
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A That's correct, there was no discussion about 

watch type. 

Q Under Watch Condition Type C -- if you'll turn to 

page 51 of the manual, it says for Watch Type C, in 

situations such as, " ... in restricted waters with clear 

visibility and high density traffic or when entering or 

leaving port with clear visibility, regardless of 

traffic.·· You said you believed, at the time, you were in 

restricted waters, right? 

A 

Q 

miles? 

A 

Q 

A 

0 

Correct. 

Was visibility clear? Could you see beyond two 

Beyond two miles. 

There was no high density traffic, was there? 

No. 

Are you familiar with what's called, then, Watch 

Condition A? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Under Watch Condition A, 1n open waters, that is 

clear visibility, regardless of traffic. 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

That means that no matter how many ships or other 

vessels are around 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

--by "traffic," right? 

A Yes. 
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Q Or in restricted waters with clear visibility and 

2 little or no traffic 

3 

4 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

-- right? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Would you agree, sir, there's some room for 

7 interpretation as to whether it's A or C? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

Certainly, yes. 

Mr. Cole asked you also about seeing ice when 

you're on the bow, as a lookout on the bow of the vessel, 

as opposed to the bridge. If you're traveling let's say at 

11.7 knots or almost 12 knots on the Exxon Valdez and 

13 i someone's in the bow at night, it's very dark, how much 

14 distance, how far do you think they could see ice ahead of 

15 them? 

16 A I have no good estimate. I mean we were 

17 essentially skirting ice and no one could make visual 

18 contact with the ice unt i 1 we were aground and had some 

19 1 i ghts on and shined it out into the water. 

20 Q The ice would be very difficult to see at best, 

21 right, visually? 

22 A Yes, without any light. 

23 Q And while you're on the bridge wing, you're much 

24 higher, you're about 80 feet or thereabouts above the water 

25 1 eve 1? 
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A Yes, approximately. 

Q And while you can't see, let's say you're not as 

close to the actual ice if you were going into ice, you 

could still see ahead. 

A Yes. 

Q The limit of your visibility is the extent of I 

suppose your eyesight and the light conditions. 

A Yes. The only restriction, of course, is, you 

know, whatever you can't see, well, what I'd call the 

shadow of the bow. 

Q So if someone were up in the bow and, suddenly, 

there was a chunk of ice ahead, by the time they got on 

their radio and contacted the bridge, do you think there's 

anything you could do about maneuvering around? 

A No, not if it was close. 

Q And isn't it true, Mr. Cousins, the whole idea was 

not to go through the ice, but to go around the ice? 

A Yes. 

Q And while a person is up there on the bow, they're 

in a very exposed condition, are they not? 

A Yes. 

Q They're all by themselves and almost, you know, 

some 800 feet maybe away. 

A Yes. 

Q To your knowledge, bow lookouts have been washed 



r 
i 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

88 

overboard or injured or --

A Well, I have been on other vessels that have 

experienced severe weather a substantial distance up in the 

sound and one of the reasons that oftentimes we bring the 

lookout back is in anticipation of foul weather, for the 

protection of the individual, bring them back where we know 

they're safe. 

Q Thank you, sir, I don't have any other questions. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Would Counsel approach the 

bench, please? Mr. Cole. 

(The following was said at the bench.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Are either one of you going to 

explore whether he had, whether he knew that Captain 

Hazelwood had knowledge of his lack of pilotage? 

MR. I'm not. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, I'm not going to 

( i naud i b 1 e) . 

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q The work that a master has, the paper work you 

talked about, that can be done while the tanker is in 

Valdez, can't it? 

A I suppose it depends on what the paper work 

consisted of. If it was relating to the load or something 

that transpired while we were in port, you know, obviously 
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he couldn't do it in port. 

Q Could you do it out at sea, once you got past 

Hinchinbrook? 

A Perhaps, yes. 

Q You have four days to get to San Francisco, is 

that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Where do you keep your licenses? 

A There's a license rack onE Deck of the Valdez. 

Q And all of the crew members' licenses are kept 

right there. 

A Yes. 

Q And would Captain Hazelwood have known that he was 

the only one who had pilotage--

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I object to the leading 

question. It's also beyond the scope of my recross. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: I'm going to let this be opened 

and I'll let you recross on this. You can recall the 

witness for that purpose. And the leading question is 

sustained. Please rephrase your question. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q How would the captain have been aware of who had 

pilotage endorsement on the tanker? 

A Typically, the individual would inform the master 

that he had pilotage cr certainly that information would 
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9 

have bee~ perhaps transmitted by fleet manning as to who 

they ware sending and what qualifications they had. 

Q Did you ever tell Captain Hazelwood that you had 

pilotage endorsement for that area? 

A No. 

Q 

MR. COLE: I have nothing further. 

FURTHER RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

Did Captain Hazelwood have the pilotage 

10 endorsement for that area, to your knowledge? 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Was he on board during that transit? 

1? A Yes. 

14 Q Now, sir, we talked about your knowledge of the 

15 area before and what a pi 1 otage endorsement rea 1 1 y is. I 

16 think you told the jury that it's essentially your 

17 know 1 edge, it's a test of your know 1 edge of the chart, 

18 right? 

19 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

A 

Not exclusively, but that would be part of it. 

But knowing where navigational hazards are. 

Yes. 

22 Q In Prince William Sound, would you agree that 

23 probably that knowledge would include where Bligh Reef is? 

24 A Ce rta i n 1 y . 

25 Q Busby Is 1 and? 

A Yes. 
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Q Rocky Point? 

A Yes. 

Q Hinchinbrook? 

A Yes. 

Q The area, in general? 

A Correct. 

Q In other words, it would satisfy the Coast Guard 

that you knew the area well enough to know that there are 

certain navigational hazards in that particular location --

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

-- and that you should take steps to avoid them. 

Right. 

And you already knew that, correct? 

Yes. 

Thank you, I don't have any other questions. 

MR. COLE: Nothing further. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: May the witness be excused from 

further participation? 

MR. COLE: Yes. 

MR. MADSON: May he be excused? Yes, Your Honor. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: You're excused from further 

participation in this case. You may call your next 

witness. 

MR. COLE: At this time, Your Honor, we would call 

Maureen Jones. 
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Whereupon, 

MAUREEN L. JONES 

having been called as a witness by Counsel for the State, 

and having been duly sworn by the Clerk, was examined and 

testified as follows: 

THE CLERK: Ma'am, would you please state your 

full name and spell your last name? 

THE WITNESS: Maureen Louise Jones, J-o-n-e-s. 

THE CLERK: And your current mailing address: 

THE WITNESS: 2840 South College Road, Suite 422, 

Wilmington, North Carolina 28412. 

Q 

THE CLERK: And your current occupation? 

THE WITNESS: Merchant marine. 

THE CLERK: Thank you. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLE: 

Ms. Jones, can you tell the jury how long you've 

worked in the maritime industry? 

A Since June of 1987. 

Q Did you go to school before entering the merchant 

21 marine industry? 

22 A Yes, I did. 

23 Q Where did you go to school? 

24 A Maine Maritime Academy. 

25 Q And would you tell the jury what type of school 
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that is 

2 A It's a maritime academy. You go, you either have 

3 the option of going into marine engineering or nautical 

4 science as a major. 

5 Q Which did you choose? 

6 A Nautical science. 

7 Q How long did it take -- did you graduate from 

8 there? 

9 A Yes. 

10 I Q How long did that take? 

11 A It's a four-year -- you graduate with a bachelor's 

12 degree. 

13 Q And did you get any practical experience during 

14 that time? 

15 A Yes, sailed out three times on other-- three 

16 different companies and I made two two-month school 

17 cruises. 

18 Q And when you come out of that school, what license 

19 do you qualify for? 

20 A Third mate's license. 

21 Q Did you get your third mate's license, then, 

22 afterwards? 

23 A Yes, I did. 

24 Q When did you take your first job, then? That 

25 would have been 1987? 
r -

A Yes. 
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Q Who was that with? 

A Sun Transport. 

Q When did you start to work for Exxon? 

A In September of 1987. 

Q And what position did you -- were you given when 

you were hired on by Exxon? 

A Able bodied seaman. 

Q When were you assigned to the Exxon Valdez? 

A The first time I was assigned there was in 

December of 1987. 

Q So shortly after being hired by Exxon. 

A Yes. 

Q And did you work your assignment continually on 

the Exxon Valdez? 

A No, I didn't. 

Q Would you tell the jury a little bit about what 

jobs you had after December of 1987? 

A Well, after I got off the Valdez in February of 

1988, I got on a ship on the East Coast, a chemical 

carrier, and I did two consecutive tours on there. 

Q How long is a tour? 

A Usually, two months. 

Q And then what were you assigned to after that? 

A The Exxon Valdez. 

Q Did you always work as an AB? 
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A No, I was a third mate on the Exxon Charleston on 

the East Coast. 

Q How many trips -- can you tell the jury how many 

trips you would have taken in and out of Prince William 

Sound on an Exxon vessel? 

A Right now, how many have I taken? 

Q Well, up until March of 1989. 

A Approximately five. 

Q And how many of those would you have been on the 

bridge during the time that the vessel --

A I don't recall. 

Q Do you think it was all five times or a couple of 

them? 

A No, it wouldn't be all five. 

Q When you were assigned to the Exxon Valdez in 

1989, when did you come aboard; when did you start your 

assignment? 

A I believe it was February 5th. 

Q Did you have a partner, an AB partner. 

A At the time, yes. 

Q Who was that? 

A I got on watch with Bob Kagan. 

Q And who was the mate that you worked under? 

A Initially, it was Nathan Carr and, later, it was 

Lloyd LeCain. 
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Q What shift did you work? 

A 12:00 to 4:00. 

Q Do you remember arriving in Valdez on March -- the 

late evening of March 22d, 1989? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

You would have worked the 12:00 to 4:00 shift. Do 

you remember what you did after the Exxon Valdez arrived in 

port? 

A Well, we arrived prior to the 12:00 to 4:00 

watch. We arrived and we just got out fast, just before 

the 12:00 to 4:00 watch, so I was out on dock before and 

then, during watch, I started on discharging ballast. 

Q And you just helped monitor that procedure. 

A Yes, and watched the lines. 

Q After you got off duty that morning, when did you 

go bacv on duty the next day or that I guess it was 

that, the 23d. When did you go back on duty on the 23d? 

18 A After we were at the dock? 

Right. 19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 day? 

25 A 

It would be noon the next day. 

Did you go into town that day? 

No, I did not. 

What did you do during the afternoon shift that 

Well, the best I can recall, just monitored the 
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cargo and the lines again. 

2 Q Anything out of the ordinary occur during that 

3 time? 

4 A No. 

5 Q When did you get off in the afternoon? 

6 A At 4:00 o'clock. 

7 Q When would you have been called back that evening? 

8 A I believe it was some time around 7:30 that they 

9 called standby again. 

10 Q What were your duties then when you were called up 

11 
I at 7: 30? 

12 A To go out on deck and secure the gear. It's 

13 usually rough in the wintertime. We bring all the fire 

14 hoses and all the leg frames, etcetera. We store them 

15 inside so they don't get washed overboard in the sea. 

16 Q Did you have a position during the unloading 

17 process at either the bow or the aft of the vessel? 

18 
A During the unloading process? 

19 Q During the undocking. 

20 A During the undocking process, yes, I was on the 

21 stern. 

22 Q And after the vessel was away that evening, where 

23 did you go? 

24 A After we got clear of the dock and we got done on 

25 deck, I went back to my room. 
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Q What did you do when you were at your room? 

I took a nap. A 

Q How do you -- how do shift changes occur? How are 

you notified that your shift is coming up? 

A They call us 20 minutes after the hour prior to 

going out. 

Q Did that happen in this case? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

Were you called? What time would that have been? 

At 20 after 11:00. 

Q When did you reach -- where did you go after --

what did you do after being called? 

A Well, I brushed my teeth, etcetera, and put my 

clothes on, bundled up and went out to take the lookout 

position. 

Q Where did you go toward, where did you go to? 

A Well, initially, I was headed up to the bow, but 

as I stepped out of my room, the AB that I was to relieve 

was standing there and told me that we were shifting the 

lookout to the bridge wing. 

Where did you go then? 

Directly to the bridge. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

What time would you have made it up to the bridge? 

I wasn't watching my watch, but as a rule, I leave 

25 my room approximate 1 y 15 minutes before the hour, at the 
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latest, and head right up, so it was probably approximately 

47 minutes after the hour. 

Q 

A 

When you got up there, who was there? 

When I got to the bridge, Jack Claar was on the 

helm and the captain and Greg Cousins. 

Q What did you do, once you entered the chart room, 

where did you go? 

A 

Q 

there? 

I proceeded out to the bridge wing. 

Did you check the charts at all before going out 

A I don't recall. I know that, that evening, I 

looked at the chart and the radar and I don't recall if it 

was before I went on watch or after I had been on watch for 

some time. 

Q Where would you have gone, then, after going 

through the bridge? 

A Well, I walked up on the port side, around the 

curtains, behind the chart table and I saw that it was 

closed, so I proceeded forward to the console, over to the 

starboard bridge wing. 

Q Do you happen to recognize that diagram at all? 

Does that look familiar? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Would you show the jury with this pointer how you 

came in and where you went to? 
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A I came up the stairs and through the passageway 

right there and to the bridge and, from behind the chart 

table, I walked over to the port side. 

Q And then where did you go? 

A And then I walked up and forward, above this 

console, and across and out to the starboard bridge wing. 

Q Where was the captain? 

A He was right about there. 

Q What was he doing? 

A He and Greg appeared to be peering out the window, 

keeping a lookout. 

Q Were they leaning or standing there? 

A They were standing. I didn't study them when I 

walked up. 

Q Did you report or did you just go straight out on 

the bridge or out on the wing? 

A No, they saw me coming. They knew I was there. 

There was some casual conversation as I walked out and then 

I went right out to the bridge wing. 

Q And that diagram, the model that's in front of 

you, would you have gone all the way out on the starboard 

wing? 

A Yes, I was all the way out to the outboard edge. 

Q Out by where the is placed. 

A Yes, even further outboard than that, all the way 
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to the end. 

Did you take a radio out with you? 2 

3 

Q 

A I don' t reca 11 . I don't imagine I had one. I 

4 imagine Paul would have secured it when he came back from 

5 -- this is just the usual practice when you come up from 

6 the bow because you don't need a radio when you're on the 

7 bridge wing. You report directly; you don't radio your 

8 reports. 

9 Q While you were out on the wing, the starboard 

10 wing, do you remember seeing any lights? 

11 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

Would you describe for the jury what you saw? 

The one light, the light that came up while I was 

14 out there, I saw a light, a red flashing light on the 

15 starboard bow. 

16 

17 

18 

Q 

A 

Q 

How often was it flashing? 

Every four seconds. 

And can you give the jury an idea of how long 

19 after you got out on the starboard wing, how 1 ong 

20 afterwards it took for you to see this light? 

21 A It was shortly after, but I have no idea of the 

22 time. I didn't check my watch when I went and reported the 

23 1 i ght. 

24 Q What did you do after seeing the light? 

~ A I went in and reported it. 
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Q Did it cause you any concern that you had a red 

light on your starboard side? 

A No. 

Q And when you got into the -- onto the bridge, 

where did you go? 

A When I stepped into the bridge, I didn't see Greg 

or the captain where they were when I first initially went 

to the bridge and I just made a quick check. I didn't see 

anyone standing, you know, the mate or the captain, 

forward. 

Q Made a check of where, where were you looking? 

A Basically, just to see if someone was there, you 

know, someone to report the light to. And I didn't see 

anyone just at a quick glance and so I went back behind the 

curtain. 

Q Did you see who was at the helm? 

A I imagine I did. I didn't, you know, directly 

point it out. 

Q Do you remember who was at the helm? 

A I didn't look and verify that it was Bob Kagan, 

but I imagine that Bob Kagan was up there. You know, we 

had relieved the watch. 

Q Where did you go then? 

A I went back behind the curtain to-- well, I 

pulled the curtain aside. 
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Q Can you point for the jury where you went? 

A Right here. This is the curtain, basically, and I 

just pulled it aside and saw Greg back there. 

Q What did you tell him? 

A I said we had a flashing red light broad on the 

starboard bow, flashing every five seconds. 

Q I thought you said that it was flashing every four 

seconds. 

A Yes, when I initially reported the light, I said 

five seconds. Then I went back out to the bridge wing and 

after I had time to observe it for a longer period, I 

realized it was every four seconds and I came back in and 

corrected my report. 

0 Would you explain to the jury what you meant by 

"broad on the starboard side"? 

A Board on the starboard bow is --

0 Or bow. 

A 45 degrees, approximately, from the center line 

towards the starboard side of the ship. 

0 What's the center line? 

A The middle of the ship. 

Q Did you -- when you walked back out on the bridge, 

how far did you go -- when you walked back out on the wing, 

how far did you go out on the wing? 

A I imagine right back where I came from, all the 
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way up. 

Q Do you remember? 

A I know it was to the outboard edge. 

Q Do you remember looking back and seeing Busby 

Light at all? 

A I remember there were some lights astern of us or 

abeam. I didn't check them out and see exactly what lights 

they were. I remember faintly having seen some lights, 

though. 

Q Do you remember whether they were green or red? 

A No. 

Q Are you familiar with what a red sector is? 

A Yes. 

Q What does that mean? 

A A light has a certain area they have and on the 

chart, they have the certain degrees from where you are 

looking at the light from. And if you are having-- from 

this bearing, this certain bearing on the light, you see 1t 

red. If you are not in that area, that bearing, you see a 

white sector, a white light. 

(Tape changed to C-3618.) 

Q What's a red sector mean as far as your ship is 

concerned? Does that cause you any concern? 

A It depends on the light. 

Q If you are in a red sector, what would the lights 
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I don't understand what you're asking. 

Now how long -- did the ship get grounded then, 

shortly thereafter you walked out on the bridge wing? 

A The second time? 

Q 

MR. CHALOS: Objection, Your Honor, no foundation. 

MR. COLE: I'll ask the question. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Did you walk out on the starboard wing then, after 

10 that? 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

After my second report, yes. 

How long -- did you stay inside the bridge for 

13 very long after reporting that to Mr. Cousins, what you had 

14 reported? 

15 

10 

17 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

Neither time, no, I didn't. 

And the second time you reported to Mr. Cousins, 

you told him it was flashing every five seconds? 

A 

Q 

Every four seconds. 

Four seconds. How long after you were out on the 

20 starboard wing did the grounding occur? 

21 A I wasn't looking at my watch at the time, I don't 

22 know. I don't know what time it was when I reported. 

23 Q Do you have any estimate of how long you were out? 

24 A After the second report. I'll give you a guess. 

25 Less than five minutes before we started to turn, that's 
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just a guess. 

Q Did you see whether or not -- did you notice 

whether or not the vessel was turning at any time prior to 

the grounding? 

A 

Q 

turn? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And was it a rapid turn or was it a not rapid 

It seemed to be a slow turn. 

When you went in to talk to Mr. Cousins the second 

time, did you see Captain Hazelwood there? 

A I didn't look around for anyone. I just came in, 

stated the fact that it was corrected and I report 

0 

A 

Q 

Did you see Captain Hazelwood in there? 

No, I did not. 

How soon before the ship grounded did the ship 

start to turn to the starboard side? Do you have any 

concept of how long after the ship began to turn that it 

grounded-~ 

A That would be a guess again, too, because I wasn't 

looking at my watch. It was-- I'll give you an estimate 

of one minute. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Excuse me, I can barely hear 

you. We've got you turned up as high as we can, so if you 

move the microphone a little higher, it might help. Speak 

up a little more loudly, if you can. Thanks. 
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BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

2 Q Would you describe for the jury what you heard or 

3 what you felt when you first realized that you had hit 

4 something? 

5 A Initially, I heard a scraping sound and I saw a 

6 type of aura around the bow of the ship and then I felt the 

7 vessel jerking slightly. 

8 Q How loud was the scraping sound? 

9 A It was quite loud. 

10 Q Do you know what the aura was that you saw on the 

11 bow? 

12 A No. 

13 Q Would you describe that, I mean give the jury an 

14 idea of what you saw? Was there 1 i ghts around or 

15 A I don't know if it was from the water splashing up 

16 and maybe a reflection from the lights or they're talking 

17 maybe it was phosphorescence, studying that now about maybe 

18 ' it's heat induced. I don't know what it was caused by, I 

19 just saw a type of greenish glow. 

20 Q How long -- did the scraping sound -- where did it 

21 originate from? 

22 A The bow. 

23 Q And did it move down the ship at all? 

24 A Not that I could determine. 

Q No. How long did the jerking go on, the jerking 
... 

25 
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feeling you had? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

That's very hard to say. 

Do you have any kind of an estimate? 

No. 

How long after you first heard the scraping sounds 

before the vessel came to a halt? 

A You have to understand, at this point in time, I 

wasn't looking at my watch. I will give you a guess that 

the whole process took less than 60 seconds. That's a 

guess, an estimate, again. 

Q 

A 

Q 

But it wasn't just an immediate -­

No. 

Do you remember there being any breaks in between 

at all during this time, for a short period, the ship 

sailed without you hearing that or feeling the bumps? 

A No, it seemed-- to the best that I can recollect, 

it was a continuous process. 

Q 

halt? 

A 

What did you do then after the ship came to a 

I looked around and, from the shore, I saw that --

when I seen where we stopped, it looked like we were dead 

in the water and I walked in to the bridge, the main area 

bridge. 

Q 

A 

Was the vessel listing at all? 

Not that I can recall. 
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Q Would you explain to the jury what "listing" 

means? 

A It's a actually a tilt on the vessel. A list, you 

either have so many degrees to the port, to the starboard, 

and it is the degrees that you're either down to one side 

or the other of the vessel. It can turn or rock on either 

side. 

Q You couldn't feel any kind of a list. 

A Immediately, no. 

Q When you got into the bridge, who was there then? 

Who did you see? 

A When I walked onto the bridge, who I saw 

immediately was Greg and Bob Kagan. 

Q What was Greg doing? 

A I couldn't tell you. 

Q Do you remember seeing him making any phone calls? 

A Yes. 

Q When would that have been? 

A Directly after, I believe. 

Q Where was Mr. Kagan? 

A Behind the wheel. 

Q What did you do then? 

A The next thing I recall happening is we turned on 

this-- well, I walked out on the port bridge wing. 

Q Did you walk out there with anyone else? 
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A 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, Greg Cousins. I was behind him. 

Were the lights on or off? 

I believe they were off at the time. 
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What happened then? What did you do out there? 

Evaluated the situation, looked. 

How long would you have been out on the bridge? 

I don't know, not a long period. 

Did you look on the side to see if there was any 

oil coming out? 

A At that time, no. 

Q Where did you go then after that? 

A I believe back onto the bridge. 

Q And what happened when you got on the bridge, came 

back on the bridge? 

A Well, shortly after that, we turned on the 

spotlights and we were looking in the water for oil after 

that. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Where were you looking from? 

The bridge wing. 

Which bridge wing, starboard or port? 

I believe I walked out on both of them. 

Did Captain Hazelwood walk out on the port bridge 

wing when you and Mr. Cousins were out there? 

A 

Q 

I don't remember. 

When do you first remember seeing Captain 
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Hazelwood on the bridge after the grounding? 

2 A I don't know, I wasn't looking at my watch again. 

3 It was shortly thereafter. 

4 Q Shortly thereafter, what do you mean? Was it 

5 before you went out on the port bridge wing or was it after 

6 that or 

7 A It was after, I believe after the first time I 

8 walked out. Possibly when I came back onto the bridge, he 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

was right there. 

Q What did you do then, after going out on both 

bridges, both wings? 

A I stayed right up there on the bridge. 

Q 

A 

0 

Did you ever leave the bridge? 

Later on, yes. 

When was that? 

A I don't know, again. You know, all this time, I 

But I went down to the deck wasn't looking at my watch. 

18 that we 1 i ve on and I ta 1 ked to a few peop 1 e. 

19 

20 

21 

Q 

A 

Q 

Why did you go down there? 

To wake them up. 

Did you wake up everybody in the 

22 A No, Greg had gone down before me and he mentioned 

23 he had talked to a few people and I went down and talked to 

24 a few different ones. 

25 Q Did you make sure that you woke everyone up or did 
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you know that everyone was woken up? 

to 

A 

Q 

A 

and 

Q 

people? 

A 

that we 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I 

running? 

A 

you. 

Q 

A 

Did I make sure we woke everyone up? 

Is there any way that you checked to make sure -­

Well, Greg told me some people that he had talked 

knew not to go and talk with them. 

What did you do after you went down and woke some 

What did you tell the people you woke? 

I believe that we had had an accident, you know, 

were aground? 

Is that it? 

To the best that I can recall, yes. 

Where did you go after giving these warnings? 

Back to the bridge. 

What was going on when you got up to the bridge? 

I don't remember. 

Well, were there-- were the engines still 

I didn't look at the color graph, I couldn't tell 

Were there any orders being given? 

Later on, yes. 

Q Well, what about this time when you got up on the 

bridge, was there anything being done up there? 

A I don't recall exactly what was going on when I 

returned to the bridge, no. There was some contacts made 
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with Vessel Traffic Service, letting them know at the time 

where we were, et cetera. 

MR. COLE: Judge, would this be a good time to 

stop? 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Yes, sir. We'll take our lunch 

6 break, ladies and gentlemen, until about 1:15. Don't 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 B I 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

. 2~ 

discuss this case among yourselves or with any other person 

and don't form or express any opinions. See you back then. 

recess. 

taken. ) 

THE CLERK: Please rise. This Court stands at 

(Whereupon, the jury leaves the courtroom.) 

(Whereupon, at 11:58 a.m., a luncheon recess was 
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AFTERNOON SESSION 

(Whereupon, at 1:19 p.m., proceedings resumed.) 

(Whereupon, the jury enters the courtroom.) 

THE CLERK: This Court now resumes in session. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Cole. 

MR. COLE: Thank you, Your Honor. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Ms. Jones, I neglected to ask you one thing about 

when you came in from the starboard wing the second time 

after noticing the light was flashing every four seconds 

do you remember that? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

react? 

Yes. 

Where was Mr. Cousins at that time? 

He was standing just behind the port radar. 

Where was Mr. Kagan? 

I assume behind the wheel. 

I didn't hear you. 

Behind the wheel. 

And when you told Mr. Cousins this, how did he 

A In the usual manner, just repeated what I said, 

acknowledged my report. 

Q Now going back to where we left off then, you had 

gone down and informed several people of the grounding and 

you came back up on the bridge at some point, is that 
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Q 
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1 1 5 

Correct. 

Who was up on the bridge at that time, when you 

A I assume, I don't remember exactly for sure, 

probably the captain and Bob Kagan and Greg Cousins. 

Q And were any instructions about steering the ship 

8 being given at that time? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

I don't know. 

At some point, however -- where did you go, then, 

after you came up on the bridge? 

A I remained on the bridge. 

Q How long did you remain on the bridge? 

A Until about 2:30 and then I returned back to it 

after awhile. 

Q I can't hear you. 

17 A Then I returned back after that. I was gone for a 

18 short period and then I went back to the bridge. 

19 Q Well, let's talk about the time from when you came 

20 up to the bridge after talking to people and 2:30, when you 

21 left the bridge. Where were you during that time on the 

22 bridge? 

23 A Either on the bridge wing or right inside the 

24 bridge area. 

25 Q And what was happening on the bridge during that 
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time? 

A There was a couple of phone calls made, talking on 

the radio to the commander of the port and there were some 

engine maneuvers. 

Q Tell the jury what those engine maneuvers that you 

saw what were they? 

A They consisted of dead slow ahead, slow ahead, 

half ahead and full ahead and different rudder orders. 

Q What kind of rudder orders were given? 

A Initially, I believe a number, a course number was 

given. Then, after that, I believe there was -- degrees 

rudder was just put on. 

Q Why was that; what was the purpose of those rudder 

orders? 

A I would not know. 

0 Well, have you ever spoken with anybody about the 

purpose of those rudder orders? 

A No one ever told me what was being done at the 

time. 

Q Have you ever expressed -- have you ever told 

anyone else what the purpose of what those rudder orders 

were? 

A I only would assume. I would never have been told 

by the person who was giving the commands what was the 

purpose of them. 
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Q Are you saying that you didn't have any idea of 

what the captain was trying to do while you were up on the 

bridge? 

A I'm saying I was never told by anyone what he was 

5 doing. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

What did you think he was doing? 

What did I think at the time? 

Yes. 

I assumed he was trying to get the vessel off, but 

10 that was just what I thought. I had never been told that 

11 

12 

13 

14 

by anyone. 

Q 

A 

Q 

You told a number of people that, though, correct? 

Yes, I've mentioned it before. 

You testified before the NTSB and you told them, 

15 in essence, that he was trying to get it off the reef. 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

What I thought he was doing, yes. 

And you talked with the troopers immediately after 

18 this incident occurred, correct? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to 

A 

Q 

get 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Correct. 

And you told them that you thought he was trying 

it off the reef. 

That's what I thought. 

And you also talked to the FBI. 

Correct. 

And you told them, also. 

Correct. 
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Q Now what did you do after -- why did you leave the 

2 bridge at 2:30? 

3 A I went down to rig the pilot ladder for people 

4 boarding the vessel. 

5 Q When -- who were the people that were going to 

6 board the vessel? 

7 A The Coast Guard. 

8 0 When did you realize that the Coast Guard was 

9 coming out to the vessel? 

10 A I believe I probably heard it on the radio; they 

11 said they're on their way out. 

12 0 And when you returned to the bridge, what were 

13 your responsibilities until you went off at 4:00 o'clock? 

14 A After we rigged the pilot ladder, I just remained 

15 on the bridge. 

16 0 Did you take the helm at any point? 

17 A No, I did not. 

18 Q Do you remember when the anchor was dropped? 

19 A I couldn't give you a time. I remember Mr. LeCain 

20 going out and doing it. 

21 Q Would it have been before or after the Coast Guard 

22 arrived? 

23 A I believe it was before. 

24 Q Now what was the policy on board Exxon tankers at 

25 that time as far as possession of alcohol? 
~ 

! 
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A They didn't allow it on board. 

I can't hear you. 

They didn't allow it on board. 

What were the consequences? 

I assume you would be fired. 

11 9 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q And how about for alcohol use on board the Exxon 

7 Valdez? 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

It was not allowed. 

Did you have any alcohol on board the Exxon Valdez 

10 that evening or morning? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

were 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

/J, 

Q 

No, I did not.? 

Are you aware of any alcohol being on board? 

No. 

How many captains did you serve with while 

assigned to the Exxon Valdez? 

Two. 

Who was the -- who were those two people? 

Captain Hazelwood and Captain Stalzer. 

you 

MR. COLE: I have nothing further, Your Honor. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CHALOS: 

Good afternoon, Ms. Jones. You hold a third 

23 mate's license, is that correct? 

24 

'15 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

You're qualified as a third mate? 
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A Yes. 

Q And you served as a third mate, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q You stood third mate watches on the Exxon 

Charleston, you said? 

A 

Q 

you not? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

You've sailed with Captain Hazelwood before, have 

Yes, I have. 

That was in December 1987 and January of 1988? 

Correct, and a little bit into February. 

How long was that tour of duty? 

Just a little over two months, I believe. 

That was on the Exxon Valdez? 

Correct. 

Q Now on the evening of March 23d, what were you 

doing at about 8:00 p.m.? 

A I was out on decK, securing fire hoses. 

Q Did you see the captain come on board right around 

that time? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Could you tell the jury what you saw? 

A I saw the radio officer and the chief engineer 

come on board with pizzas and the captain approximately ten 

feet behind them also coming on board. 
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Q Where were you standing in relation to the 

gangway? 

A I was back by the house, just alongside the house 

on the port side. 

Q 

A 

Q 

About 50 or 60 feet away from the gangway? 

Approximately. 

Did you have an opportunity to observe Captain 

8 Hazelwood coming on board? 

9 A I saw him walk probably for about 40 feet or so. 

10 I didn't watch him come right directly on board, but I saw 

11 him as he was coming into the house, going into the house. 

12 Q Did you notice anything unusual about his manner 

13 of walking? 

14 A No. 

15 

16 

]7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

0 

t. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Did he appear to you to have staggered? 

No. 

Swayed? 

No. 

Were his movements steady? 

Yes. 

Did you speak to Captain Hazelwood? 

Yes, I did. 

How close were you to him? 

Just right within speaking distance. 

A couple of feet? 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

Did you smell any alcohol on his breath? 

No, I did not. 

Were his eyes watery? 

No. 
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Did he appear to you to be impaired in any way? 

No. 

What did you discuss? 

I asked him if he had a good time ashore and he 

showed me his briefcase. I assumed that to mean a business 

trip and I started joking him about having red suspenders 

on or something, that he was, you know, doing a type -- a 

lot of business work, going ashore and being a business 

professional, etcetera. 

Q 

Chalos? 

Q 

quarters? 

A 

Q 

A 

What did he say to you? 

MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Don't answer the question. Mr. 

MR. CHALOS: I'll withdraw it, Your Honor. 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Did you observe the captain going into the living 

Yes. 

Anything unusual about his walk at that time? 

No. 
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Q Was the captain acting normal, as you knew him at 

2 that time? 

3 

4 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Now you finished securing for sea some time around 

5 10:20, 10:30. 

6 A Correct. 

7 Q And then you went back to your room? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Took a nap? 

Yes. 

And then you were awoken at 11:20, is that right? 

Correct. 

And some time around a quarter to 12:00, you 

14 started to go on watch? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

And at that time, you were told by AB Radthe that 

17 your watch had been changed to the bridge wing, instead of 

15 the bow? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

23 1 ookout? 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

Was there anything unusual about that instruction? 

No. 

Have you stood bridge wing watches before as a 

Yes. 

Is it the custom and practice, once you drop a 
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pilot off at Prince William Sound, you move the lookout 

back to the bridge wing? 

A As far as I can remember on the ships I've been 

on, that's basically what it is. You get rid of the pilot 

and you secure the ladder and you secure the anchors and 

you shift to the bridge wing. 

Q Is it your practice when you come on watch to look 

at the charts? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you do that because of your training as a third 

mate? 

A I like to know where I'm at. 

Q Do you have a recollection of looking at the 

charts on this evening? 

A I know I did at one point in time. I don't know 

I don't remember when it was. 

Q Now you said that you came in and looked around 

the front of the bridge and stopped and spoke with the 

captain and Mr. Cousins, do you recall that? 

A Yes. 

Q How close were you to the captain? 

A Within a couple of feet, again. 

Q Did you smel 1 any alcohol at that time? 

A No. 

Q Was this at about 11 :50? 
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A little before 11:50. 

Did the captain appear to you to be in the same 

3 condition as he had been that evening --

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

12 manner? 

13 A 

14 tone. 

15 

16 

17 

12 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

-- earlier that evening? 

Yes. 

Did he appear to you to be in any way impaired? 

No. 

Was his speech slurred? 

No. 

Would you describe Captain Hazelwood's speaking 

He doesn't speak very loud. He's got quite a low 

Deliberate? Deliberate in his speech? 

I wouldn't say really, no. 

Now what did you talk about? 

MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay. 

19 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Cha 1 os? 

20 MR. CHALOS: Your Honor, I'm not offering it for 

21 its truth, only for the fact that they had a conversation 

22 and she stood there for a minute or so, talking with him. 

23 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Why don't you approach the 

24 bench? I don't know what it's being offered for until I 

· ~ hear it, so maybe you can give me an offer of proof by the 
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bench. 

(The following was said at the bench.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Quietly, so that the jury 

doesn't hear. 

MR. CHALOS: (Inaudible.) 
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JUDGE JOHNSTONE: What is it you think she's going 

to say? 

MR. CHALOS: Just basically (inaudible). 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Without anything further, I'm 

going to sustain the objection if you can't give me a 

better offer of proof. 

(The following was said in open Court.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Objection sustained. 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Q Before you went on watch, were you told by Mr. 

Radtke that there was ice ahead? 

MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay? 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Counsel approach the bench, 

please. 

(The following was said at the bench.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: He's asking for your offering of 

the truth of the word that lies ahead, aren't you? 

MR. (Inaudible.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: (Inaudible) it's a state of mind 

exception. I think it's done for that purpose, to show 
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'-- (inaudible). I'm going to sustain the objection and I'll 

2 continue sustaining hearsay objections that are properly 

3 made. 

4 (The following was said in open Court.) 

5 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Objection sustained. 

6 BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

7 Q Ms. Jones, before you went out on the bridge wing, 

8 did you look at the radar? 

9 A I looked at the radar at one point. I don't 

10 remember if it was after or before. 

11 Q Did you see any ice on the radar? 

12 A Yes, I did. 

13 Q When you went out on the bridge wing, what was the 

14 visibility? 

15 A I'll give you an estimate of five miles. That's 

16 just an estimate. 

17 Q Now you -- in response to Mr. Cole's question, you 

18 mentioned that you saw a light that you originally 

19 identified as being five seconds and then later corrected 

20 it to four seconds, do you remember that? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q How far away did you estimate that light to be 

23 from the ship at the time you saw it? 

24 A Oh, I wouldn't know, I couldn't tell you that. 

/5 Q When you saw it, when you saw this light, you were 

L 
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all the way out as far as you could go on the wing, is that 

correct? 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

When you reported the light as broad on the bow, 

were you reporting it from your relative position on the 

wing? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

In other words, if you were standing in the middle 

of the bridge, the relative position may have been 

something less, am I correct? 

A Basically, if you get down-- basically, what the 

lookout is there to do is report the light. They know 

13 where it is. You just let them know. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Now based on your experience as a mate and an AB, 

seeing the red light on your port bow on your starboard 

bow, rather, doesn't necessarily mean that you're standing 

into danger, does it? 

A No, it does not. 

Q And as a matter of fact, red lights, when you're 

headed out to sea, are not always necessarily on your port 

side; they could be on your starboard side, too? 

A Correct. 

Q It's true, is it not, that you would have reported 

the light, the red light that you saw, no matter what side 

of the ship it was on? 
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Yes, that was my job. 

There was nothing about your sighting of the 

3 light, the red light on your starboard bow, to trigger any 

4 alarms in your head, was there? 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

No, there wasn't. 

When you came in and reported the light to Mr. 

7 Cousins the first time, what did he say to you? 

8 

9 

10 

11 Honor. 

12 

13 Q 

MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Chalos? 

MR. CHALOS: I'll withdraw the question, Your 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

After -- you said you came in and you reported the 

14 1 i ght the second time, am I correct? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

And Mr. Cousins at that time was standing at the 

17 port radar? 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

At the port radar, you would have been to the left 

20 of the he 1 msman, am I correct? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

Did Mr. Cousins acknowledge the report? 

Yes. 

Now you mentioned that you noticed the ship 

25 steering to the right or to the starboard hand, am I 
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Yes, turning towards the starboard. 

Was that some time after you made your two 

It was shortly after my second report. 

When you say "shortly," would you say two minutes, 

three minutes? 

A It would be a guess again, since I wasn't look at 

my watch, but I would say less than two minutes. 

Q Now could you describe to us how the ship was 

turning? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

It wasn't a sharp turn. It was a -­

Slow, loping type of turn? 

-- slow, easy turn, yes. 

Did you notice the light at this point, what it 

was doing relative to the ship's heading? 

A 

A 

up 

It was coming across the bow to the port. 

In a slow manner? 

Yes, that's how I assumed -- that's where I came 

how I judge the rate of turn, by watching the light. 

Q Now you don't know, do you, sitting here today, 

how long after the turn started the grounding occurred? 

A No. 

Q I'd like to talk a little bit about the grounding 

25 for a second. You mentioned that when the ship first hit, 
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you saw this aura on the bow, do you remember that? 

A Correct. 

Q And you started talking about heat induction. 

What did you mean by that? 

A The phosphorescence, they've been studying it and 

I had been asked about, approached about it after the fact, 

that that's a study they're doing, that maybe it is -- they 

wonder what makes it glow. You know, it's in the water. I 

guess they're studying it to see if it's heat induced, the 

friction 

Q When you say "heat induced," you mean the mass, 

the vessel mass hitting the rock --

A Yes. 

Q -- causing friction? 

A Yes, that would be my guess. I'm not doing the 

study, I don't know much about it, but that's what I would 

assume. 

Q You said you heard a loud noise and then a jerky 

motion? 

A Yes, I heard a scraping sound. 

Q And you said that you thought it took about 60 

seconds for the ship to come to a complete stop, do you 

remember that? 

A That was a guess, again. 

Q If I were to tell you that other witnesses--
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MR. COLE: Objection. 

MR. CHALOS: Your Honor, this is in evidence and I 

want to give her a hypothetical. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: That's for expert witnesses, not 

this witness. Objection sustained. 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Q Could the whole process have taken something like 

around 30 seconds? 

A Yes, it's possible. This was a very strenuous, 

whatever, situation. I wasn't watching my watch and time 

has a way of getting lost when something like that happens. 

Q You said that after the grounding, you saw Mr. 

Cousins make some calls, do you recall that? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Or at least when you came in from the bridge wing 

after the grounding, you saw Mr. Cousins on the phone. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Do you know who he was calling? 

No, I don't. 

Did he tell you who he was calling? 

MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Chalos? 

MR. CHALOS: Your Honor, I'm not asking what was 

said, only whether Mr. Cousins indicated anything to her 

after the phone call. 
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BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 
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Now you told Mr. Cole that you were out on the 

port wing, that you looked over the side and then you came 

back to the bridge. 

A 

Q 

After, yes. 

And you saw the captain at that point, did you 

8 not? 

9 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

A 

At one point in time, yes. 

Did you see the captain out on the starboard wing? 

I don't remember. I remember definitely for sure 

12 he was walking out on the port. I don't remember for sure 

13 if he walked on the starboard or not. 

14 

15 

Q 

A 

Did you look over the side with him at that point? 

Yes, probably at the same time, we were looking 

16 over the side. We were all out there, looking. 

17 Q How did the captain look when you saw him on the 

18 bridge the first time after the grounding? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

He looked as 

Did he look 

Yes. 

Did he look 

Yes. 

Did he look 

No. 

he usually looks. 

serious? 

sober? 

in any way impaired? 
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Q Did he appear to be in control of the situation at 

that time? 

A As much as you could be, yes. 

Q Did you hear the captain give any commands? 

A Yes. 

Q What were those commands? 

MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Don't answer the question. 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Q Did the captain give you any commands? 

A He gave 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Don't answer the question. 

There's an objection, Mr. Chalos, and rather than -- when 

you ask another question, I am assuming you are withdrawing 

the question. 

MR. CHALOS: I'm withdrawing the first question. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, there's an objection to 

this question. 

MR. CHALOS: Your Honor, may I just have a moment? 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Yes, sir. 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Q Okay, Ms. Jones 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Before you go any further, I 

just want to make sure we understand each other. If I 

don't hear you respond when I give you an opportunity with 
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an exception under our rules or some reasoning you have, I 

am assuming that you are going onto the next question, 

withdrawing your question. 

MR. CHALOS: That's right, Your Honor. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay. 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Q Ms. Jones, did you see the captain looking at the 

radar? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Were you given any orders to go below and wake up 

the crew? 

A Greg and I spoke about it. He told me who he had 

talked to. 

MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: The answer called for a yes or 

no answer, were you given any orders to wake up the crew. 

It didn't call for what the orders were. So the answer is 

yes now. Let's go on to the next question. 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Q Were you given any orders to wake up the crew? 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: That just calls for a yes or no 

answer. 

THE WITNESS: It's hard to answer with a yes or 

no. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay. 
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THE WITNESS: We talked about it and he told me 

who he had talked to and I just went down and talked to 

some other people. It wasn't a very planned out thing; it 

was very casual. He didn't order me to go down. We just 

were talking about it and figured that was what we should 

do. 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Q I take it you don't know whether the captain gave 

any orders to Mr. Cousins about waking up the crew. 

A I'm not aware if he did or not. 

Q You say at some point, you saw the chief mate, Mr. 

Cousins, and the captain standing in the chart room. 

A The chief mate came up and he walked from behind 

the chart room and they went on back behind the chart room 

and talked. 

0 

A 

Was that before or after you went below? 

I don't know. 

Did you hear any of the conversation that was --

did you hear the captain and the chief mate and the third 

mate speaking? 

A No, I did not. 

Q Now in response to Mr. Cole's question, you said 

that you had assumed that the captain was trying to get 

this vessel off the reef by the engine maneuvers and rudder 

commands he was giving, is that correct? 
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'- A Right. 

2 Q Did the captain ever tell you that that's what he 

3 was trying to do? 

4 A No, he did not. 

5 MR. COLE: Objection, hearsay. 

6 MR. CHALOS: Your Honor, I don't think that's 

7 hearsay. I'm not asking this witness for the truth-- I'm 

8 not offering it for the truth, only her state of mind. 

9 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Objection overruled. The answer 

10 is no. Go on to the next question. 

11 BY MR. CH.ALOS: (Resuming) 

12 Q The assumption that you testified to is strictly 

13 your own assumption, am I correct? 

14 A Correct. 

15 Q Have you ever been aground before? 

16 A Yes, I have. 

17 Q And in those instances when you were aground, was 

18 the engine put in reverse to get the vessel off the strain? 

19 A Yes, it was. 

20 Q In this instance, the engines were never put 

21 astern, is that correct? 

22 A That's correct. 

23 Q Did you notice the vessel's heading after the 

24 grounding? ... 
25 A I believe it was 289, once it settled. 
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Q Did you have occasion to observe the vessel's 

heading after the engine and rudder maneuvers were being 

performed? 

A 

Q 

That's when I believe it was 289. 

And did it remain at 289 through the whole period 

of the engine and rudder maneuvers? 

A I believe it might have changed a degree, at the 

most, to the right or to the left during the commands. 

Q 

A 

Q 

But that's all? 

Yes, to the best I can recall. 

Did you notice any movement on the part of the 

ship in a forward direction as a result of the engine 

maneuvers? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

being 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

No, I didn't. 

Who was giving the helm and engine orders? 

The captain. 

Were you in close proximity when these orders were 

given? 

Yes, I was right in the bridge area. 

How did the captain appear at that time? 

Very much in command. 

Cool, calm? 

Yes. 

Did you notice any -- let me strike that and 

rephrase it. Did you notice any impairment on his part? 



139 

A No, I did not. 

2 Q 

3 point? 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

Did you smell any alcohol on his breath at this 

No, I did not. 

Do you remember-- well, strike that. Did you do 

6 anything with respect to the fire monitors? 

7 A That was done after, when we called the port aide 

8 out, that I went down with the port aide and put out the 

9 pilot ladder on the port side. I returned to the bridge 

10 and they went out and started -- they put in the scuppers 

11 and chained the fire monitors. 

12 

13 

14 

Q 

A 

Q 

Just to be ready, I suppose. 

Yes, I imagine. 

Have you ever seen Captain Hazelwood intoxicated 

15 on board the Exxon Va 1 dez? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

A 

No. 

Have you ever seen him impaired? 

No. 

MR. CHALOS: I have no further questions of this 

20 witness, Your Honor. 

21 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

22 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

23 Q Ms. Jones, I guess I'm a little confused. The 

24 period that you were on the bridge, from say 12:30 to 1:40, 

25 you're saying that the heading of the ship never changed? 
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A From 12:30 to 1:40. I'm saying when the commands 

were given, I didn't notice much of a heading change. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

What's a course recorder? 

It records the vessel's heading. 

The actual heading of the ship -­

Yes. 

-- is that your understanding? 

Yes. 

Would that be a better judge of what the heading 

of the ship was than what you saw that night? 

A Probably, since it's mechanical and perfect and it 

was awhile ago. 

Q You talked about being off -- running a ship 

aground. How many ships have you been on that ran aground? 

A I've been on ships before. It's a common 

occurrence when you're going up the Mississippi River, you 

get in the mud. 

Q How many reefs are there, rock reefs are there in 

the Mississippi River? 

MR. CHALOS: Objection, Your Honor. How would 

this witness know how many reefs are --

Q 

MR. COLE: I'll rephrase the question. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

How many rock reefs have you run into on the 

Mississippi River? 
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A None. 

Q Would you -- do you think that the same tactics 

that you use to get a tanker or a ship off the mud might be 

a little different than those used to get a tanker off of a 

reef? 

A I'm not a captain, I wouldn't know that. 

Q The only reefs -- the only times you've been 

aground on a vessel is on the Mississippi River, is that 

right? 

A No. 

Q Where else have you been on the ground in ships? 

A Making a turn into Port Manatee, shifting from 

Tampa. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: I can't hear you any longer. I 

could hear you earlier, but I can't hear you, you fade 

out. What did you say? 

THE WITNESS: I said that when we were making a 

ship from Tampa to Port Manatee in Florida. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q What type of ground is that? 

A I wouldn't know, that was quite awhile ago. 

Q You don't remember if it was mud or rocks? 

A No, I don't. 

Q Did the ship sink after you ran aground? 

A No, it did not. 
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Q How often did you look for signs of intoxication 

when you see Captain Hazelwood on board the Exxon Valdez? 

A I would have no reason to look for signs of 

intoxication. 

Q Do you look for signs of intoxication when you 

talk with him? 

A 

Q 

No. 

Did you watch Captain Hazelwood the whole way when 

he came on board the Exxon Valdez at about 8:00 o'clock 

that evening? 

A No, I said that I saw him walk approximately 40 

feet, just going into the house. I didn't see him come on 

board. 

Q 

A 

clearly. 

What was the-- was it light or dark out? 

It was-- the lights were on deck. I could see 

Q How dark was it out? 

A I don't recall. 

Q Then it must have been dark enough to require the 

lights. 

A I assume. 

Q Can you tell the jury how many times-- how many 

red lights flash on your starboard side in Prince William 

Sound? 

A I don't know. 



143 
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I_ Q Well, are you familiar with the warning buoys in 

2 Prince William Sound at all? 

3 A Some, yes. I don't have them memorized. 

4 Q Do you know any of them that flash on the right 

5 side, on the starboard side? 

6 MR. CHALOS: Your Honor, I'm going to object as to 

7 foundation. Which way is the ship heading? Where is it 

8 at? 

9 MR. COLE: I'll withdraw that. 

10 BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

11 Q On the outbound voyage out of Prince William 

12 Sound, are you aware of any that flash red on the right 

13 side? 

14 A It would depend where you are in reference to the 

15 channel. If you have a turn up ahead and the light the 

16 visibility is good and you have a light quite a ways up 

17 ahead, after you make your turn, it would be on the 

18 starboard side, but it could be on the port side before you 

19 make your turn. 

20 Q Would you give the jury an example of where that 

21 would happen in Prince William Sound? 

22 A I don't have all the lights memorized out there, 

23 that's the pilot's job. 

24 MR. COLE: You indicated that from the first time .. 
2S that the Exxon Valdez grounded until it came to rest, you 

L -
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initially said-- you gave a guess of 60 seconds. And then 

Mr. Chalos asked you could it have been 30 seconds and you 

said yes, is that correct? 

A I wasn't able to answer the question. 

Q Could it have been more than 60 seconds? 

A I wasn't watching my watch. It could have been, 

yes. It could have been less. 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I have nothing further, thank you. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Ms. Jones, have you ever been intoxicated? 

Yes. 

Do you know how that feels like? 

Yes. 

Do you remember the movements that you had when 

you were intoxicated, the way you acted? 

A Yes. 

0 Have you ever observed anybody else intoxicated? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Have you observed people impaired by alcohol -­

Yes. 

-- and the way they act? 

Yes. 

Did Captain Hazelwood act in any way impaired or 

intoxicated as you know it? 
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A No. 

2 

3 

MR. CHALOS: No further questions, Your Honor. 

MR. COLE: I just have two follow-up. 

4 

5 

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLE: {Resuming) 

6 o You gave a blood test and a urine sample in this 

7 case, is that correct? 

8 A Correct. 

9 Q And Captain Hazelwood --

10 MR. CHALOS: Objection, objection, Your Honor. 

11 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: This is going outside the scope 

12 of the direct and redirect and recross. 

13 MR. COLE: Judge, I can step forward and make an 

14 offer of proof of why I don't think that's true. 

15 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Why don't you do that? 

16 (The following was said at the bench.) 

17 MR. COLE: I want to ask her if she noticed any 

18 signs of intoxication. She just went into it here and I 

19 want to ask her if she noticed any signs of intoxication 

20 when she gave this urine sample and blood test at 11:00 

21 o'clock that morning. 

22 MR. CHALOS: I wouldn't have any objection, so 

23 1 ong as it doesn't get into ( i naud i b 1 e) . 

24 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, without object ion, I' 11 

25 1 et you proceed. 
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(The following was said in open Court.) 

MR. CHALOS: Thank you, Your Honor. Mr. Cole. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Ms. Jones, were you called into the captain's 

quarters at one point to give a blood sample? 

A 

Q 

Yes, I was. 

Had -- did you make contact with Captain Hazelwood 

within a half an hour that that occurred, prior or after? 

A 

there. 

Q 

A 

Q 

point? 

A 

Q 

He, I believe, was in his office when I went up 

When you went to give the blood sample. 

I believe so. 

Did you notice any signs of intoxication at that 

No, I did not. 

Okay. 

MR. COLE: Nothing further, Your Honor. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: May this witness be excused from 

further participation? 

MR. CHALOS: No, just a couple of more questions 

2 1 and then 

22 FURTHER RECROSS EXAMINATION 

23 

24 Q 

BY MR. CHALOS: (Resuming) 

Ms. Jones, when you saw Captain Hazelwood in his 

25 office at the time you gave a blood test, how far away from 
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name and then spell your last name? 

THE WITNESS: 

THE CLERK: 

THE WITNESS: 

that's my last name. 

THE CLERK: 

THE WITNESS: 

THE CLERK: 

THE WITNESS: 

THE CLERK: 

THE WITNESS: 

THE CLERK: 

THE WITNESS: 

I'm Ephraim Meneses. 

Would you spell your first name, too? 

My first name is Ephraim; Meneses, 

Ephraim is my first name. 

Spell your last name. 

Meneses, my last name. 

Spe 1 1 it. 

M-e-n-e-s-e-s. 

And your current mailing address? 

My home address, sir? 

Either one. 

I live at 126 Daley City, 

California. 

THE CLERK: And your current occupation, sir? 

THE WITNESS: I'm not working right now. I work 

on Exxon as a pleacher. 

Q 

shipping? 

A 

Q 

THE CLERK: Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: Okay, sir. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLE: 

Mr. Meneses, how long have you worked for Exxon 

Almost 11 years. 

And in what position do you work for them? What's 
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your job? 

2 A I'm a chef. I bring everything. I used to be 

3 steward, a cook. 

4 Q 

5 aground? 

6 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Were you the cook on the Exxon Valdez when it went 

I was, yes. 

Do you remember going to sleep the night before? 

The day the accident happened, I was asleep. 

What time did you get off work that evening, the 

10 night before? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

A 

0 

A 

5:00 o'clock. 

And do you remember when the ship 

I was asleep, I have no idea. 

Did you wake up when the ship was 

I do, but I was still laying down 

16 was grounded. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

"' 
Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

And what did you do after that? 

I just sleep aga1n. 

And when did you wake up? 

5:00 o'clock in the morning. 

Thank you, I have nothing further. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CHALOS: 

Good afternoon, Mr. Meneses. 

Good afternoon, sir. 

left Valdez? 

grounded? 

when the ship 
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Q Other than being a cook, you had no other duties 

on the Exxon Valdez, do you? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

That's all I have. 

No deck duties? 

No, sir. 

No stations to go to? 

I have-- during fire drill, we have. 

Now let me ask you this. You say that you woke up 

when the grounding occurred? 

you? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

You don't know if anyone tried to wake you up, do 

Nobody wake me up. 

But, in fact, you did wake up when you heard the 

grounding. 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir, that's right. 

And I take it you don't know whether Captain 

Hazelwood told anybody to come down and wake you up. 

MR. COLE: Objection, Your Honor. Objection, 

hearsay. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: The only way he'd know that is 

if somebody told him. He said he's been asleep, so the 

objection is sustained. The form of the question is 

improper. 

MR. CHALOS: Your Honor, I have no further 
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questions of this witness. 

2 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, any further need for this 

3 witness? 

4 MR. COLE: No. 

5 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Chalos? 

6 MR. CHALOS: No. 

7 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: You're excused, Mr. Meneses. 

8 MR. COLE: At this time, the State would call Ms. 

9 Melanie Wright. 

10 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Are you folks running out of 

11: pads? 

12 MS. Not yet. 

13 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, if you run out of pads or 

14 penci 1 s, just 1 et us know and Mr. Purden wi 11 renew them 

15 for you. 

16 Whereupon, 

1 7 MELANIE WRIGHT 

18 having been ca 11 ed as a witness by Counse 1 for the State, 

19 and having been duly sworn by the Clerk, was examined and 

20 testified as follows: 

21 THE CLERK: Ma'am, would you please state your 

22 fu 1 1 name and then spe 11 your 1 ast name? 

23 THE WITNESS: Melanie Wright. Spell the first 

24 one, too? M-e-1-a-n- i -e . 
. ... 

75 THE CLERK: And the last name, spell it. 

l. 
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THE WITNESS: W-r-i-g-h-t. 

2 THE CLERK: And your current mailing address, 

3 Ma'am? 

4 THE WITNESS: Exxon Shipping Company, Box 1512, 

5 Houston, Texas. 

6 THE CLERK: And your current occupation? 

7 THE WITNESS: Ship's cook. 

8 THE CLERK: Thank you. 

9 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

10 BY MR. COLE: 

11 

I 
Q Ms. Wright, would you tell the jury how long 

12 
I you've worked for Exxon Shipping? 

13 A Eight years. 

14 Q And how long had you been serving on the Exxon 

15 Valdez prior to its grounding? 

16 A 50 some days. 

17 Q Do you remember the Exxon Valdez being in port in 

18 Valdez on March 23d, 1989? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q What time did you get off work that day? 

21 A 7:00. 

22 Q What did you do after you got off work? 

23 A Went to the crew's TV room and watched TV. 

24 Q Did you watch anything in particular, do you 

25 remember? 
r -
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A I tried to watch the news and the movie, but the 

movie that was on was one we'd already seen last week in 

San Francisco, so we turned the TV off and everybody went 

to bed. 

Q 

evening? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

What time would you have gone to sleep that 

10:00 o'clock. 

What time did you wake up? 

5:00 in the morning. 

Do you remember waking up prior to that? 

For a few seconds. 

Why did you wake up prior to that? 

I heard an unusual noise. 

Did you think anything about that? 

I thought the wind was blowing, probably because 

16 the wind blows a lot where I live, and when I was asleep, 

17 sometimes you can't te 1 1 if you're at home or you're at 

18 work. And I heard a few scraping noises in with that, but 

19 I didn't get up or anything, just went back to sleep, 

20 because it got quiet. The engines shut down, it was quiet, 

21 and just went back to sleep. 

22 Q When did you learn that the Exxon Valdez had 

23 grounded? 

24 A When I came out of my room, I ran into the oiler 

25 and he took me outside. 
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What time would that have been? 

Quarter to 6:00. 
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MR. COLE: I have nothing further, Your Honor. 

Q 

A 

Q 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CHALOS: 

Good afternoon, Ms. Wright. 

Hi. 

You don't have any other duties on the Exxon 

Valdez besides being a cook, right? 

A Yes. 

0 You don't have any deck duties or any engine 

duties? 

A 

Q 

No, just inside the house. 

Do you know whether anyone knocked on your door 

that evening? 

A 

Q 

sound. 

A 

No. I would say nobody did knock on it. 

But you did wake up when you heard the scraping 

Yes. 

MR. CHALOS: I have no further questions. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Cole. 

MR. COLE: Nothing further. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: May this witness be excused from 

further participation? 

MR. CHALOS: Yes, sir. 
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MR. COLE: Yes, sir. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: You're excused, thank you. 

MR. COLE: Your Honor, at this time, the State 

would call Lloyd LeCain. 

Whereupon, 

LLOYD G. LE CAIN 

having be@n called as a witness by Counsel for the State, 

and having been duly sworn by the Clerk, was examined and 

testified as follows: 

THE CLERK: Sir, would you please state your full 

name and spell your last name? 

THE WITNESS: Lloyd George LeCain, Junior. And my 

last name is spelled L-e-capital C-a-i-n. 

THE CLERK: Your current mailing address, sir? 

THE WITNESS: 416 Evesham-- that's spelled 

E-v-e-s-h-a-m Place, that's Longwood, Florida 32779. 

THE CLERK: And your current occupation? 

THE WITNESS: Merchant marine officer. 

THE CLERK: Thank you. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Cole, keep your eye on the 

clock and we'll break at quarter of. 

MR. COLE: Quarter of? Fine. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLE: 

Q Mr. LeCain, how long have you been in the merchant 
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marine industry? 

A 

Q 

Including time as a cadet, 21 years. 

You mentioned cadet. Would you explain to the 

jury what that means? 

A I went to Texas A&M University and trained as a 

merchant marine officer and I have a bachelor of science in 

marine transportation. 

Q Did you -- how long -- can you just briefly 

summarize what type of jobs you've held in the merchant 

marine industry? 

A Able seaman for a short period and second mate and 

third mate. 

Q 

A 

When did you get your third mate's license? 

In 1972, probably, right around the very end of 

1971, somewhere in December. 

Q 

A 

that. 

Q 

A 

Q 

And your second mate's license? 

It's about six years later, 1978. I'm not sure on 

Approximately. 

1978. 

Do you have any special pilotage endorsement that 

you received to go along with your second mate's license? 

A 

Q 

Company? 

No, sir. 

And how long have you worked for Exxon Shipping 
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A Over 17 years. 

2 Q Did you sign on with them as an able bodied 

3 seaman? 

4 A Yes, I did. 

5 Q Have you worked with Exxon ever since you started 

6 with them 17 years ago? 

7 A That's correct. 

8 Q When did you get assigned to the Exxon Valdez? 

9 A It was about five months before the accident. Was 

10 it 1988? It must be 1988, at the end of say-- like July, 

11 July of '88, July or August of '88. 

12 Q Who were the captains that you served under while 

13 you were doing assignments on the Exxon Valdez? 

14 A Captain Hazelwood and Captain Stalzer. 

15 Q And in your work with Exxon, have you regularly 

16 been going in and out of Valdez? 

17 A No. 

18 Q Where have you worked primarily? 

19 A Between either Port Amarillus, Panama, and New 

20 York or Cherokee Grande ___________ , the Atlantic side, in 

21 Baton Rouge, Louisiana. 

22 Q So that would be considered mostly East Coast 

23 work, then. 

24 A Yes, that's correct. ... 
25 Q Can you give the jury an idea how many trips you 
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made into Valdez? 

A It's hard to say. I was on the Exxon Baton Rouge 

years ago. I made maybe, total, maybe 20 trips up and down 

in the area and there were two or three trips this time, so 

let's say somewhere around 20. 

ago. 

Q The times you were on the Exxon Baton Rouge? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir. 

When was that? 

That was ten or 12 years ago, it was a long time 

Q When you were working on the Exxon Valdez 

beginning in July, do you remember how many times you would 

have been at the helm when the Exxon Valdez came into 

A 

officer. 

I was never at the helm, but I was the navigation 

Q I'm sorry, yes, the navigation officer. 

A Maybe three or four times. You know, when I say 

times, I'm saying just watches on there, maybe two or three 

transits, but wasn't, you know, how many times 

Q Would you you were the second mate on the Exxon 

Valdez. Would you tell the jury, what were your 

responsibilities while you were in port, let's begin there? 

A In port? Well, I was assisting the chief officer 

with cargo, preparing the charts for sailing. I had duties 

in the steward's department and just assist the chief 
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officer, as necessary, with the cargo. I mean I'm right 

under the chief officer. I help him with cargo figures and 

things occasionally and that's just about it. 

Q Can we talk a little bit about preparing the 

charts? Would you explain to the jury what you mean by 

that? 

A Okay, on the charts on the ship, we have all our 

courses laid out coming-- where we're going to, especially 

with the run like we have from San Francisco to Valdez. 

And what we do is we lay the courses out on the chart and 

we put magic Scotch tape over it, over the courses. And 

then all the way up, we plot our positions on the chart, on 

our charts that we use going up to wherever we're going. 

And then before we sail, a couple of hours before we sail, 

I'll erase the previous fixes on the chart because we 

wouldn't want to mix things up with the next voyage. So 

the positions usually stay on the chart almost the whole 

time we're in port, in case somebody from the office wants 

to come down and inspect the charts or something happens. 

Q And would you have done this in -- on March 23d, 

1989, when the Exxon Valdez was in 

A Yes, I would have. I did that. 

Q Do you remember doing that? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Is there anything else that you do with the 
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charts? 

A I correct the charts. There are something called 

Notice to Mariners that comes out from the Defense Mapping 

Agency which has all the corrections to the chart, where 

lights have been added or destroyed. Also, there's a local 

notice to mariners from the Coast Guard in different ports 

with the same information on it and what I do is I bring 

the charts up to date. I correct the lights and all that 

sort of thing. And the Coast Guard does inspect that on 

the ship, they make sure that I've done that work. 

Q 

A 

Q 

When do they inspect it? 

It was not this trip, it was previous. 

Now these notices to mariners, have any of them --

while you were on the Exxon Valdez, did any of them include 

ice hazards? 

A 

Q 

I can't recall now. 

Is there anything else that you do to keep the 

charts in good working condition? 

A Sort the new editions when they come in. I always 

check with the captain to make sure -- you know, when we 

get a new edition, I'll lay the courses out and then the 

captain will check the courses I've laid out. 

Q Is it common when you get a new chart to read over 

the chart and look at it and read what's on it? 

A What I usually do is correct it first. Then I 
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look at it and if there's something unusual, I'll point it 

out to the captain. Also, when I do get the Notice to 

Mariners, a lot of times if I see something unusual, I'll 

tell the captain about it. Some of the captains read the 

Notice to Mariners themselves first and look through them. 

Q But it's fair to say that as the navigating -- as 

the second mate, if you were to notice new notes up on the 

charts, themselves, you would bring those to the captain's 

attention. 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

Would you tell the jury, what were your 

responslcilities then as a second mate when you were out 2~ 

sea? 

A I was a watch officer then. That included a 

four-hour -- two four-hour watches a day, just navigating 

the ship, maneuvering the ship, the vessel around traffic. 

I also -- I run the steward's department, put overtime on 

the computer in the steward's department and I order stores 

for the deck department and the engine department when I'm 

asked to. Just general duties. I work eight hours a day 

as a watch officer and I have clock order duties. 

Q What were your times that you worked on the Exxon 

Valdez? What was your block of time? 

A I worked from 12:00 to 4:00. 

Q And did you have people, ABs, that you were 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, I did. 

Who were those two individuals? 

At this time or --

Yes. 

That was Ms. Jones and Mr. Kagan. 
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A 

Q How important is it to know the capabilities of 

the people that work under you? 

A It's pretty important. It's very important. I 

mean you're doing a job, you have to rely on them. 

Q How long had you worked with Mr. Kagan? 

A Just-- well, the length of time was from San 

Francisco up to Valdez, seven days, eight days, whatever 

that was. 

Q Are you responsible while you're in port for 

making sure that any of the instruments were working 

properly? 

A Not specif1cally. I mean I'll go to the bridge 

when I'm correcting the charts. I'll make sure the course 

recorders are wound up and things like that, but the actual 

instrumentation for the trip, when you're going to leave, 

is checked by the officer who's up there checking gear. 

You know, if I noticed something that was absolutely wrong 

-- another thing, like the radars, we don't want to turn 

those on while we're handling because you could have an 
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explosion because of the static discharge and some of the 

2 other equipment like that. So it's-- in port, it would 

3 just be something stuck out, like if I'm writing in the 

4 course recorder and ran out of ink or something like that. 

5 Q Do you remember being on duty when the Exxon 

6 Valdez entered Hinchinbrook on March 22d, 1989? 

7 A Not specifically. I'd have to look at the log 

8 book to refresh my memory. 

9 Q Would you have worked -- what would your shift 

10 have been that day? 

11 A I would have had the 12:00 to 4:00 watch the day 

12 before and then I would have had the 12:00 to 4:00 while we 

13 were tying up, when we got up to the dock. Then I had I 

14 was up for the cargo a little while until around 5:30. I 

15 went to bed for about two or three hours and then I got 

16 up. I had something to do in the steward's department, 

17 went down to the steward's department. I had lunch and I 

18 ' went to work for four hours. Then I had something else go 

19 on and I fina11y sat down in my chair maybe for a short 

20 period. Then Mr. Cousins, he was supposed to let me sit 

21 down a little longer than I was supposed to and he called 

22 me out early. This was an error. And then I finally got 

23 to bed I guess around 10:15 to 10:30, somewhere around 

24 there . 
. . 

25 Q You covered a lot there. 
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A I know, I know. 

Q 

A 

Q 

We're going to cover everything. 

It's hard for me to remember, it's a long time 

Would you basically tell the jury what you were 

doing between 12:00 and 4:00 that morning. 

A I think that was -- we tied the ship up and I was 

doing something with the cargo, getting ready for cargo 

operations. 

Q Who would you have been working with? 

A The chief officer. 

Q And did you go to town that day at all? 

A Absolutely not. 

Q Why not? 

A I'm busy, working. I don't go ashore in Valdez. 

It's a long ride from the place over to the town, the cab 

ride's kind of expensive and you're only going to be in 

port a few hours, so why go into town? 

Q 

A 

Did you make any phone calls from Valdez? 

I can't remember if I called my wife or not. I 

might have. 

Q And when you came on at noon, what time -- what 

did you do then? 

A Well, I made a round of the deck. I then went to 

the cargo control room to relieve Mr. Cousins I guess about 
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'- ten of and just stood cargo watch for four hours. 

2 Q Did anything happen as to the rate of oil flow 

3 while you were on deck that day, on watch that afternoon? 

4 A It went up and down a couple of times. There was 

5 something on the dock and I forget how many barrels 

6 exchange there was. I'm not going to say, I don't remember 

7 now. 

8 Q Do you remember having to change the sailing board 

9 that day? 

10 A I don't remember whether-- I really can't 

11 remember, can't recall. 

12 Q Do you remember seeing the sailing board that day? 

13 A I was walking around; I know it was out there. 

14 See, it didn't concern me much, I'm not going ashore, and 

15 -- I'm just trying to remember. I think the chief mate may 

16 have changed the sailing board, but I can't remember any 

17 more. 

18 Q Do you remember what was on the sign that day? 

19 A No, I don't, not now. 

20 Q If you saw it, might it refresh your recollection? 

21 A If I saw the log book entries. 

22 Q The log book? 

23 A Some sort of entry that would show it. 

24 Q How about this, does this refresh your 

25 recollection? 
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MR. MADSON: What are you looking at there, sir, 

can I ask you that, please? 

MR. COLE: This is Defendant's Exhibit Number 36. 

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I would object. I noted 

before my objection. This was taken in San Diego some time 

later. We don't know who put this on or when. 

MR. COLE: It's being used to refresh his 

recollection 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Any document can be used to 

refresh recollection. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

0 Does this refresh your recollection as to what 

time? 

A It says 2100. I don't know. I'd really have to 

look at the log book entry for that day. 

Q Is that what you're looking for? That would be 

it? 

A Should be it. Sailing board advanced to 20 and 

2100, it says right here. It's my notation, my entry. 

Q Okay. And who changed who actually changed the 

sailing board? 

A It would be one of the able seamen. 

Q You don't remember seeing that board, though. 

A No, I don't. 

Q After you got off work that day, how long did you 
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work on cargo control that afternoon? 

A I worked for four hours in the control room and 

then I hung around a little while afterwards, you know, 

just to see if something was going on, topping off or 

something, and then I just went down and had supper. And 

then I went down in the steward's department to see how 

everything was going, wanted to see, just make sure 

everything was secured and that's about it. I just sat 

down for a few minutes and then I went right back out on 

deck again. 

Q What were your responsibilities for the undocking, 

while the undocking occurred? 

A Under the captain's direction, supervise laying 

the lines for the dock. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Were you at the bow or the aft? 

The bow. 

Who did you have working for you? 

I can't recall now. 

What did you do after that, the undocking process 

was finished? 

A I helped secured the deck for sea and, about 10:15 

or so, I called the bridge. I don't know who I talked to 

up there. I just said, "I'm going to go inside now. They 

don't need me out here for this." And then said go ahead 

and that's the last -- the next thing I knew, we were -- I 
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went in and laid down and went to sleep and, the next thing 
2 I knew, we were having a problem. 
3 

Q You were having a problem. Was that --

4 
A The grounding, okay. 

5 
Q Did you hear that or were you --

6 
A I felt it. I felt it. It was like running your 

7 car about 30 miles an hour alongside a wall. I've done 

8 that one time, so I know what it feels like, and that's 
9 what it felt like. 

10 
Q What time was that when you woke up? 

11 
A I'm not exactly sure on that. I didn't look at my 

12 clock. I just, you know 

13 Q When was the first time you remember looking at 

14 your clock? 

15 
A Well, I guess the chief mate got me up right after 

16 it happened. I was up on the bridge about ten to 15 after 

17 the hour, I was on the bridge. 
13 

Q When were you scheduled to be on duty that 

19 evening? 

20 
A About ten minutes to 12:00. 

21 
Q Why were you called up? 

22 
A They just-- it's a common practice when we'll 

23 work over, work extra hours for people -- to hang on for 

24 people, hang over. I intended to hang over for Mr. -- the 

25 chief officer, until 5:00, give him an extra hour's sleep. 
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It's commonly done. You just would do it. 

2 Q What time would you have been called if you had 

3 been --

4 A Well, if you're going to be sleeping an extra 

5 hour, it would have been around 12:30, okay. Normally, if 

6 they were going to get me up for my watch, it would have 

7 been 11:30. 

8 Q You indicated that you had worked with Mr. Kagan 

9 prior to this, for a little bit prior to coming up to-- to 

10 leaving Valdez, do you remember talking about that? 

11 
A Yes. 

12 0 Had you had any problems with Mr. Kagan at the 

13 helm? 

14 A No. Coming out of San Francisco, he did okay, he 

15 steered the ship okay. And we had to supervise him, but I 

16 mean it was -- you know, just keep an eye on him. 

17 Q What do you mean, you had to supervise him? 

18 A Well, my job is to supervise the quartermaster, sc 

19 I just watch people when they steer the ship. 

20 Q How would you rate Mr. Kagan in terms of his 

21 abilities? 

22 A I'd say slightly below normal. 

23 Q Did you ever have any discussions with Captain 

24 Hazelwood about that? ... 
25 A Yes, I did. It was just we knew we had a problem 
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-- not a problem. We knew -- you know, he just told me to 

keep an eye on Kagan when he's steering because -- you 

know, we had to watch him. 

Q Captain Hazelwood said that? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

When did he tell you that? 

Coming out of San Francisco and I kept an eye on 

him and we had no problem. 

Q Had you.thought about that when-- prior to go to 

sleep or where you were going to place Mr. Kagan and Ms. 

Jones? 

A Well, I was thinking possibly for the first part 

of the transit was to put Ms. Jones on the wheel and maybe 

an hour down the line, put Kagan on the wheel. 

Q Why is that? 

A The navigation load is heavier up there at the top 

of Prince William Sound. I figured out where I would be. 

So I had never had Mr. Kagan in a loaded condition, so I -­

the chief officer had talked to me and Cousins about 

keeping an eye on Kagan, you knew, about his steering 

ability. And since -- and Mr. Cousins said he'd been with 

Kagan on a previous ship, so I'm the one that was sort of 

left in the situation where I didn't know. And so I 

thought, "Well, I'll just change out." But if I handed it 

to Mr. Kagan, that's the way it was, I'm sure he could have 
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done all right. 

(Tape changed to C-3619.) 

Q What happened when -- after you were woken up, 

what did you do? 

A I went up to the bridge. 

Q And would you describe -- do you remember the 

grounding at all? Do you remember the sounds or anything 

that occurred? 

A 

sound 

Just what I told you. It just was a grinding 

not a grinding sound. It was a feeling like 

running your car about 30 miles an hour along a stone 

wall. I mean there really wasn't much noise to it. It was 

just like a rattle. 

Q Do you know how long that --

A No, sir, I don't. Remember, I was asleep, you 

know, just sort of falling asleep, you know. 

Q When you got up to the bridge, where did you go? 

A I went into the wheelhouse and I stood there and I 

could see what was happening. And let's see-- well, I 

just-- I asked Mr. Cousins what happened, okay. Well, 

see, when I first got on the bridge, I looked at the chart, 

that's the first thing I did. I looked at the chart. I 

saw where we were and I was absolutely startled. That's 

what happened. And I really felt -- it didn't make any 

sense to me, being where we were. So I went out on the 



r 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1 s 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

172 

bridge and I saw the captain there and Kagan and Cousins 

and I said, "Mr. Cousins, what happened?" He said, "I was 

maneuvering around ice and I slid up on the rocks." 

Q Where did you go after that? 

A I said to Captain Hazelwood, I said, "I'm going to 

go down and assist the chief officer." And I went down 

with the chief officer and assisted him. 

Q Would you describe, were there any -- was there 

any fumes in the stairwells or on any of the floors? 

A 

Q 

A 

No, there wasn't. 

Do you remember ever smelling any? 

No. 

0 Were you in a rush? Describe how you -- was this 

a casual thing that you went down to the cargo control 

room? 

A No, I went directly to the cargo control room by 

stairs, not in a rush, but in a deliberate way to go to 

work. Obviously, we were hurt and we had to -- the ship 

was hurt and we had to go to work. 

0 

A 

Q 

A 

Where did you go then? 

After I was in the cargo control room? 

No. Where is the cargo control room? 

It's down a few decks from the bridge. The 

stairwell just goes down there. 

Q What did you do while you were in the cargo 
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control room? 

A I talked to the chief officer. I looked at the 

gauges that showed how much oil was in the ship and 

Q What did you see, what did the gauges tell you? 

A The gauges were a blur. We couldn't really we 

didn't know how fast the oil was coming out. It was 

immediately numbers moving, you know, like a digital 

readout, how much oil was in there, the number of feet 

between the top of the oil and the tank top, and this was 

just blurred out. We were getting a few readings, but the 

oil was going out of the ship very, very fast. It was 

obvious to the chief officer and myself. 

Q 

A 

Q 

That you had some real problems. 

Yes. 

Did you know the extent of the problems at that 

16 time? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A No, sir, I didn't. 

0 I'm showing you what's been marked for 

identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 47. Do you 

recognize that photograph? 

A That's the cargo control board. 

MR. COLE: Your Honor, I'd move for the admission 

of what's previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit 

Number 47. 

MR. MADSON: No objection. 
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JUDGE JOHNSTONE: 47 is admitted. 

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 47 

was received in evidence.) 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Now Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 48, do you 

recognize that? 

A That's another view of the cargo control room --

the cargo control board. 

MR. COLE: I would move for the admission of 

what's previously been identified as Plaintiff's Exhibit 

Number 48. 

Q 

MR. MADSON: No problem, no objection. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: All right, it's admitted. 

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 48 

was received in evidence.) 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Now can you give the jury an idea of what things 

you were looking at that were confusing? 

A Well, not confusing. It was just that these 

gauges show the amount of oil in the tank, all right, the 

overages and things. It was just really -- you could just 

tell it was going out very fast, the oil. 

Q 

A 

Q 

They were moving constantly? 

Yes, sir. 

What happened then, did you go down with the first 
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- ~ mate, the chief mate, down into the cargo control room? 

2 Was he ahead of you? 

3 A He was already down there. He had left before I 

4 got there. 

5 Q What was he doing when you got there? 

6 A He was working the computer, trying to figure out 

7 stability. We were trying to get some figures and we were 

8 trying to ascertain what happened to the ship. You have to 

9 understand, this is a very confusing period. You know, 

10 it's -- what can I say? It's a brave, new world now. 

11 We've got to (unintelligible). Our job is to save the ship 

12 or do whatever we had to do to stop what was happening. 

13 Q How long were you then in the cargo control room? 

14 A I can't recall. The chief officer dispatched me 

15 to different parts around the ship, on deck, to check 

16 things out, check gauges, and it was, you know, in and out, 

17 in and out. 

18 Q Was anybody helping you during this time? 

19 A The pumpman was on deck and a couple of the 

20 engineers were around, just that sort of thing, people 

21 pulling together, trying to figure out what was wrong, what 

22 was happening. 

23 Q Was there -- when you went out on the deck, was 

24 there oil out on the deck? .. 
25 A At some period while I was out on the deck, one of 

L ...J 
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the engineers opened up one of the void spaces, empty 

spaces. Oil had gotten in there and when he opened up the 

sounding tube, we had a spout of oil come up out of there 

like a geyser. I was very concerned about this because 

small particles of oil are explosive and I wanted to get it 

stopped and we managed to get that stopped almost 

immediately. We did get the oil on the deck at that point. 

Q And what else would you have been doing from that 

period, helping Mr. --

A Just checking things out. You know, I can't tell 

you now because it was just a series of things, trying to 

find out -- we were looking over the side to see if oil was 

coming out of the ship, looking around the deck to see if 

we could see any cracks on the deck, just a number of 

things like that. 

The 

so 

Q 

A 

0 i 1 

you 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Did you see any oil coming out? 

I could see oil on the water, oil on the ship. 

was coming way under, way far underneath the ship, 

really couldn't 

Do you remember 1 oweri ng the anchor? 

Yes, I did that. 

When would that have been? 

Some time after 2:00 o'clock. I saw the bell book 

and I think it's a different time than what the bell book 

says. 
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Q But it was some time after 2:00 o'clock? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

Do you remember when the Coast Guard came? 

I can't tell you the time they came. I can 

remember them coming alongside the ship. 

177 

Q Had you already lowered the anchor at that point? 

A I believe I had. 

Q Why would you have lowered the anchor? 

A Well, I guess we knew we were on the rocks and 

weren't going any place, wanted to hold the ship there. We 

didn't want to just, you know, float off the rocks. 

Q Did you, at some point, start preparing for the 

lightering process? 

A Yes, during that period, after the anchor was 

down, I the chief mate directed me to see what hoses we 

had in our fo'c's'le head and I did that sort of thing. I 

just was-- well, they had a couple of hoses up there. We 

were getting the hoses out and just getting gaskets ready, 

getting wrenches ready, everything that was necessary for 

the lightering. 

Q When did you relieve Mr. Cousins on the bridge? 

A A little after 4:00 o'clock. 

0 How long were you there? 

A With a few exceptions, almost I think close to 30 

hours, off and on. It was -- I did get off my feet at 
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6:00 o'clock that night, but then the Exxon San Francisco 

came alongside, or one of the other Exxon ships, and I had 

to get out and supervise that, supervise my end of the ship 

for tying up. And after that happened, it had become late 

again, it was close to my watch, so I went right back on 

watch, at midnight, and stayed on until 6:00 in the 

morning. Then we flew out to the NTSB hearing. 

Q Were you on board when Captain Deppe came on 

board? 

A I can't recall. He might have come aboard while I 

was at the NTSB hearing. I think he did. 

Q 

alcohol? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

What is the Exxon policy toward possession of 

It's forbidden. 

What were the consequences? 

Termination. 

What about the use of alcohol on board? 

A That's the same thing. 

Q Did you have any alcohol on board the Exxon Valdez 

on the 23d? 

A No, I did not. 

Q Did you of any being on board the Exxon Valdez? 

A No, I don't. 

MR. COLE: I have nothing further, Your Honor. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: We'll take our recess now. 
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Don't discuss this case among yourselves or anybody else. 

Don't form or express any opinions. 

recess. 

THE CLERK: Please rise. This Court stands at 

(Whereupon, the jury leaves the courtroom.) 

(Whereupon, at 2:39p.m., a recess was taken.) 

(Whereupon, the jury enters the courtroom.) 

THE CLERK: This Court now resumes its session. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Madson. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MADSON: 

Q Mr. LeCain, you indicated that you were on the 

fateful voyage of the Exxon Valdez on March 23d, correct? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

And you were the second mate at that time. 

Correct. 

I think you described a number of your duties and 

among them was the navigational officer keeps track of the 

charts and updated charts, things like this. 

A Yes, sir. 

Q When you spoke -- I think you said the Coast Guard 

sends out Notice to Mariner. 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

That's changes on charts, for instance -­

Yes, it is. 
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Q to charts? If a buoy is removed or something 

like that? 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

Whatever the Coast Guard feels is important to aid 

you to navigate a ship or vessel safely. 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

And Mr. Cole asked you and I think you said that 

there were no ice hazards that were issued by the Coast 

Guard in Prince William Sound. 

A I can't recall that. You know, I just don't 

recall that. 

Now, sir, with regard to your duties as watch 

officer, say you're on the bridge as a watch officer and 

you and the helmsman are present, okay? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

You give an order to the helmsman, ten degrees 

right rudder. What does he do? 

A 

right. 

Q 

He brings the rudder of the ship to ten degrees 

How do you know that? 

A It's indicated on the rudder angle indicator. 

Q First of all, is that really a simple order, ten 

degrees right rudder? 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

You have to know your right hand from your left? 
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A That's all you have to know. I mean that's--

2 
Q And it's mechanically turning the wheel until --

3 is there a little arrow indicator on a part of the wheel to 

4 indicate when it's ten degrees? 

5 A Yes, there was. 

6 Q Let me show you this, sir. 

7 A I have to see the stand again. 

8 Q Let me show you now. So this is Defendant's 

9 Exhibit K. Do you recognize that, sir? 

10 A Yes, that's the steering stand, the Sperry SRP 

11 2400. 

12 Q Okay, could you just perhaps show the jury how a 

13 helmsman would know, at least approximately, when he was at 

14 ten degrees? 

15 A Right here, when you put the wheel over, this goes 

16 to ten degrees. 

17 Q Maybe you can show a little --

18 A I'm sorry, this indicator here, okay. 

19 Q It's a dial that looks like it's black with white 

20 numbers on it? 

21 A Right. And then there's a -- let me 

22 Q Yes, let me hand you now Defendant's Exhibit J. 

23 A Yes, okay. The quartermaster is right here. Here 

24 is an indicator up here, the amount of rudder. This is lit ... 
25 at night and you can always see it. So he would be able to 
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tell. And this sometimes is maybe a half a degree off or a 

degree off, so what you'd want to do is actually to keep 

your eye on this when you change course. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

bridge? 

A 

Q 

When you say "this,·· that's the angle, what -­

I'm sorry, angle indicator, yes, sir. 

indicator that's mounted on the -­

On the overhead. 

The overhead. 

Yes. 

Can you see that fairly well when you're on the 

Yes, you can. 

So if you gave a simple order like ten degrees 

right rudder, how much time would elapse before something 

would occur, the rudder indicator would indicate that 

A Almost instantaneous. There would be -- you know, 

my eye would be on it to make sure that he went in the 

right direction and he completed the order, but it would be 

completed in seconds, the rudder would go right over. 

Q Just look up and -- that's a glance, right? You 

could see that it's there where it's supposed to be or it 

isn't. 

A 

Q 

Right, yes. 

Now with regard to Mr. Kagan, had you ever had any 

problems in the past with him chasing the compass, as it's 
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called? 

A Not on my watch, no. I just kept a close eye on 

him. But I keep a close on any quartermaster. 

Q 

A 

Q 

You keep a close eye on everybody. 

That's my job. 

So you never had any -- Mr. Kagan never told you 

he's had problems chasing the compass or steering a 

particular course? 

A 

Q 

Not on my watch, he never said anything about it. 

Well, how many times have you been with Mr. Kagan 

on your watch? 

A Only the trip out of San Francisco and at sea, the 

trip up, just that short period. 

Q So if you believed you had some reason to keep an 

eye on him and you kept an eye on him and he didn't do 

anything wrong, apparently he could steer all right or 

not-- I don't want to use "steer." You do the steering, 

correct 

A 

Q 

orders. 

Right. 

-- when you give commands He could follow rudder 

A That's correct. 

Q You said ten degrees right rudder, you looked up, 

it was on ten degrees. 

A Right, I'd make sure it was there with anyone, 
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it's just --

Q On your trip up -- when you said your trip up from 

San Francisco, is this the trip you're talking about on 

March 20 -- from say the 14th to the 23d? 

A Right, it's the trip previous to the grounding. 

It's that trip up to San Francisco up to Valdez. The 

trip from San Francisco to Valdez. I had him steering 

coming out of San Francisco Harbor and he steered okay, as 

far as I was concerned, all right. 

Q And, in fact, did you not testify before the NTSB 

hearing that you thought he did all right when he was 

coming from San Francisco? 

Yes. A 

Q And you thought that if you knew something about 

him, you would have told the master. 

A Right. 

Q And you did not. 

A Wait a minute. I had mentioned to Captain 

Hazelwood on our trip north that Kagan told me he felt a 

little nervous about steering the ship loaded and-- other 

quartermasters have told me that before. It's different to 

steer a ship loaded than it is to steer a ship light. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Now are you saying that you told 

I believe I told the captain, yes. 

You believe 

wait --
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A I told the captain .. 

Q Mr. LeCain, are you afraid that perhaps you might 

be blamed for this? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

No, I'm not afraid of being blamed for this. 

Are you sure? 

Yes. 

MR. COLE: Objection, asked and answered. 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

Well, Mr. LeCain, if you thought you knew 

something about Mr. Kagan and didn't tell the captain or 

didn't tell Mr. Cousins, do you feel that perhaps somebody 

might say it was your fault? 

A No, because Mr. Cousins was aware of Kagan's 

steering problem. 

Q How do you know that? 

A He told -- Mr. -- the chief officer, I and Cousins 

were on the bridge, just having coffee, and the chief 

officer said to keep an eye on Mr. Kagan, he had a steering 

problem. So Cousins was standing there when it happened. 

Q Okay. And when was this, sir? 

A On the trip north from San Francisco to Valdez. 

Q And who -- where, exactly, did this take place? 

A On the bridge, having coffee. 

Q And who was present? 

A The chief officer and myself and Mr. Cousins. 
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The chief officer is Mr. Kunkel? 

Kunke 1 . 

And Cousins. 

A Yes. 

186 

Q So you're saying Cousins would be aware of some 

steering problems that Mr. Kagan may have. 

A Yes, sir, he told me he had been on a previous 

ship with Kagan and that Kagan was having problems there. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Cousins told you. 

Cousins told me that, yes, sir. 

There's no question in your mind that he would 

have watched Kagan very carefully, right? 

A That's correct, sir. 

MR. COLE: Objection, speculation, it calls for 

speculation. 

MR. MADSON: If he knows, based on his knowledge 

of that incident, Your Honor. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Do you think you can answer? 

Can you answer that question? 

THE WITNESS: I can't say what's going through the 

man's mind, Your Honor. 

Q 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Exactly, objection sustained. 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

Mr. LeCain, do you remember being interviewed 

March 29th of this last year, 1989 --
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' A Yes. 

2 
Q -- by the Coast Guard Office in Valdez? 

3 A I remember the day, yes. 

4 Q Do you remember telling anyone at that time 

5 that --

6 MR. COLE: Can we get a page cite? What is this? 

7 MR. MADSON: One and two. I'm talking the record 

8 of interview, March 29th, 1989. 

9 MR. COLE: This is the NTSB? 

10 MR. MADSON: Well, that's what it says here, I 

11 don't know, NTS -- it's interview summary. 

12 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Madson, if you're going to 

13 use a document like that, be able to give Mr. Cole the 

14 document cite so that he can refer to it. 

15 I 

MR. MADSON: Well, I thought I did, Your Honor, as 

16 soon as he asked me. I wasn't aware he didn't have it. 

17 THE WITNESS: Your Honor --

18 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: There's no question to you, 

19 sir. Wait until you have a question. Unless you need to 

20 take unless there's something you need personally, you 

21 need to take a break or something like that. 

22 THE WITNESS: Okay, sir, I'm sorry. 

23 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

24 Q Do you recall that interview, sir? ... 
25 A I recall the interview, yes. 
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Q Do you recall saying anything at that time that 

Captain Hazelwood knew anything at all about Kagan's 

abilities as a helmsman? 

A I don't know, I forget. That was a long time 

ago. I don't believe I said anything. 

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, this might take some 

time, but I have a number of interviews and perhaps I could 

ask fer a recess for this witness to examine all his 

previous statements because I'll be going into each and 

every one of them. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Would Counsel approach the 

bench, please? 

(The following was said at the bench.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Was he ever asked the question 

about ______ ? 

MR. MADSON: Mostly what he knew about Kagan. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Was he ever asked the question 

whether or not he told Captain Hazelwood about Kagan's 

difficulties? 

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I think that he was asked 

a number of times about Kagan's --

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, you can use that, but to 

ask him if he ever said something like that, if you know he 

did, you don't need to have him go through all these 

things. That's not a proper question. If he didn't say 
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anything, then it's not in the interview. If he did say 

something that's inconsistent, then you can use that to 

impeach him. 

MR. COLE: The one interview that he's talking 

about, he says Kagan had problems. There's no evidence in 

there that he was asked whether he told Hazelwood that. 

MR. MADSON: That's correct and there's no 

evidence in there that Hazelwood ever told (inaudible). 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, well, you have to prove 

that he was asked. Are you going to use specific portions 

of his interviews to impeach him? 

MR. MADSON: No, I just want him to recall the 

interview and ask him if he ever said anything (inaudible). 

MR. COLE: If he's using it to impeach, then he's 

got to establish that he was asked that first. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: That's right, the absence of 

that information without being asked is not relevant. If 

he was asked and he gives an inconsistent answer 

(inaudible). Otherwise, the form of the question is 

objectionable and I'll sustain the objection. 

MR. (Inaudible.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: And if you want to use the 

interview as an inconsistent statement, you're going to 

have to make an offer to me that he was asked that 

question. Now if he was never asked that question -- these 
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aren't voluntary statements he's giving. These are 

2 questions and answers he's being asked in an interview. 

3 MR. (Inaudible.) 

4 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Well, what's going to happen is 

5 he's going to say no after he reviews it and then Mr. Cole 

6 is going to say, "Were you ever asked this question," and 

7 he's going to say (inaudible). 

8 MR. MADSON: (I naud i b 1 e. ) 

9 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Well, how long is it going to 

10 take for him to refresh his recollection of whether he did 
11 

I make the statement? That's the problem with this kind of a 

12 question. He could have given a deposition for six hours 

13 and I'm not going to have him sit by and read a deposition 

14 to find out that he wasn't asked the question. 

15 MR. MADSON: It would probably take ten to 15 

16 minutes. 

17 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: I think (inaudible). 

18 (The following was said in open Court.) 

19 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: The objection is sustained as to 

20 the form of the question. 

21 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

22 Q Mr. LeCain, do you remember being interviewed by 

23 the State Police--

24 
A Yes, I do. 

25 Q -- on the 30th of March? 
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i_ A Yes. 

2 
Q Were you ever asked the question about Captain 

3 Hazelwood's knowledge of Mr. Kagan? 

4 A I can't recall. 

5 Q Do you recall at the NTSB hearing the question 

6 being asked of you to page 709? 

7 MR. COLE: Objection. Is he talking about the 

8 NTSB or the interview with the troopers? 

9 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: He just said NTSB hearing, Mr. 

10 Cole. 

11 1 

I MR. MADSON: I just said NTSB, page 709 of the 

12 transcript. 

13 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Why don't you give Mr. Cole just 

14 a brief opportunity to get that in front of him? Do you 

15 have that, Mr. Cole? 

16 MR. COLE: I'll find it, Judge. Go ahead. 

17 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, you may proceed. 

18 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

19 Q Do you remember being asked the question, Mr. 

20 LeCain, "What is your opinion of Bob Kagan's ability as a 

21 helmsman?" Do you remember what your answer was? 

22 A No, I don't. 

23 Q Do you remember saying, "I felt he was all right." 

24 A That's still my opinion, he's all right. 

25 Q Again, on the wheel coming out of San Francisco, 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

192 

light conditions, the man did okay? 

A Yes. 

MR. COLE: I object. Is he using this to impeach 

him? If he's not, he hasn't said anything different than 

that. 

MR. MADSON: I'm attempting to do that. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Well, the testimony of this 

witness indicated that he thought, at least it's my 

recollection that he thought there was some difficulty, Mr. 

Kagan had told him of some difficulty. So this is, to some 

extent, inconsistent with that and it can be used in the 

manner that Mr. Madson is using it. I don't know what the 

rest of the statement says and I think that maybe you ought 

to just take enough time so that you can have the statement 

in front of you, Mr. Cole, so you can go along with it. 

MR. MADSON: It perhaps would be easier if I could 

ask the witness to just look at this and see if it 

refreshes his recollection. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Yes, sir. Well, which 

recollection are you trying to refresh, Mr. Madson? He's 

given answers. 

MR. MADSON: The questions and answers regarding 

his opinion about Mr. Kagan's abilities. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: There's no objection. You can 

use it. 
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MR. MADSON: Okay. 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

Q Do you want to just read this and then maybe the 

next page, part of it? 

A Okay. "I felt he was all right. I had .. 

Q Just read it to yourself. 

A All right. Okay. 

Q Do you recall giving that statement, then, at the 

NTS8 hearing? 

A Yes, sir. 

So you're saying let me just ask you this, 

sir. Are you saying, today, your opinion is the same 

regarding Mr. Kagan as it was back at the time you gave 

this testimony at the NTSB hearing regarding Mr. Kagan? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

That he is al 1 right? 

He's all right, yes. 

Q You're confident Mr. Kagan would tell you if he 

had a problem. 

A With my short experience with him, yes, I would. 

Q Back then, you told the NTSB that, did you not --

A 

Q 

Yes. 

-- that if he had a problem, he'd tell you about 

24 it? 

-~ 
A Yes. 
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Q Basically, all anybody would have to do is simply 

glance at a steering -- a rudder indicator to see if he 

followed a simple command 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

That's correct, sir. 

-- ten degrees or 20 degrees, right? 

Yes. 

Now is it correct that under normal situations, 

you would have been on duty before midnight on your watch? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

At about, what, ten minutes to or so? 

About that. 

And it was only because you had worked late and 

Mr. Cousins was giving you some extra sleep that you were 

not on duty at midnight on the 23d. 

A Correct. 

Q And you said this was common practice, to hang 

over? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

In other words, the one who's tired should get 

more sleep and the guy who's fresher should take over for 

awhile. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

You'd do the same for somebody who -­

I intended to do it for Mr. Kunkel. 

Did you know that was going to happen? 
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No, I didn't. 

Well, if it's common practice, didn't you have 

some kind of an idea that maybe they'd let you sleep in a 

little longer? 

A It's a common practice, but it might or might not 

occur. I wasn't aware what amount of sleep Mr. Cousins had 

had. 

Q Now on the 23d, at any time during that day, did 

you ever say anything to Mr. Cousins regarding Mr. Kagan? 

A 

Q 

Not that I recall. 

After the grounding, itself, I think you said you 

woke up because of the sound or is that what it was that 

woke you up? 

A 

Q 

A 

No, it ~as a feeling of the-­

Vibrations? 

-- vibration and the chief mate came to my room 

and said that we had a problem. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

And did you go immediately out to the bridge? 

Yes, I did. 

Who was tnere when you got there? 

Captain Hazelwood and Kagan and Mr. Cousins. 

And what was happening? 

They were doing something to the engines, that's 

the only thing I know. 

Q What anything told to you about what the captain's 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

196 

intentions were at that time? 

A No. 

Q Did he give you any orders? 

A No, he didn't. 

Q What did you do then? 

A As I said, the first thing I did was check the 

chart. I went out and saw them out there. 

Q When you say check the chart, what does that mean? 

A When I first got on the bridge, I checked the 

charts for the position of the ship. 

Q 

A 

Was it marked on there? 

It was a position-- I believe so now. I can't 

recall. But I could see where the last fixes were; I could 

see where the ship was. I then went out on the bridge. I 

saw the three of them standing there. I asked Mr. Cousins 

what happened and he said, "I was maneuvering around ice 

and I slid up on the rocks." And I then said to Captain 

Hazelwood, "I'm going to go down and help the chief mate," 

and he said, "Go ahead," and I went down and helped the 

chief mate. 

Q Oh, he said it was all right. 

A Right. 

Q Did you have a chance to observe Captain Hazelwood 

at this point? 

A Yes, I did. 
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Yes. 

Did he appear to be under the influence or 

impaired in any way that you could see? 

A No, he did not. 
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MR. MADSON: I don't have any other questions. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

0 Would you explain the difference to the jury of 

steering a laden versus an unladen tanker? Why is there a 

difference? 

A Well, if the ship is heavy, like laden, she 

it's harder to steady her up. With the rudder on -- the 

vessel's heavy, so it wants to keep moving, so you have to 

apply the rudder earlier and more rudder to bring it back, 

to come to a new course. So she has a tendency to run. 

With a light vessel, you have to use less rudder to steady 

her up, to start her moving. 

Q Now on the steering console on the Exxon Valdez, 

22 there was a monitor there. 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

That monitor would tell you the turn of the wheel 

25 and the turn of the rudder. 
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Correct. A 

Q Do you know whether Mr. Kagan had that turned up 

or down at night? 

A I really don't know. 

Q He never talked to you about that? 

A 

Q 

No. 

When Mr. Kunkel told you to watch Mr. Kagan, what 

did he mean? 

A Well, he--

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, I object to that. It 

calls for speculation as to what's in someone else's mind, 

what he meant. 

Q 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

What did you understand him to mean? 

MR. MADSON: Well, I still object. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Overruled. 

THE WITNESS: The chief officer is the senior deck 

officer, okay? We had a little conference before we got 

into port and he was just pointing out to us that Mr. Kagan 

had a reputation of having trouble steering and that we 

should keep a good eye on him when we were going in and out 

of Prince William Sound, that's all. 

BY MR. COLE: (Resuming) 

Q When you talked with -- what did you take it to 

mean that you were supposed to do physically? 
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I_- A Just keep my eye on that rudder indicator whenever 

2 Kagan was given a command, make sure he went the right 

3 direction, and to check, if he's given a course, make sure 

4 he's on that course. 

5 Q When did you tell Captain Hazelwood about Mr. 

6 Kagan's problem? 

7 A On the way north. 

8 Q Did he acknowledge that he heard you, he 

9 understood that? 

10 A He said he heard it and he said that, you know, 

11 "We've got what we have and we just have to keep an eye on 

12 him. It's your job to watch the quartermaster," and that 

13 was it, which it is. I'd like to say also, if I could, 

14 that --

15 MR. MADSON: I'll object that he volunteers 

16 statements, no question asked. 

17 JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Don't make any spontaneous 

18 answers. Just respond to the questions, please. 

19 MR. COLE: Your Honor, I don't have any further 

20 questions. 

21 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

22 BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

23 Q Mr. LeCain, whether a vessel is light or laden, if 

24 the command is given to turn ten degrees right rudder, the ... 
25 person does exactly the same thing --
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Q 

That's correct, sir. 

-- does he not? 

Yes. 

It doesn't make a bit of difference, he still 

turns until the rudder indicator says ten degrees. 

Yes. 
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A 

Q On the other hand, if someone were steadying up on 

a compass heading, that's different, isn't it? You're 

trying to read the compass heading and keep the vessel 

controlled on a particular heading? 

A Right. 

0 And would you agree that that is perhaps a little 

more difficult to do than a simple turn ten degrees? 

A Yes, it is, it takes a little skill. 

Q And perhaps Mr. Kagan was a little weak in that 

area in keeping it on a particular course, right? 

A Well, I don't know. I wasn't up there coming 

out. I've never been with him in a laden condition, okay. 

0 Well, were you ever with him when he was trying to 

keep it on a particular course? 

A Coming out of San Francisco in a light condition. 

Q How many watches was he on when you were on when 

he was the helmsman? 

A 

Q 

I think one or two. I can't recall now. 

Assuming it was two, on any occasion, did he 
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deviate from the course that you told him to set and you 

had to correct it --

A No. 

Q -- and the wheel command that you gave him, 

whether it was ten degrees, 20 degrees or whatever, you had 

to correct because he did not do it properly? 

A That never occurred with me. 

Q The time you said when Mr. Kunkel mentioned this, 

was this the time with you and Kunkel and Cousins when this 

was discussed? 

A, Yes. 

0 The captain wasn't there? 

A No. 

Q Was anybody else present when you said you told 

Captain Hazelwood about Mr. Kagan? 

A No, it was on the bridge, talking. 

0 Just the two of you? 

A Yes. 

Q Was there a helmsman there? 

A No, it was during the daytime. 

Q Who was on the helm? 

A Well, automatic pilot. 

Q What? 

A Auto pilot. 

Q Don't you normally have somebody on the helm? 
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A Not in the daytime. 

Q Not in the daytime. 

A We can get a man up there. Usually, they're down, 

working. 

Q Mr. LeCain, are you sure your recollection of 

these events is not influenced by anything else? 

MR. COLE: Objection, Your Honor, it's been asked 

and answered. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: I'll let him answer that 

question. You can ask him. 

THE WITNESS: No, it's not. It was just it was 

the answer I expected from the captain, they gave us 

certain ABs and we have them on the ship and we had to work 

with them and that was our job, supervising them. 

BY MR. MADSON: (Resuming) 

0 During this period of time, were you suffering 

from any let's say any mental disturbances at all? 

A No. 

Q Did you tell anybody else on the vessel, Captain 

Hazelwood and Mr. Kagan, that you were a pilot on an F-14 

that crashed into a carrier? 

MR. COLE: Objection, Your Honor. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Excuse me. Counsel approach the 

bench, please. 

(The following was said at the bench.) 

!'-

L 
t 
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JUDGE JOHNSTONE: That's the kind of thing you 

apply to the Court for before spouting it out for the 

jury. Now you say "this period of time," I'm not sure what 

you're talking about. Are you talking about when he told 

Captain Hazelwood? 

MR. MADSON: During this period, before this 

voyage, during this voyage. (Inaudible) extremely 

relevant. There's bias, prejudice, mental capacity. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, we'll excuse the jury and 

you can make an offer of proof about this, okay? 

(The following was said in open Court.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Ladies and gentlemen, we're 

going to excuse you. I think I'm going to let you go home 

early today. I looked out and it looks like it's pretty 

clear sailing out there down to Eagle River, so you're 

probably not going to have any problems. It looks like 

it's pretty good weather and I'll give you an early start 

today. Don't discuss this case among yourselves or with 

any other persons and don't form or express any opinions. 

Be safe and I'll see you back at 8:30 tomorrow morning. 

(Whereupon, the jury and the witness leave the 

courtroom.) 

MR. MADSON: Your Honor, maybe I'll make a 

suggestion. I realize we're in a touchy area and there may 

even be some conflict among Counsel as to the best way of 
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approaching this, if we should even do it. I can make an 

offer of proof, but whether it's necessary or not remains 

to be seen. I would suggest that -- could we adjourn early 

today and perhaps let the Court know at 8:30 tomorrow 

morning or at least have maybe five minutes? That would do 

it. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Well, why don't we go ahead and 

give you a few minutes to see if you can resolve -- now 

you're talking about conflict between you and Mr. Chalos, 

is that what you're talking about? 

MR. MADSON: Yes, I'd like to talk to, obviously, 

Captain Hazelwood here. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, well, why don't we give 

you a few minutes? We'll come back in. Since the jury is 

not here, we might as well use this time productively and 

we can resolve these questions. 

I call your attention to Evidence Rule 404(8). 

Before you bring up the kind of matter you brought up in 

front of the jury, you should apply to the Court first. 

recess. 

So we'll take a break for about ten or 15 minutes. 

THE CLERK: Please rise. This Court stands at 

(Whereupon,, at 3:32p.m., a recess was taken.) 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: You may be seated. Mr. Madson, 

now is the time for you to set forth what you intend on 
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doing and what rules you're following at this time. 

2 MR. MADSON: Well, Your Honor, the purpose of 

3 this, of course, is to impeach credibility and I don't 

4 believe it belongs with 404. We're not trying to show any 

5 prior bad acts or anything of that nature. But I think 

6 we're certainly entitled to show that the witness, number 

7 one, may not be competent, mentally, to recall and remember 

8 events that occurred. And it certainly goes to -- just 

9 impeach credibility is the basis for it. 

10 By way of offer of proof, until either now or 

11 until very recently, Mr. LeCain has been on medical leave 

12 with Exxon because of mental problems, emotional problems, 

13 and that he has in the very recent past, prior to the --

14 let's say prior to the incident, made statements to the 

15 effect that he was a Trident submarine commander in the 

16 Falklands War, that he was a Green Beret in Vietnam, that 

17 he was involved in the Iran Contra affair and, maybe more 

18 to the point, after the grounding and when Captain 

19 Hazelwood was leaving the vessel, Mr. LeCain offered him--

20 he said he had two cyanide pills and he was queried as to 

21 why he needed two and he said that he keeps them in case he 

22 has to commit suicide and he needs two because he's Ninja 

23 trained and one won't do it. That's pretty much the extent 

24 of it. And I think it goes to the basis of the man's ... 
25 mental stability, Your Honor, and ability to recall, 
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remember or basically just state what the truth is as he 

remembers it. Because I think he has a problem with 

fantasy. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Cole? So that's your 

offer. I want to make sure we get it all now because, at 

the sidebar, you said you had lots of evidence of bias or 

other interest and I haven't heard any bias 

MR. MADSON: Well, yes, I don't--

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Excuse me, I'm still talking. 

MR. MADSON: Oh, sorry. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: All I've heard so far is 

evidence of a mental instability, apparently, according to 

your analysis, but I haven't heard evidence of bias so 

far. Was there something else you were going to bring up 

showing evidence of bias? 

MR. MADSON: Well, Your Honor, I have nothing 

particular about bias. I mean could I say that he has made 

statements against Captain Hazelwood and we have witnesses 

to prove that? No, we don't. I don't know, frankly, if he 

has any bias, but I think these kinds of questions can go 

into, be gone into in a general sense because the witness 

can be shown to be not competent and certainly not to have 

proper recall, memory, and distinguish between what really 

happened and what he believes happened and I think this 

bears directly on that point. 
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JUDGE JOHNSTONE: But what you said at side bench 

is you have lots of evidence of bias and there is no 

evidence of bias I've heard so far. You just now want to 

attack his credibility by some alleged instability. 

MR. MADSON: That's correct. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay. And, Mr. Cole? 

MR. COLE: Your Honor, my interpretation of what 

now Mr. Madson is saying is that this is not a competent 

witness. The rule is found in 601, the evidence rule. It 

says, "A person is competent to be a witness, unless the 

Court finds, one, the proposed witness is incapable of 

expressing himself concerning the matters supposed to be 

understood by the Court and the jury, either directly or 

through interpretation or one who can't understand and, 

two, the proposed witness is incapable of understanding the 

duty of a witness to tell the truth." Now that burden is 

on the Defendant. They are supposed to object at the time 

the oath is administered. They failed to do that. 

Now, apparently, they wish to impeach him. I 

assume that there are other means of impeachment as to 

evidence of character and conduct of the witness. The 

credibility of a witness may be attacked or -- this is Rule 

608. I haven't heard anything as to their offering 

evidence of his character for truthfulness or 

untruthfulness. This is purely 404(9). It goes to 
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collateral issues. And we would ask the Court to inquire 

as to who is going to testify to all this evidence of -­

apparently made by Mr. LeCain. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Anything further? 

MR. COLE: No. 

MR. MADSON: Well, for one, we have Mr. Kunkel, 

Your Honor, who's aware of much of this. We could feel 

confident he's one witness that could support what we're 

saying. 

By the way, it isn't a question of competency 

now. We're not saying that he doesn't understand the oath 

he just took, he's not too young or mentally unstable at 

the moment. He very well understands the oath, said, "I 

promise to tell the truth." The problem is he may not know 

what it is, Your Honor. That's where I think we certainly 

have a right to go into his understanding. For instance, 

at the time, if we could show that the witness was under 

the influence of drugs or alcohol, that's perfectly 

acceptable cross examination to show that his memory, his 

recall could be affected. I think the same goes for a 

person's mental stability at the time, may he be able to 

remember what happened and can he distinguish between the 

truth of what happened and what he simply believes to be 

the truth. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, Mr. Madson, I don't find 
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that your offer has any substantive value. Assuming that 

you do have people who could say those things about the 

witness, that probative value is far outweighed by its 

confusion of the issues. There's no expert testimony 

you've offered that would show that this man is unable to 

remember or his recollection isn't correct or he has some 

instability that affects his ability to testify 

truthfully. It's evidence of character witness which is 

pretty evident under Evidence Rule 608, which generally 

allows you to impeach a witness with opinions concerning 

his veracity. 

So I'm not going to let you get into this area 

with this witness. I can appreciate your surprise. You 

reached into what you thought to be an innocuous bag and 

got yourself alligator. And I can understand what you're 

doing, but you can't do it this way, Mr. Madson. 

So we'll call the witness back tomorrow morning 

and you can resume your cross examination at that time or 

let him go and Mr. Cole can resume his redirect. Is there 

anything further we can do now? 

MR. MADSON: I have nothing else. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Mr. Cole? 

MR. COLE: The only thing I would ask, Judge, is 

that a protective order be issued that Mr. Madson not -- or 

whoever questions Mr. Kunkel not be able to go into this if 
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they think that he would say that. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: You know, before evidence of 

character that goes beyond our rules would be offered, 

would you just let me know and we'll take it up outside the 

presence of the jury? 

MR. MADSON: I certainly will, Your Honor, 

although I don't think it was evidence of character. I may 

have misinterpreted. But I will be ultracareful from now 

on. 

JUDGE JOHNSTONE: Okay, thank you. If there's 

nothing else, we'll stand at recess. 

THE CLERK: Please rise. This Court stands at 

recess. 

(Whereupon, at 3:53p.m., proceedings adjourned.) 
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